CI I Z O'E NORT; kPOLE

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
Monday, December 7, 2015

Committee of the Whole — 6:30 p.m.
Regular City Council Meeting — 7:00 p.m.

MAYOR
Bryce Ward 888-4444

COUNCIL MEMBERS

Kevin McCarthy- Mayor Pro Tem 590-0800
Preston Smith — Dep Mayor Pro Tem 488-8824
Elizabeth Holm — Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 488-6125
Santa Claus 388-3836
Elyse Dawson 520-221-1340
Thomas McGhee 455-0010

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag
e Presentation of Colors — Troop 49
e National Anthem — NPMS

3. Invocation

4. Approval of the Agenda

5.  Approval of the Minutes

6. Communications from the Mayor

e Students of the Month
Quinn McHenry — NPMS

7. Council Member Questions of the Mayor

CITY CLERK
Kathy Weber, MMC 488-8583




8. Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City Clerk
9. Ongoing Projects Report
10. Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen)

11. Old Business.
a. Ordinance 15-19, An Ordinance of the North Pole City Council establishing the 2016 operating and
capital budget and levying the mill rate, Final Reading.

b. Ordinance 15-22, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 13, Public Services

c. Ordinance 15-23, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend 4.09.025 Bed Tax
Distribution

d. Ordinance 15-24, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole amending the 2015 budget requesting the
purchase of computer equipment for the fire department.

12.  New Business
Request from NPPD to accept Byrne JAG grant in the amount of $35,000

o

b. Resolution 15-20, A Resolution of the City of North Pole adopting a social media policy

c. Resolution 15-21, A Resolution establishing the 2016 City of North Pole Bed Tax Grant distribution

d. Resolution 15-22, A Resolution establishing the 2016 Capital Project Priority for the City of North Pole
13. Council Comments
14. Adjournment
The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing impaired
individuals. The City does require at least 48 hours’ notice to arrange for this service. All such requests are
subject to the availability of an interpreter. All City Council meetings are recorded on CD. These CD’s are
available for listening or duplication at the City Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday

through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or can be purchased for $10.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is
located in City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

Committee of the Whole — 6:30 P.M.
Regular City Council Meeting — 7:00 P.M.

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, November 9, 2015 in the
Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, November 9, 2015 to order at
7:00 p.m.

There were present: Absent/Excused
Mr. McCarthy — Mayor Pro Tem Excused
Mr. Smith — Deputy Mayor Pro Tem

Ms. Holm — Alt. Deputy Mayor Pro Tem

Ms. Dawson

Mr. McGhee

Mr. Claus

Mayor Ward

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Mayor Ward called the regularly scheduled meeting of the North Pole City Council to order on
Monday, November 9, 2015 at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG
Led by Mayor Ward

INVOCATION
Invocation was given by Councilwoman Holm

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. McGhee moved to approve the Agenda of November 9, 2015

Seconded by Mr. Smith
Discussion

Mr. McGhee moved to amend by consenting the following items under Old Business:
b. Ordinance 15-18, An Ordinance of the North Pole City Council amending Title 2.36.470,
Personnel Code to add Records Manager/Archivist position.

c. Ordinance 15-19, An Ordinance of the North Pole City Council establishing the 2016
operating and capital budget and levying the mill rate, 2" reading.
1

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

d. Ordinance 15-20, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Chapter 4.25,
Designated Funds

New Business
a. Ordinance 15-22, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 13,
Public Services

b. Ordinance 15-23, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend 4.09.025 Bed
Tax Distribution

c. Ordinance 15-24, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole amending the 2015 budget
requesting the purchase of computer equipment for the fire department.

Seconded by Mr. Smith

Discussion
None

On the amendment to the Agenda

PASSED

Yes: 6 —Holm, Smith, Claus, McGhee, Dawson, Ward
No: 0

Absent: 1 - McCarthy

On the Agenda as amended
PASSED
Yes: 6 —Holm, Smith, Claus, McGhee, Dawson, Ward

No: 0
Absent: 1 - McCarthy

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. Smith moved to approve the minutes of November 2, 2015

Seconded by Mr. McGhee

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

Discussion
None

PASSED

Yes: 6 —Holm, Smith, Claus, McGhee, Dawson, Ward
No: 0

Absent: 1 - McCarthy

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR

Proclamations
Quin McHenry — NPMS
Meghan Geese - NPHS

Office of the Mayor
Every third Friday of the month is Muffins with the Mayor, Please mark your calendars for this
special event, all are welcome from 8-10 am here at City Hall in the Council Chambers.

The Festival Committee is having success meeting with local groups and coordinating activities
and calendars. We are still in need of more participation and help. The committee will meet
every first and third Tuesday of the month until the end of the year; all of the next meetings will
be at City Hall and start at 6pm.

Budget Season is upon us and we have released the 2016 budget. We have copies available in
the front office or they are available for download on the City Website. Northpolealaska.com

I met with the City of Fairbanks in regards to the dispatch contract and my concerns in regards to
our fee and the correlation to the dispatch budget. | advocated for a fund to be established to
better track the cost and revenue associated with the dispatch contract. | also expressed concern
in regards to the governance and our ability to have a say in the budget and expenditures for
dispatch. The council was responsive to my concerns, however chose to not consider creating a
fund to track expenditures and revenues.

Sunday, | was able to wish Col. Mark Hedlund of the 168™ refueling wing a happy retirement.
The ceremony was a great tribute to him and all of the men and women who serve our great
country. Col. Hedlund is starting a general contracting company in Anchorage.

Wednesday Nov 11" at 11am | will be representing the city as the three mayors read a joint
proclamation in remembrance of our veterans. Please support our veterans.

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

FYI: Christmas is 46 days away!

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR

e None

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH
REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK

Finance, Tricia Fogarty

Mr. Smith asked about some large amounts of money we are going to be receiving.

Mrs. Fogarty told him that they the company was a little behind cause it takes them so long to
process the payments.

Police Department, Chief Dutra

e Emily Gibson received her Intermediate Police Certificate. We are proud to present to
her the certificate.

e Our Anti-theft Dot Campaign is about to take off. This is our way to give back to the
community. The biggest problem facing this little community is larceny. We have a
huge problem for such a small population. When | saw this program | got really excited
about the potential for us to be able to catch and deter these thefts. Lots of people don’t
track or write down the serial numbers of their items so the idea behind these dots is that
you can adhere the dot to your items, each dot had a serial number associated with it.
You then take the serial number and register it online. If and when something is stolen
the police department will be able to find the microdot with a special light and then read
the serial number and return the lost items to the person. There are home Kkits available
and individual stickers for single items.

e Drug forfeiture funds are being used to cover this Anti-theft Dot Campaign. We are the
first agency in Alaska to go with these anti-theft devices.

e All agencies have their own set of fliers and equipment to be able to read the dots.

e Officers will also have the ability to check the dots and serial numbers from their smart
phones so they will be able to work with them while out on patrol or out on a scene.

e Spread the word and let’s get the public to get together so we can saturate the interior
with these Anti-Theft Dots.

e The kits are available for purchase at North Pole Archery which is located inside the city
limits.

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

Discussion

Councilman Claus asked Chief Dutra if the Smart 9-11 system updated yet.
Chief Dutra told him not that he has heard of.

Ms. Dawson asked how much the spray costs.

Chief Dutra told her our cost is $329 for 8 cans. He said he was unsure of the retail cost.

Fire Department, Chief Lane

e None

Director of City Services — William Butler

Mr. McGhee asked Mr. Butler about the snow plowing.

Mr. Butler told him they made the decision to hold off on the plowing because it was supposed
to snow some additional inches this evening. They should be plowing the roads right now. |
have driven around the city and do know that the roads are in bad shape.

Mr. McGhee asked if the customarily work at night or do they start during the day.

Mr. Butler said they typically work all day into the night till they are exhausted and then start
again the next day.

Mr. Smith thanked him for putting the notice on the web site about turning on the circulators but
will that notice go into the water bill and such.

Mr. Butler told him he had a notice that he is putting together to send out as well. It should go to
every household within the city limits.

Borough Representative

e None

City Clerk, Kathy Weber

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

e Many thanks to Tricia Fogarty for helping with inputting payroll this pay period and to
Stephanie DeCristo for helping with the minutes. The back to back meetings are very
difficult for me.

e Employees have the opportuning to sign up for the Flex System with TASC until
November 24", An email went out with information and | have already received a few
applications. For more info please contact my office.

e We continue to work on the newsletter for December and encourage anyone who has
information about things going on in the community to contact my office with dates and
information about your event.

e | will be out of the office from November 27" — December 5%,

ONGOING PROJECTS

e None

CITIZENS COMMENTS

e Dawn Murphy — Director of Finance for Explore Fairbanks. Last week she dropped off
some folders for you | hope you received them. She did include a bound copy of the
2016 Strategic Marketing Plan so the council can see their objectives for the year. Some
of those are: we are building a new responsive website and we are also pursuing main
land China as a growth market. We are also going to be hosting travel and trade
representatives that will be in the state attending the 2016 Go West Summit in February
and the Adventure Travel World Summit this September. We also have some funds
budgeted for the elders and youth in AFN which will be in Fairbanks in 2016.

Questions:

Mr. Smith asked Ms. Murphy if they were going to make a new YouTube video for Fairbanks
and North Pole.

She told him that they are still using the same video. The video was made with over 500 hours
of film and was costly but she is sure on down the road they will want to do another one.

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

OLD BUSINESS

ORDINANCE 15-17, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2.36
PERSONNEL CODE, SECTION .470 PAY.

Mayor Ward gave the introduction to the ordinance.

Questions

None

Public Comment

Mike Gendreau 1105 St. Nicholas Dr. — He stated that he truly does appreciate the dedication
and the loyalty that many of our city employees have. He doesn’t think there is any question that
we have a lot of outstanding employees in the city government. However he thinks this whole
issue needs to focus on what we can and cannot afford as residents and the city. If the 3% pay
increase continues we will end up paying some employees $11,000.00 / month. He stated it’s
not that he doesn’t think the employees deserve it but that the city can’t afford that. Government
spending is running rapid at all levels. Its unsustainable and it’s basically a ticking time bomb
ready to explode. A town of 2000 residents cannot and should not be asked to subsidize
unaffordable salaries for city employees. So is asking all the council members to vote no and be
fiscally responsible. He also stated he would like to see all city employees’ wages capped at the
20 year level and if an employee is not happy with what they are getting after 20 years then they
do have the right to retire and if they feel like they can move onto bigger and better things then
that’s fine as well. If you pass this proposal then you might as well increase sales tax and
property tax because the city can’t sustain those types of salaries.

Mike Praux 1015 Meadow Rue — He got a call about this Ordinance and was impressed that a
council member was encouraging public testimony so he thought he should come down and take
a look. He encourages the council to not pass this ordinance. As he was waiting he noticed
some things that were being cut from the budget and he noticed that the city was counting on a
state revenue sharing. That in his view is quite the risk itself. He said that there is a lawsuit that
the state is dealing with right now that will take funds and make them available for education
which means all the “handouts” the State gives out to little communities like ours will cease to
exist. He wanted to point out that there are already indications that the city budget is under stress
and that there are some significant risks that the revenue projections will not turn out as
expected. You should do what you can and not put yourself in a box by guaranteeing pay raises.
No doubt the employees are good employees but it is a difficult job to control expenses and such.
He agrees with the previous speaker about the budget not being sustainable. He doesn’t want the
people of North Pole to have to pay for their city government.

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

Questions

Ms. Holm thanked him for coming down and said if this is passed at the employees 30 year mark
they will be making over $10,000.00 a month and does that sound in line with what government
employees make, even at the state level, cause she has heard of “freezes” before.

Mr. Praux told her he doesn’t know specifically but it is pretty generous as far as the private
economy goes. When you are taxing people for government salaries then you need to be able to
hold the line because that pay is extracted by force.

Chief Steve Dutra 125 Snowman Lane — The 3% that is up is basically a house cleaning issue.
The council already debated and voted on this issue it just didn’t get done last time it was
discussed so he is not sure why people are now opposing it for those people about the 20 mark.
There aren’t many people on this list and it is quite the accomplishment to make it that far in the
first place. If you don’t want to pay for the services then cut the services, don’t cut the
employees that are being paid to do this job. I can’t hire people at some of the wages we had
before, cut them even lower and then not promise anything for longevity, that just makes it even
harder. You might as well put the number on the table of when they are going to leave, at some
point they will realize that their services and their value that has been trained into them over the
past 10 years is worth a pretty penny on the open market. This will entice them to change to
Alaska State Troopers or the Fairbanks Police Department. | repeat cut the services don’t cut the
pay. You are getting a lot of great services from all of our departments and you get what you
pay for. Budget cuts make this hard. The pay here used to stick and it used to be hard to find
employees. Now that it is at a reasonable level you are trying to tell us that you are going to cut
future promises that have been made to those of us that have stuck around just doesn’t seem fair.
We are looking for a unified pay scale. 20 years of employment is MORE valuable not LESS
valuable. With the years comes the experience. Get rid of the pay and you may as well say
goodbye to longevity and experience.

Questions

Ms. Holm asked Chief Dutra what services we can cut.

Chief Dutra told her she could reduce his department down to him if she wanted that is their
choice to make. How much money are you wanting to put on the table is the question that
should be asked. If you want only $500,000.00 going to the police department I can tell you
what you get for $500,000.00, things can be done with one person but what will you get with a
service of one? That variable is the decision of the council to decide. We need quality people
and cutting the wages isn’t the way to solve the problem. If the money is going to be lower than
lower the number of employees, don’t lower the wages.

Mr. Smith asked if this will take affect with the shift differential pay. He noticed that there was a
slight increase and is wondering if this will help that as well.
8

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

Chief Steve Dutra said it will not affect it.

Buddy Lane 110 Lewis St — There was an email that came out earlier today that stated a council
member is going to try and amend this to try and cap it at the 20 year mark and not give anyone
over 20 years a pay increase. So that is why we are all here tonight, not sure how many of you
received that email. We have pretty small salaries to start with. We have always had a struggle
at the starting and now it seems like there is at least one council member that wants to struggle
with the people that have been here for a while. Chief Dutra hit the nail on the head when he
said if you want good employees then you have to pay them and give them some longevity. The
people that have been around the longest have the best training; they know the city very well and
by capping things at 20 years doesn’t make sense. People in Tier I have to go to 25 years to get a
decent retirement so they would have to work here for 5 extra years without any type of pay
increase or incentive to compensate for cost of living increase. This 3% was built in back in the
1980s and it was not meant for cost of living, that 3% was meant for longevity. The cost of
living was given on top of that and even that hasn’t been given to employees in some time now
and you haven’t heard the employees gripe about that either. This is a unified pay scale, not a
less than 20 pay scale. It’s not very fair to them. Turnover costs the city money. It will take a
new employee about a year to get all the correct training and to have good faith in them that they
can make the decisions on their own. By having employees go somewhere else hurts the city
because you are losing experience and good people. What isn’t being taken into consideration
here is that the people that are reaching the top are going to start falling off. Those top rated
employees are going to go away and then the position will be replaced with people from the
bottom and so some of those wages are going to be cut in half and so there is no way to truly
predict what the expense of wages will be in four years. Let’s not punish the people for being
here for 20+ years.

Mr. McGhee asked for a point of order because not everyone had a copy or even knew about the
email that was sent out by one of the council members. He wanted to see a copy.

Jeff Coon 110 Lewis St - He has spent most of his life with the NPFD. He has worked there for
20+ years. He is also a consumer here in North Pole. He enjoys being in and a part of North
Pole. Yes, the city pays him but he thinks it’s important to know who your employees are and to
put a face to them. Most of the people that work for the city this won’t affect, I think there are
only 4 employees at the 20 year mark at the Fire Department. He is also in Tier Il and will not
be going anywhere until at least 25 years. The days of the 20 and 30 year employees may be
over cause the younger group of people are looking on to better wages, better benefits and better
working conditions.

Chad Rathbun 125 Snowman Lane - Stated he actually left one of the better jobs to come back
to North Pole because this is where he grew up and it’s a good place to be. The city employees
are well aware of the economic situation of the city which is why we didn’t put up much of a
fight when our medical contributions almost doubled. This 3% was talked about and vetted a
long time ago, it’s just an error and now it’s trying to be taken away from us. We have come a

9

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

long way as a city in getting, attracting and keeping good employees. Most of our solve rates
with the police department are up because of that. Better people come to work here and they
stay here. By cutting that off you will be contradicting what we have done over the last 10 years
and people won’t stay. He’s not sure where any of the figures are coming from because he is at
his 20™" year and he is well below the numbers that are being presented. There is no body in the
city that can go and make $130,000.00 a year and all of this information is available to you.

Jed Smith 125 Snowman Lane — He stated he has worked for the city for almost 5 years now.
Before that he spent about 15 years working in the private sector. My experience in the private
sector has mainly consisted of construction, commercial fishing, and customer service. In the
private sector if you are intelligent and a hard worker then you are a valuable employee. In the
private sector you have the ability to determine your worth as long as you deserve it. In small
government that is not the case. Yes there are opportunities for improvement but doing the
training and paying for the schooling to make the extra step is much harder. This 3% that is
being requested is a big deal and the people need it. To take this away would be highly offensive
and insulting. Don’t take the people that have been here the longest and tell them that they aren’t
worth as much as the new people that are coming in.

Sharon Beaman 2540 Honeybee Lane - She stated that she is not a government employee but
that she does agree with Chief Dutra and the city employees that experience matters. It’s a small
percentage and we need to keep their experience. She knows that the city will be struggling with
things to make ends meat but experience does matter. The cost of hiring and training new
employees is terribly expensive. She would much rather see the services shrink to have that
experience aboard.

Questions

Ms. Holm asked if an employee that makes $7700.00 a month at year 20 and almost $11,000.00
a month at year 30 sounds reasonable.

Ms. Beaman said she didn’t know what the average is but that she would personally like to see
the government wages equal the private sector wages. It might not be fair but if that is what has
been agreed to and that’s what is in the contract, then the honorable thing to do is live up to that.
They do need pay raises and they do need to be subsidized for their experience.

John McGilvary 3371 Choke Cherry Ct — He is a Captain for the North Pole Fire Department.
There was a gentleman that had a heart attack today and he didn’t have to wait an hour for an
ambulance unlike in some other places. He feels this is a pretty good service that the city
provides. He is at about the 10 year mark on the pay scale and is nowhere near the dollar
amounts as far as pay goes that was previously stated. In the meantime he works a second job
teaching EMT classes and that keeps him from qualifying for WIC and food stamps. He would
propose that it would be in the city’s best interest to have longevity for its employees. Those are
10

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

the people that are here for the community, who care and who provide the services needed.
That’s one of the great things about this city, the employees DO care.

Chad Heineken 110 Lewis St — He is also a Captain from the North Pole Fire Department, one
of our employees. Just to give some perspective we are talking about some very high numbers at
the end of the fence. I’'m pretty sure those numbers are a Director position a Chief Position at the
20 year mark but to give perspective of what people go through to get to that mark right now we
can’t hardly put people to work because our wages start so low. He recently had a conversation
with a volunteer that was talking about maybe someday working for NPFD. This volunteer
looked at the pay scale and said it’s kind of hard cause they have daycare that subsidized by the
state, section 8 housing, they looked at the wages they would make as a starting employee and
are saying I can’t go to work for NPFD. They can’t afford it. Those of us who take these jobs
are struggling just like everyone else. We struggle for years to get the experience and are now
being told they may not compensate for our time. It’s a little bit insulting.

Questions

Ms. Holm told Mr. Heineken that the $7700.00 is the average of all the city employees and what
they will make at 20 years. So the average for a 20 year employee would be $93,000.00 for a
year.

Mr. Heineken stated that if you have an employee that has been around for that amount of time
then they are wanted employees. You can’t just come across someone with the type of work
experience. If you can hold on to these people with this type of experience then its way worth
what you are paying them compared to letting them go and bringing in someone with little to no
experience that doesn’t know the town. Who do you really want running these departments? Do
you want people that are brand new to the industry or do you want people that have been there,
seen that, and done that. When it’s your life on the line do you want a new guy or do you want
the experienced guy.

Daniel Turner 110 Lewis St — He is one of the new guys everyone is talking about, he stared
with the city in May. He had applied to many jobs and NPFD were the ones who decided to hire
him. One of the best decisions he has had in his life. It’s the best department and city to work
for, he is ecstatic about this job. Now the starting pay for a new firefighter is not that good but
one of the things he really likes about the city is the ability for promotion and steps up for raises
in the future. That makes him excited to want to spend his whole career here and learn from all
these experienced people. All of us employees do what we can to give back to the community as
well. It excites him to say that he can have a 25-30 year career here.

Bill Bellant 2640 LisaAnn Dr — He is a sergeant with the NPPD. He is not at the 20 year mark
yet but is close. He agrees with Chief Dutra. We have exceptional employees within the city.
The Fire Department is known as the local heroes, the police department has solved some pretty
tough cases in the past couple of months, our public works department just got a big article in the
11

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

paper about the good stuff they do for the city, and the utility department won an award last year
for the quality of our drinking water. All of this is because of the employees. You as elected
officials are a voice of the people and are supposed to do what is in the best interest of this city
and he respects that and appreciates that but they are also the voice for us as the employee. So
basically this whole issue comes down to do you want to keep us around or do you want us to go
somewhere else. This stuff that we are talking about now keeps us here; we choose to stay here
because we like it here and because we have this incentive to stay. He has seen many council
members’ come and go in his 16 years and all of them had stood behind their employees. He
hopes to see that is what happens here today as well.

Mr. McGhee moved to Adopt Ordinance 15-17, An Ordinance amending Title 2, Chapter
2.36 Personnel Code, Section .470 Pay

Seconded by Mr. Smith

Discussion

Ms. Holm stated that she did send out a few messages earlier today and sorry for not giving
everyone enough time to scramble. She stated that her concern is that the budget is not
sustainable. The designated funds are not coming back because employee salaries increase so
fast. 3% is a huge amount. This is it, this is the only idea she has. How are we going to fund a
budget for 4 years?

Mayor Ward had Chief Dutra pull put a spreadsheet on the overhead projector that let everyone
see that actual city pay scale so people could better visualize and refine their figures.

Ms. Holm asked how often officers start at a step higher then 1

Chief Dutra said if they have no experience at all then they get hired at a step 1. If they are
coming in with some previous experience then they will get 1 step for every 2 years of service.

Ms. Holm said that we have some wonderful officers but how much is a position actually worth.
Experience is NOT priceless. She wants to make a motion to change the 3% to 1%. This is not
using common sense. It’s not an attack on employees; it’s just are we really going to pay an
employee $10,000.00 a month when they get to a certain point.

Mr. McGhee called point of order.

Ms. Holm made a motion to strike out the 3% and put in 1%

Motion failed due to lack of a second.

12

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

Discussion

Ms. Holm said she would like to make a motion to after 20 steps to strike the 3% and leave it at
2% increase annually

Ms. Holm made a motion to remove the 3% after 20 years and bring it back down to 2%
annual increase.

Motion failed due to lack of a second.
Discussion

Mr. McGhee said he has heard a lot of good testimony tonight and a lot of dryer testimony about
what it is going to cost the city to maintain the upper personnel. His encouraging word is what
he sees the city doing is growth. He doesn’t want to live in this idea that we as a city are going
downhill and he doesn’t believe we are. He doesn’t see the economy failing and he isn’t
concerned with this raise. He said the employees are worth every penny we pay. If you ever
have needed their services then you know it. He supports the 3% as stated.

Mr. Smith recalled last year’s budget and said that they had different scenarios. He stated that he
likes what they have before them and what was presented to the council this evening. He is in
favor of the 3%.

PASSED

Yes: 5 — Claus, Dawson, McGhee, Smith, Ward
No: 1 - Holm

Absent: 1 - McCarthy

ORDINANCE 15-21, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
AMENDING TITLE 2, ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL, SECTION 2.12.350
COUNCIL COMPENSATION

Mr. McGhee gave the introduction to this ordinance. He brought this ordinance forward because
he feels like the council has never been properly compensated. In this last 2 election years he
has noticed it’s very hard to get people to step up and be on the council. This job is tough and
sometimes aggravating and the people should be correctly compensated. This is to take place in
2017.

13

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

Public Comment

Mike Gendreau 1105 St. Nicholas Dr. — He recognizes that Mr. McGhee has put in a lot of
time over the years and he hasn’t always agreed with him but he does think that this ordinance is
very reasonable. He supports the ordinance.

Mike Praux 1015 Meadow Rue — Stated this is interesting being as it follows the last ordinance
and discussion. He stated that he doesn’t disagree with this ordinance.

Buddy Lane 110 Lewis St. — He agrees with the ordinance and supports it.

Steve Dutra 125 Snowman Lane — He supports this.

Mr. McGhee moved to Adopt Ordinance 15-21 of the City of North Pole, Alaska amending
Title 2, Administration and Personnel, Section 2.12.350 Council Compensation

Seconded by Ms. Dawson

Discussion
None

Mr. Claus moved to amend Ordinance 15-21 of the City of North Pole, Alaska amending
Title 2, Administration and Personnel, Section 2.12.350 Council Compensation by
removing line 42, 43, 44

Seconded by Mr. McGhee
Discussion

Mr. Claus stated that this has to do with PERS. The way the original ordinance was written
council members shall be entered into the PERS system. He is 68 and is in for a 3 year term; he
doesn’t want to take advantage of PERS and would like to NOT be entered into that system.

Mayor Ward stated that they did actually contact PERS and that we as a city cannot actually add
anyone else in that aren’t already in the system. Thank you.

PASSED
Yes: 6 —Holm, Smith, Claus, McGhee, Dawson, Ward
No: 0
Absent: 1 - McCarthy
14

Minutes
November 9, 2015



Regular City Council Meeting
November 9, 2015

7:00 p.m.

On the Ordinance 15-21 as amended

PASSED

Yes: 6 —Holm, Smith, Claus, McGhee, Dawson, Ward
No: 0

Absent: 1 - McCarthy

NEW BUSINESS
None

Mr. McGhee moved to recess into Executive Session to discuss employee wages issues with
the North Pole Police Department

Seconded by Mr. Smith

COUNCIL COMMENTS
None

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:27 p.m.
Seconded by Ms. Holm
The regular meeting of November 9, 2015 adjourned at 9:27 p.m.

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City
Council on Monday, December 7, 2015.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk

15

Minutes
November 9, 2015



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

2016
PROPOSED BUDGET

Appendix 2016 A per Ordinance 15-19

125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, Alaska 99705
www.northpolealaska.com




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

ANNUAL BUDGET

OF THE

CITY OF NORTH POLE

FOR

CALENDAR YFEAR 2016

BRYCE WARD
CITY MAYOR

TRICIA FOGARTY
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

KATHY WEBER
CITY CLERK/HR MANAGER




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

City of North Pole, Alaska
2016 Proposed Budget

Table of Contents

YoV SR 1Y [1S1T= o [ U P PO PR PPRO

Appropriations Ordinance
City of North Pole budget ordinance 15-19 ........cciiviiiiiiii e
Introduction

City Organizational Chart.............oeuie s e e e e e e e

2016 DepartmMent DIFECIOIS. .. ... .u et it ettt e e e e e e eeeaee

2016 Mayor & Council MembErs. .......ccoe i e
2016 Regular Scheduled Council Meetings.........coevueviiiiiiiiii i e
Political GeographiC INfO....... ..o e
NOIN POIE HISTOIY ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e
Historical Sales Tax & Mill RateS. .........c.oieii i e e
INVESTMENTS ...e e e e e e
LoNg term debt .. ...

2016 PERS Relief Summary Statement ..........coveiiiiiiiii e e

Overview of All Funds.......coooiiiiiiiiin

Expense Variance — General & Utility Funds ..o

Operating Expenses — General & Utility Funds ..............ccccoviiiii i,

Operating Revenues — General & Utility Funds

11
12
14
15
17
18
24
25
27
28

29



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

City of North Pole, Alaska
2016 Proposed Budget

General Fund
General Fund Narrative
Revenue

General FUND REVENUE ... ..o et e e e e e e e e,

Administration
Narrative — City Clerk ... e
Narrative — FINANCE ...t e e e e et e e e e e
AdMINIStration EXPENSES ....uu it ee e et et et e e e eae e e ae e e ae e
Professional Services
N T =LA Y

Professional ServiCes EXPENSES. .. ... ue e ie e e eie e e e re e aeeae e

Police
Narrative — Chief STEVE DULIA ..o e e e e e

POLICE DEPL. EXPONSES. .. et ettt e e e e e e e e et e e e e

Fire
Narrative — Chief Buddy Lane.........ccoi i

FIre DEPt. EXPENSES ...ttt et e et e et e et e et e e e e e e

Public Works
Narrative — Director of City Services, Bill Butler..................ccooiiiiii i,

Public WOrks Dept. EXPENSES ... ..uii et e e e e e e e e

30

32

33

35

37

39

40

41

52

54

56

58
60



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

City of North Pole, Alaska
2016 Proposed Budget

Major Enterprise Funds

Narrative — Director of City Services, Bill Butler ...

Summary by Department ........coooiun i

Water

Utility Dept. Water REVENUE ... e e e e e e e e
Utility Dept. Water EXPeNnSe .......ccovvuiiiiiiiiiiie e

Utility Fund Water Reserves (Fund 25)............cooooiviiiiiennnn,

Sewer

Utility Dept. SEWEr REVENUE ...ttt et e e e e e e e e e
Utility Dept. SEWer EXPENSE ......veieie e
Utility Fund Sewer Reserves (Fund 27) .......cccooveieieiiiniennes

Water Sewer Capital Projects .........c.oovveviiii i,

Debt Service

Fund 04 (Assessments) Narrative..........ovveveevievie e ee i ienienans

FUND 04 (ASSESSIMENTS) ...t ee e et et eeeveten et et e e e e e eae eae e een e en e ens

62

65

66

67

71

72

76
77

78

79



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

City of North Pole, Alaska
2016 Proposed Budget

Building Department

Narrative — Director of City Services, Bill Butler ..o,

Building Department Revenues and EXPenses........cccvvvvvveivevneeneannnn.

Non-Major Funds

Category DeSCriPlION. ...ttt e et e e e e e
FUund 16 (Fire Department) ... ....c.ueeuee it e e e e e e e e e e e e eaaens
Fund 21 (ABADE- Federal Forfeitures)..........c.oooviiiiiiiiiiiinneenn
Fund 22 (AHSO- Traffic Officer)........ccooviiiii i
Fund 23 (BYRNE JAG-Drug OffiCer).......coooviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e
Fund 24 (ABADE- State Forfeitures) ..........coocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Fund 31 (Capital Projects General Government).............cccoovvenennn.

Fund 33 (IRS - FOrfEItUres) ....ouveie it e e e e

FUund 36 (IMPoUNd LO) ....vee e e e e e e e e e e eeenes

Community Purpose Funds

Category DeSCrIPIION. .. ...ttt e e e e et e
Fund 18 (NP Community Ice RINK) ..o
Fund 20 (North Pole Festival)..........couiiii e e
Fund 32 (Itadori- SiSter City) ....vvvve e e e e e e

a0 R SR (=TT I I )

Reserve Funds

80

83
84
85
86
87
88
89

91

92

93
94
95
96

97



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

City of North Pole, Alaska
2016 Proposed Budget

Category DesCriptiON. .. ....c.ve it et it e e e e ee e e e eie e eee. 98

Fund 50 (Fleet FUNd- FIre) .....vueie e e e e e e e e e e 99

Fund 51 (Fleet FUNd- POLICE) .....cove it e e e e e e 100
Fund 52 (Fleet FUN-ADMIN) ..o e e e e e e e e 101
Fund 53 (Fleet Fund- PUBIIC WOIKS) ....ovveiieie e e 102
Fund 54 (General Government Capital Projects Reserve) ..........ccoovvevviiienennns 103
Fund 55 (Fleet Fund — ULIHILY)......oe oo e e e e ea s 104

Fund 56 (Health Insurance FUNd) ..o e e e 105



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

Fax:

City Hall
907-488-2281
907-488-3002

Mayor
907-488-8584

City Clerk
907-488-8583

Police
Department
907-488-6902

Fire
Department
907-488-2232

Utilities
907-844-6111

Director of
City Services
907-488-8593

Finance
907-488-8594

CITY OF NORTH POLE

125 Snowman Lane « North Pole, Alaska 99705-7708
E-mail: mayor@northpolealaska.com « Website: www.northpolealaska.com

Honorable North Pole City Council,

It is my duty and pleasure to present to the Council and North Pole city residents the
Mayor’s 2016 proposed budget. As is required by GASB our budget is balanced and
reflects our best projections for revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year.

Overall the City is healthy and has been stable. Sales tax revenues are healthy, averaging
4% or more of an increase annually. We are expecting 2016 sales tax to be much the
same. Construction of the gas distribution system in 2015 helped to spark some of the
new interest in the North Pole area. Although there is no gas in the line yet many
businesses and residents are anxiously awaiting its arrival. Areas of concern for the city
still revolve around the Flint Hills Refinery closure and the impact devaluation has had on
the City of North Pole property tax base.

2015 saw a significant reduction in property tax revenue, primarily from the devaluation
of the refining units at the Flint Hills Refinery (approximately 20%). The facility has
been repurposed to serve as a terminal and currently operates as such. The distillation
towers are still intact and supposedly the facility is still for sale. Significant challenges to
running the refinery include: the high cost of energy; the premium charged for Alaska
North Slope crude vs. other crudes; and quality bank values as determined by the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). The City is continuing to be engaged with our
local legislators and the Governor’s office to address any regulatory issues impeding the
ability for these important industries to operate in our community and state.

In 2016 we are expecting another adjustment to our property tax rolls. However, this time
instead of decreasing we are expecting a slight increase. Petro Star, now the only
operating refinery in the interior, is constructing an asphalt distillation plant to make the
asphalt oil needed for paving projects. This project is expected to bring in more than 20
million dollars in value to the tax base. Not all of the facility will be constructed by
December 31% of 2015 which is the cutoff for determining value for the next year.
However, it is expected to be fully operational in May of 2016.

Due to the loss of revenues from the Flint Hills Refinery devaluation, I am proposing that
we suspend the fleet fund and capital projects fund transfers for one year. Suspension of
the reserves transfers is only intended to be a short term fix as we focus on development
of our local economy, one way of which is to not raise taxes or adjust currently provided
services. Implementation of our strategic plan is also a critical part of the City’s
responsibility to be intuitive with our residents.

The City of North Pole’s 2016 Budget is the third budget since institution of the Vehicle
Fleet Funds and the Capital Projects Fund. It is also the second year of the newly created
Health Care Fund. These funds continue to grow and add to the fiscal stability of the city



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

by aiding in our available cash flow. As our cash balance grows, it not only improves the
stability of the City, but it also requires that new investment policies be established to
ensure that we are garnering an appropriate return on our assets.

Administration is creating a new full time position to perform the archiving work as
required by the Sulfolane litigation the City is involved in. It is expected that we will
have to process and catalog a million pages of documents during this litigation. This new
position will primarily be focused on working with the attorney’s office through the City
Clerk to manage and catalog all case related documents. The archiving position may also
perform other duties. However, all time related to the litigation will be tracked for
potential reimbursement to the General Fund balance.

In late 2015 we will be bringing all departments under our existing IT contract with
Alasconnect IT Services and terminating the administration contract with Tekmate.

| Please note the increased amount for dispatch services provided by the City of Fairbanks.
| We are now in the second year of a three year stepped increase to reflect the cost of
providing this service.

There are several new additions to our annual budget. To begin, per discussion with the
auditors, we are removing the PERS relief accounts from our budget. As per GASB, we
have to show the PERS relief on our financials but it is not productive to show it in the
budget. We have included a PERS relief summary page to show the PERS relief
allocation per department and City total (expected). We have also included a Funds
overview summary, which gives a picture of all funds budgeted in this document (please
note that these budgets also include inter fund transfers that may elevate the actual
revenue or expenditures). We have also changed the format of our budget ordinance page
to better explain the budget revenues and expenditures for all funds.

It is my hope that the 2016 budget is easy to read and transparent. Staff and [ have done

our best to ensure that adequate and informative information is provided in the budget
document to help the council and residents understand how City finances are allocated.

Respegﬁ,ﬁyll Y,

g

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

WN -

o1

o

10
11

12
13
14

15
16
17

18
19

20

21
22

23
24
25
26
27

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced: November 2, 2015
2" Reading: November 9, 2015

Adoption & Final Reading: December 7, 2015

CITY OF NORTH POLE
ORDINANCE 15-19

AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL
ESTABLISHING THE 2016 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET AND
LEVYING THE MILL RATE

WHEREAS, pursuant to City of North Pole Home Rule Charter Section VI the Mayor has
proposed an operating budget with anticipated income and expenditures of the City during the
next fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 4 Revenue and Finance Chapter 25 the Mayor has proposed
capital and vehicle fleet- reserve fund budgets for the City and City Utility ; and

WHEREAS, The City of North Pole operates a water and sewer utility through an enterprise
fund and thus the mayor has proposed an operating and capital budget for the Utility with
anticipated income and expenditures of the City during the next fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, The City of North Pole has established budgets for the City Debt Service, Non-
Major and Community Funds that are outside of the general operating, capital and vehicle fleet-
reserve budgets; and

WHEREAS, The Budget is a living document that needs to be adjusted as needed to reflect
actual conditions; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:

Section 1. This ordinance is of a special nature and shall not be included in the North Pole Code
of Ordinances.

Section 2. There is hereby appropriated to the 2016 General Fund Operating Budget (Fund 1)
from the following sources of revenue for the City of North Pole in the amount indicated to the
departments named for the purpose of conducting the business of said departments of the City of
North Pole, Alaska, for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2016 and ending December 31,
2016.

Revenue Source Mayor Council
Recommended Appropriation
Taxes: Property 895,000
Taxes: General Sales 2,909,999
Taxes: Alcohol 264,500
Taxes: Tobacco 162,500
Taxes: Hotel- Motel 22,500
Taxes: State collected Shared Taxes 50,000
Fees: Licenses, fee schedule 134,750




City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced: November 2, 2015

2" Reading: November 9, 2015

Adoption & Final Reading: December 7, 2015

Contracts: FNSB, ARMY COPRS 502,000
Citations: Current and Prior Year 91,000
Fire: Other 2,500
Police: Other 1,000
State: Revenue Sharing-Assistance 171,000
Interest 2,750
Other: Miscellaneous 20,000
Grants: Small non-capital grants 25,000
Intergovernmental Transfers 62,585
Total 5,317,357

28

29

30  Section 3. There is hereby appropriated to the 2016 General Fund Operating Budget (Fund 1)

31

expenditures for the City of North Pole in the amount indicated.

Department Expenditures Mayor Recommended Council Appropriated
Administration 600,472
Professional Services 357,750
Police Department 1,839,575
Fire Department 1,895,174
Public Works 624,386
Total 5,317,357
32
33
34  Section 4. There is hereby appropriated to the 2016 Major Enterprise Operating and Capital

35  Budget from the following sources of revenue for the City of North Pole Utilities in the amount
36 indicated to the departments named for the purpose of conducting the business of said Utility
37  Departments of the City of North Pole, Alaska, for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2016
38  and ending December 31, 2016. A Major Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations that
39 are financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise.
Mayors Council
Recommendations Appropriations
Fund # | Description Revenue | Expenditures | Revenues | Expenditures
2 Utility Fund Water 609,853 609,853
2 Utility Fund Sewer 607,302 607,302
25 Utility Water Reserve 176,165 176,165
27 Utility Sewer Reserve 937,017 937,017
3 Utility Capital Projects 2,391,000 2,391,000
55 Utility Fleet Reserve 22,500 22,500
Total 4,721,337 4,721,337
40
41
42
43

44




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

45
46
47
48
49

50
51
52
53
54

55
56
57
58
59
60
61

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced: November 2, 2015

Adoption &

2" Reading: November 9, 2015
Final Reading: December 7, 2015

Section 5. There is hereby appropriated to the 2016 North Pole City Budget revenue and
expenditures for the following capital and vehicle replacement-reserve funds in the amount
indicated. The following Funds are committed by Ordinance and can only be used for the
specific purpose as defined by City Code.

Mayors Council
Recommendations Appropriations
Fund # | Description Revenue | Expenditures | Revenues | Expenditures
50 Fire Fleet Res 0 0
51 Police Fleet Res 0 0
52 Admin Fleet Res 0 0
53 Public Works Fleet Res 0 0
54 Capital Projects Res 0 0
Total 0 0

Section 6. There is hereby appropriated to the 2016 North Pole City Budget revenue and

expenditures for the following Non-Major Funds in the amounts indicated. Non-Major Funds
are established to finance a particular activity and are created from receipts of designated and
restricted funds.

Mayors Council
Recommendations Appropriations
Fund | Description Revenue | Expenditures | Revenues | Expenditures
5 Building Dept. 312,500 312,500
16 Fire Fund 0 0
21 ABADE- Dept Justice 110,000 110,000
22 AHSO 0 0
23 Bryne JAG 35,000 35,000
24 ABADE- State Forfeitures 8,500 8,500
31 Capital Projects- Gen Gov. | 780,741 780,741
33 IRS Forfeitures 34,000 34,000
36 Impound Lot 25,000 25,000
Total 084,741 984,741

Section 7. There is hereby appropriated to the 2016 North Pole City Budget revenue and
expenditures for the following Debt Service Fund in the amounts indicated. The Debt Service
Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general
obligation bond and special assessment debt principle, interest and related cost for issuance that
are not accounted for elsewhere.

Fund

Description

Mayor
Recommendation

Council
Appropriations

Revenue

Expenditures

Revenues

Expenditures

Assessment Fund

241,965

241,965




City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

62
63
64
65

66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced: November 2, 2015

2" Reading: November 9, 2015

Adoption & Final Reading: December 7, 2015

| Total |

[ 241,965 | 241,965

|

| |

Section 8. There is hereby appropriated to the 2016 North Pole City Budget revenue and
expenditures for the following Community Purpose Funds in the amounts indicated. Community
Purpose Funds are established to finance a particular activity or event and are created from
receipts of designated funds.

Mayors

Recommendations

Council
Appropriations

Fund | Description Revenue | Expenditures | Revenues | Expenditures
18 NP Community Ice Rink 10,962 10,962
20 Festival 8,500 8,500
32 Sister City 0 0
35 Bed tax Fund 90,000 90,000
Total 109,462 109,462

Section 9. Supplemental: See appendix 2016 A for the budget breakdown of revenues and
expenditures per individual account line.

Section 10. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective January 1, 2016.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this
7" day of December, 2015.

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

PASSED
Yes:

No:
Absent:




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

MAYOR

CITY COUNCIL

CITY ATTORNEY CITY CLERK/HR
[

ARCHIVING
- CITY SERVICES
| Deputy Chief Admin Asst l .
Evidence Custodian |—| POLICE LT. |—| Detective . . | | A/P, Bus Lic
Dispatcher Public Works Utilit

. : y

Admln ASSt. | Acsahltft B SHIFT C SHIFT Supervisor Supervisor
ABADE P Capt Capt . . | |
PW Asst. - -
| PW Asst. Utility Asst Utility Operator

DAY SHIFT SWING SHIFT | | GRAVE SHIFT Lt. Lt.. Lt.

SGT SGT SGT

A Shift B Shift C Shift
| | | Engineer Engineer Engineer Building Dept
Police Officer | |Police Officer | [Police Officer Utility Billing
A/R
RESERVES Volunteers Volunteers Volunteers

Created by: Kathy Weber
October 21, 2014



& AT —
—T —— bt — S| - ]

0 o...:tgqj . _ — { 1 I e T
L 1S V11304 | | ]nl_,[l_ 8 HARAL b 3
A= i e b 1 AL

—o S [ _| =gl Po a ﬂ:‘ 3 J+ tJrlI 11 _ ruﬂuuﬂ ...I.w|.

T CTTTITT—1 - ....[T..W\ _
o _ _ lLH.H.H_Tr . hh_ IV “-_.ﬂl_ rJ.J
S~ .J /0 o —_— n_”

1

i
I
?
T
\\
LYLE AV
—_|

.f
l

_ " . < e ag 3039 ||| %&. ..|

L} — & >, Y —d .||J|| _
T o | | | s Q;- H. i~ ..I.IrLl
| I T Q¥ 88IDIV INITIdId | _ au 8330V uL.- ~ El a3 aussaoov u-z.-u.:._ et 1|I.H o _
— ———11 = | I 53 B J . @a ) ¥
=53 _so..-uooul VUV e 77 — - | ol o i W R L O ‘&4 |
LA A _ Yo . ! . €= % \ [ & 4 T 7
SR T8 av awolsaau au uzo.-unm.. SO \\JI_ P L ug x<.p<o..l_|u!m V7 :L, .ﬂUI._nJUTt _Qb _Hﬁf_ )
2 v ._.h._ JF \ et 1 T m - " el ! n.l._.r... [ __ [ L nlro |A|n-...._r.t\.., .l.‘nl». W LL[_l\“- pt ¥ nu h\\r._.,
A prd | - T = - LA | | rr_.._. R % .= ===y . ""UH.H‘ 1A~ i i [
WA e Q=F | ai-——teuxaNno—=2_— | 8 u a — < &/
S e T L.l @ | = | N y o S _ B\ N u
LN~ —Y Tyt G o s £ o S A S S S ol e 7 \ :Hmi Sd S @/ .
T T8 - 0§ 3 T.I“ =l A 1 | " B S - & 24 - o =
/ r.hhal.llll.l.l =B " ) iyl = “ - o Lq_._.l.n LU 3= T L] "1 1 . 7 WI'—LM ._.... . "M gy
Y e m -~ % = Q- 40 NOgTIIUL |- I = Im —ar| YL
. { EE— —— E— i | ' | i A | | e | $ & B - T e
= -l “ 1 |m ul..Jl“ = e =t HUH_TI.I ~ r\f-.n\..l...u_:lr_ Tm s
—— = e = o . - FAEANE il a —ir—{ || y || = ™ |1 ll
li Te P S ITd |rr..|I.] AH e “ u FI’!_ = .M IMAQ M =
o (T T 2SIy a2 —ay T 74 0z
= | P {4 s@oz I8 ——s—— : / o a
i Sy Aqh e e e — m — oM HYN - =] 1;_\.,- o | Iww_n

] T[,Jtnt_ﬂﬁnﬁ_ﬂ, |
.L..lL.l..,_].":JLH.,‘ -nuz_s:u...oo- .ﬂ

I !
— P .| | =t | l.llwlI__ I.rl1+|1
e z..un.»mzo:f,lle_ - L (£7
: - ; ua wosaw 1.__

I.»H‘l_lh!ual.l.l |» ....|. MI,I|| *.ll[_... a+—¢g
\41. 4G SNANIA -
FA I..... | _

|

i

if

MOOSEWAL
7 1 J—
|
i
i
SHAROM RD |

|

|
L
7 YELLOWSTONE RD

L S = — | 4 S T —
—— = _ J—— . % L\
11— ”1 = m = i ﬂ __|I.1c __l..|r_ 1ln_.|,_ \) ILILTI 4_ ! ._ 7 _ (S _ .L;rf._.rﬂnnsh i3 A
——— — all— — oy L 1 i = T N el
7 DAWSON .._“_. ’ T ==t =au atqnmul .__nllql ~——au zon!tn@.l.l*lﬁl\o.lﬁlﬂm.n->-§- o awzne \_x =
e — ....... D n |_...I1. TL.|..w| § 00 N B .“” ‘ £ . «\.._L|‘F|L|‘_d vr : I||L. g - L......-L\.# 'r—ﬂ.4 ‘ ML ._ __ I\_ xqb.. )P‘”‘.FJJJJJI
g — | . I= .. ) | ot ; e. | .l:\«\\ 7 i _
X XKy m A BARNE =" =m" wral .___ L A MAA
m:.n_r 0 O T ST ‘A _uu.,f\_LlL..wH ALY A..,n\.\... ik r.rTF
o S-a. u B - = ..unud:\.,\ = 7 : O wir.i uo.p!!.crr
PN NS SR a2 e B [
SU- L& UT [ nauzn..li TV e r 20 | | __.:HH b —
a | 4 =] & Y & e el |
| - ua ¥3110. ua suh...o e Y &= 7 e )y = ==
1 e’ = _?l " S ' W A e LTS
T 1\ . /A v L by 18 MOMuVE

. — -

JLEY S S S SN ¥ YD 1) 27 9 lon
e — ¥4 JLNVD hou:# ¢
= = L o aNwu3 waaNwuE T T g il
.._.nn..zox:. .. J*

|
i
|
[
f
. lnotlmv

AN F= =P

o LN B 3 o~

|
n¥. 1

o™, ot S -
YT =N 1 1Tl

. IS MIOVAOAL TR = | A L n>..-ual.50h-4.

11l %,
T

1 §.i \
PLACK RD - PLACK RD -

| ! | ElLS

| S | S S [ -....r.lull I mu s

o
wiL
.\.
“h

/. TURNER DR

SEVOLYN DR ) |1 L&
. - A4 "

.u’.- .....I 7

Tk = v
\ Jad | M | | T | %%
Sy e aryrr FEEL e isllle \1% f00imvie a2 87 3] b i
— j~0- b .-ll,r g = == l_rlJ e e = RSN + 1Lk 111 T ¥
— — % w ;_Eo—.._& u|P 'Jc jm}u VUFZ.- _IU-—:Uhﬂghﬂ g\ Lurrr.rk. Ln“l... -.._m.ﬂ __1“ ‘.0% ﬂ.
el H 1l T r ﬂ | %
— | T o . ¥ 1 A .vA.._ i
[ & m
Q o
>

....._.wlk.[.jr Al 4 |+fi_..- amns..u. ~ ©°

I

I
1 i

1
I8
1

2=t W by :
M‘.mﬂ{ - .H,ww im.m s TTE ! A WL T _ 2 Oo.mmﬁumj =),
- =

<

~ E EIGHT
EV

b
PLACK RD
S\
*'{i A

BEULAMCT > °
0

|
|
¢

:
L
B3}~ |t &

ELV!IALVI
LI

{
| B
T |-

-]

©®

g

5&

NPHS BLVD NPHS BLVD
N ’\
|

F

= e _ >
w > . 0 Mol % . —
tae €l -0 . er m ?#Wr.l‘l. > S ;m... | | Ll &%
AR e TR e TN m.? sl | 2 m L%
&= BT 3 o2 Vo N\ T T ot | <teETies A | Fg
n ..w s ,.I & |.[..1[.M \ S YQ I t.”__-. _ o =z Hmmwm %%\1 - Ly
e P 51 48 | bl e \ 2 | | Al % , O o > [ 3™ E m_ Sl < (\%
ol G T\ T/ £ o $ 4
tlmls.u... ..Wu\ _ 4 B _.l.ﬁ [ > ,.rn\.-._..._ i = _ \0\.’ |
== -1 =T E N 8= R\ EEh ezt swgy e | L
1 _ i ¥ EES LA

- — d... 2l _MW e
hazs \ JUTTTLIT, ;- f | XES T i = . )
il € 8 7 T &P AV S =Y Lol
— 0’!. N % T il.«.it_m Tyt l T paxae lesinsaugy | -~ -
— 1 E ¥a Lumag ¢ et s Tl ms T - § e
|y Y = ...04“ ¥ D—— . - _I_I._m f T | 7l 7

i

Avg

_.’ e
N
i

. ’
[ .
Y ; -
| = P
. - 1Y
= = - " M 2 — uH / 1 “w ._:_J_J_l_,rJMm..._r T :
hw | gFrol s i Fi=iz&/ E CRPE] S STecqr | & L
& i TR + ot - NS B Bl N LA 22
] 0% 2 % Al i y %. [ ,.ﬂ%“.%u5 3 B m wﬂMME N Mv..vv \oﬂ a
. 2 & ¢ | £ £/ a7 = TunETE] &b - —a¥ ~
Sy 8818 V|3 F _IoFiacdiciie gLati o i :
.RHW.&!L.WWWNIW i g bbhhﬂﬂ.lﬂ&ak.n MMIL“;M [ S T T A% : “W,
™ Q —. < .l.“ S =l .\.. {of L Q/ un.‘l“ | { _.|... %\ .._\‘. { i
= 8 Fel—s7T"97 4 | “ 3 R 8. .uiui;.l F) = = _ P _ _ —
M el 81— $ -3 —1 | L4 _Mhhl#lilol‘ m_ _. =3 f | 4 _
1 AN ST A5t Lt & 4 . L o,
= - ° ; ' [ Py | —_
— m - Ma MUY minin —_— ﬂ.t... £ R.Q m-_ _ I == =N |L ; —
- vn-lun.r T | .vl__ " ¥ . .\_wlo " -~ fod -
o - o . - 1 R —
- “U ..-I<. | I_y | - - ._, io [ e — e I - o8
| VT . (I : _ —
=2 1T ] = 18 HONVY AX8 B -
o . ] ; 4 N, N o
- “_- h|h qﬂm-.—.—’oli‘..! — 1 o .,11l||.|]lr AVAMIXYL Iy ’ p— —— -
a — u .....n gl 5241-5:0 y— 1 _ T
11 4 P.Tr_| rﬁHHr!HH | I . .y "
© 17 /| B 1 _ N, M=l
| ) J I tew v € 1 o o
S - 8 o El>] LSS ENSS . _ / ) \ . L
i # M Fo < " : | | Seag a
o * xmnm . . = / / vy
] e ®_EO- @l | 1) {
¢ 18 33 P .4 T
S /] | T
| S §77 Gy o= \ $ . |
i YieT | ' H Wit — / e
* -?' I ] = o = 4 _ -
' O e - I8 n -
i 1/ T 4 [ L= ~ ~
T T .-. R = _._;__._ —m e ——— T - g - =
{1 ) ¢
T ) m 7 F 7 f
) P ~i
- [ ; - \ % o =
e 4 _.‘o‘ll.ﬁﬁ...uxl A I ~ 7 |
/] &8 Ml 7 o ‘
B | ¥ h___ — *‘. c.q. G
[ - il oo = ol

Ony
Y glj_ J
“be

—_— A8 SIWVr. L i =" ]
=1 ——
1 T -
— ||. —_— — -
...|...; e o |
» = e .
@ — M N e —
5 > A
o3 o —— o —
o - e y
a3 [ . y
£ 38 ” . — |
Sa ' a | = ,
z e J &L /
52 [ &/
© o/ :
...W. m m / } M—
O& x —— o
,x \@ — o -l o~



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE
2016
Department Directors

Director Mailing Address Phone

Mayor

Bryce Ward 125 Snowman Lane P: 907-488-8584
Term 10/12-10/15 North Pole, AK 99705 F: 907-488-3002
email: bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org C: 907-888-4444

Director of City Services
Bill Butler North Pole Utilities P: 907-488-8593
North Pole Public Works F: 907-488-3002

email: bill.butler@northpolealaska.org

North Pole Fire Department
Buddy Lane, Fire Chief 110 Lewis St.
North Pole, AK 99705

: 907-488-0444
: 907-488-3747

T O

email: blane@northpolefire.org

North Pole Police Department
Steve Dutra, Police Chief 125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, AK 99705

: 907-488-6902
: 907-488-5299

T O

email: sdutra@northpolepolice.org

Chief Financial Officer
Tricia Fogarty 125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, AK 99705

: 907-488-8594
: 907-488-3002

T O

email: Tricia.Fogarty@northpolealaska.org

City Clerk/HR Manager

Kathy Weber 125 Snowman Lane P: 907-488-8583
North Pole, AK 99705 F: 907-488-3002
email: kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org C: 907-388-2728

City of North Pole Website is located at: www.northpolealaska.com

Revised: October 21, 2014


mailto:bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org
mailto:bill.butler@northpolealaska.org
mailto:blane@northpolefire.org
mailto:sdutra@northpolepolice.org
mailto:Tricia.Fogarty@northpolealaska.org
mailto:kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org
http://www.northpolealaska.com/

City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE
2016
MAYOR & COUNCIL MEMBERS

Council Member Mailing Address Phone
Mayor
Bryce Ward 621 Holiday Rd (W)888-4444

Term 10/12-10/15

North Pole, AK 99705 (C)388-4830

email: bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org

Council Members
Elizabeth Holm
Term: 10/13-10/16

2454 San Augustine Dr. (H)488-6125
North Pole, AK 99705 (C)347-3797

Email: elizabeth.holm@northpolealaska.org

Santa Claus
Term: 10/15 —10/18

PO Box 55122 (C)388-3836
North Pole, AK 99705

email: santa.claus@northpolealaska.org

Kevin McCarthy
Term: 10/13 - 10/14

1051 Refinery Loop (H)590-0800
North Pole, AK 99705 (W)377-2678

Email: kevin.mccarthy@northpolealaska.org

Thomas R. McGhee
Term: 10/13 —10/14

1155 North Star Dr.
North Pole, Alaska 99705  (W)455-0010

email: thomas.mcghee@northpolealaska.org

Preston Smith
Term: 10/13 —10/16

PO Box 60882 (H)488-8824
Fairbanks, AK 99706

Email: preston.smith@northpolealaska.org

Elyse Dawson
Term: 10/15-10/18

547 Kit Blvd (H)520-221-1340
North Pole, AK 99705

Email: elyse.dawson@northpolealaska.org

City Clerk/HR Manager

Kathy Weber

125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, AK 99705 (W)488-8583

email: kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org (C)388-2728

(F)488-3002

City of North Pole Web Site is located at: www.northpolealaska.com

Revised: October 21, 2015



mailto:bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org
mailto:elizabeth.holm@northpolealaska.org
mailto:santa.claus@northpolealaska.org
mailto:kevin.mccarthy@northpolealaska.org
mailto:thomas.mcghee@northpolealaska.org
mailto:preston.smith@northpolealaska.org
mailto:elyse.dawson@northpolealaska.org
mailto:kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org
http://www.northpolealaska.com/

City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

2016 Regular Scheduled Council Meetings

January 4
January 19
February 1
February 16
March 7
March 21
April 4
April 18
May 2

May 16
June 6
June 20

¥ ok ok ok ok F ok ok F F *

July 5

July 18
August 1
August 15
September 6
September 19
October 3
October 17
November 7
November 21
December 5
December 19

$ % ok ok ok ok % % * * ok F

R o e R R R e R e — e

2016 City Holidays- Offices Closed

New Year’s Day Thursday
Martin Luther King Jr. Day  Monday
President’s Day Monday
Memorial Day Monday
Independence Day Friday
Labor Day Monday
Veterans Day Thursday
Thanksgiving Day Thursday
Christmas Day Friday
New Year’s Day Friday

Personal Holiday

January 1
January 18
February 15
May 30

July 4
September 5
November 11
November 24
December 26
December 30

“Where the Spirit of Christmas Lives Year Round”

125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, Alaska 99705
Tel:(907)488-2281 Fax:(907)488-3002
www.northpolealaska.com

11


http://www.northpolealaska.com/

City of North Pole

“Where the spirit of Christmas Lives Year Round”
Incorporated January 16, 1953
Home Rule City

POUMICALGEOGRAPHY
Expediaconriravels, The City of North Pole is a part of the Fairbanks North
5 “-\ Star Borough, Fairbanks Recording District, House
5 %%@ \ Plack Rd District 33 & 34, Senate District Q.
- 4 3
R"C"?amsfjn E.Wf ' North Pole is located 14 miles southeast of Fairbanks
SR "y o"'ﬂﬂhpfle _, Hurst Rd on the Richardson Highway in the Tanana River
+ PR F § Valley, 386 miles north of Anchorage, 2,,347 miles
o ‘\i ol north of Seattle, and 140 miles south of the Arctic
i Hﬁi Circle.  North Pole lies midway between Fort
S Wainwright Army Post and Eielson Air Force Base.
%\ 64 45° N Latitude, 147 21’ Longitude Section 09,
Eiz000|vicrosott|Gorp. @ 18080NavTechiand/on GOT, Inc. . TOOZE, Fairbanks Meridian.
SCHOOLS
North Pole Elementary School 525 Students- 250 Snowman Lane 488-2286
North Pole Middle School 661 Students — 300 East 8th Ave  488-2271
North Pole High School 760 Students - 601 NPHS Blvd 488-3761

LAND AREA: 4.1 square miles in city limits.

POPULATION: There are 2200 people in the North Pole City limits. In a 15-mile radius of the city, the
population is 32,000. A 2010 census reported 129 American Indian or Alaska Native, 129 Black or
African American, 136 Asian, 8 Asian/Pacific Islands and the remainder 1836 Caucasian or other.

TRANSPORTATION: The Richardson Highway and the Alaska Railroad pass through the city linking
the city to the rest of the state and Canada. There are five privately owned airstrips in the vicinity and
Fairbanks International Airport is nearby. Additionally, residents are served by the Borough Bus System
and Van Tran for senior citizens, and disabled residents.

TRAFFIC COUNTS: Alaska Department of Transportation reports 12,000 vehicles passing through
North Pole City limits daily.

ECONOMY: Major employers: Petro Star Refinery, Fairbanks North Star Borough School District,
Safeway, Wells Fargo Bank, Mt. McKinley Bank, Alaska USA Credit Union, United States Postal
Service, Santa Claus House, and the City of North Pole. There are a variety of fast food restaurants and
three mini-malls that provide a variety of services and goods.

STATE SALES TAX: 0

PROPERTY TAX: (2015) 3.5 Mills City of North Pole, FNSB 12.754 Mills

CITY SALES TAX: 4% (some exemptions) $8.00 maximum collected per sale. Tax collected from
businesses within the Corporate City Limits or any sales made within the Corporate City Limits.

HEALTH CARE: Dr. Marshall, family practice, North Pole Prescription Laboratory, Carr’s Pharmacy,
North Pole Chiropractic, North Pole Optical, North Pole Physical Therapy, North Pole Veterinary
Hospital and four dentists: Dr. Buetow, Dr. Eichler, Dr. Rodriguez, and Dr. Rhotan.

12



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

HOUSING: There are many of undeveloped lots with city water and sewer services available. Holiday
Heights provides affordable housing to senior citizens, which is not tied to income. HUD Housing
apartments are also available along with numerous private apartment and duplex rentals.

COMMUNICATION: KJNP (King Jesus North Pole) is a local AM/FM radio and television studio
providing religious and community broadcasts. Cable TV, telephone, pager and cell phone services are
available. The United Postal Service has a North Pole Branch. The North Pole Chamber of Commerce
operates a summer visitor center and Golden Valley Electric Association provides electrical service to
area residents.

SPORTS AND RECREATION: There are three parks with playground equipment within city limits.
Santa’s Seniors Center offers a breakfast service, weekly activities and meals for senior citizens. In close
proximity there are soccer, baseball and softball fields, hockey rinks, indoor, year round swimming,
biking, fishing and picnic facilities in the summer; cross-country skiing, dog mushing, and snow
machining in the winter. North Pole sponsors winter and summer festivals, a Christmas Light Decorating
Contest, and a Community Christmas Candle Lighting Ceremony.

CITY GOVERNMENT - The city is governed by a strong mayor and six council members. The City
Council meets the first and third Monday of each month. The City provides police protection with 14 full
time employees, fire protection with 14 fulltime employees and 25 volunteers, water and sewer service
with 3 fulltime employees and public works with 2 fulltime and 2 seasonal employees. In addition the
city employs a City Accountant, City Clerk/HR Manager, Director of City Services, Utility Billing/AR
Clerk and AP/receptionist.

CITY SERVICES: The North Pole Fire Department provides excellent fire and ambulance service to
area residents. Classroom facilities are available for public meetings in the fire station annex. North Pole
Police Department provides law enforcement and protection services with a fleet of cruisers, SUV’s and
bicycles. Our city streets are 90 percent paved, with excellent street maintenance and snow removal.
The Utility Department provides clear, clean, metered water to residents and businesses. The majority of
our residents enjoy an ISO rating of 3. City Hall provides Notary services and citizens can purchase
fingerprinting cards for employment purposes. Vacation house watch services are available through the
police department.

HISTORY: In 1944, Bon Davis homesteaded this area. Dahl and Gaske Development Company later
bought the Davis Homestead, subdivided it and named in North Pole. The name was selected to attract
the toy industry to manufacture articles made in “North Pole”. This endeavor failed to blossom, but
North Pole has continued to grow. There is continued interest to develop North Pole as a theme city,
“Where the spirit of Christmas lives year round”. Many streets bear holiday names: Santa Claus Lane,
Snowman Lane, Kris Kringle, Mistletoe, Holiday Rd., Saint Nicholas Drive, North Star Drive, Blitzen,
and Donnor. Streetlights are decorated in candy cane motifs and many buildings are painted with
Christmas colors and designs. The Santa Claus house, the “official” home of Santa Claus greets all
visitors who pass through the city on the Richardson Highway. Live reindeer and Santa Claus himself are
available for photographs year round. Each year the community kicks off the holiday season with a
candle lighting and tree lighting ceremony, and the opening of Christmas In Ice, an annual ice carving
event, the first Sunday in December.

SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS: North Pole Community Chamber of Commerce, North Pole Moose,
North Pole Lions, North Pole Rotary, North Pole Kiwanis, VFW, Santa’s Senior Center, Senior Housing
Authority, and North Pole Grange.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

\ CITY OF NORTH POLE
ﬁw’é@ In 1891 Congress enacted legislation for town sites

AT y to be laid out in Alaska under regulations specified
A SR o M by the Secretary of the Interior. The same

legislation made it possible for a person to obtain
160 acres outside town sites but only for trading and manufacturing purposes. This helped the growing
number of fish canneries, if no one else. Bon & Bernice Davis arrived in Fairbanks on April 7, 1944,
They rented a car and drove down the Richardson Highway. At 15-Mile, an abandoned part of the
original Richardson Trail led off into the timber along the west bank of 14-Mile Slough. They left the car
on the main road and walked along the trail from which the snow had been plowed to enable trucks to
haul cordwood. They walked for several hundred yards, stopping and looking. Finally, they topped,
looked and both spoke the same words at the same time — “This is it!!!”

The land lying west of the slough was covered with scrub trees and brush. Tall spruce grew
along the banks of the slough and on the land lying between it and the Pile-Driver Slough to the east.
They had been told that grayling and beaver were plentiful in both streams where a variety of waterfowl
made their summer homes. Moose, deer, wolves, fox, snowshoe rabbits, squirrels and spruce hen lived
on their homestead to-be.

Little did they dream that their undistinguished 160 acres of scrub trees and brush would ever be
more than just a homestead, much less that it would be called a city. Shortly after they obtained patent,
they sold John Owen and George Manley each a one-acre tract fronting on the Richardson Highway for
$500 an acre.

Among problems involved in starting a subdivision was selection of a suitable name. His
dilemma was solved when he learned that the National Board of Geographic Names had given the name
“Davis” to the switch built on his homestead when the railroad connecting Ladd Field and Eielson Air
Force Base was constructed in 1948.

Ernest Finnel and James Ford each had a homestead adjoining the west side of his. Though they
had filed about one year and a half after Bon Davis had left, the three received their patents almost at the
same time. Finnel and Davis had discussed subdividing and both of them began doing it in 1950. Ford
decided to keep his homestead intact.

With electrical power assured, their land became more in demand. Orland Carey bought the
north 40 acres of the Bon Davis homestead in November, 1951, and gave it the name of Sequoia
Subdivision. In February, 1952, Dahl and Gaske Development Company bought the Davis Subdivision
and the balance of the homestead, except for a few parcels.

Dahl and Gaske, who had bought the Davis homestead and subdivided it, thought if the
growing settlement there were named North Pole it would attract business. They reasoned that some toy
manufacturer might be induces to locate a plant there so his products could be advertised as having been
made in North Pole. Also, someone might start a Santa Land which would become a northern version of
Disneyland.

They approached Bon Davis to petition the United States District Court to change the name from
“Davis”, which had been the official name since 1949, to North Pole. Bon Davis thought that their idea
was far-fetched but acceded to their request. U.S. District Judge Harry Pratt held a hearing and issued a
decree making North Pole the official name.

When it was proposed that the two subdivisions be incorporated into a city known as North Pole,
residents of Highway Park rallied their forces and soundly defeated the measure at an election. They
wanted no part of North Pole, incorporated or otherwise.

Those living in North Pole clung to the idea of incorporation. Another election was held after the
proposed boundaries were reduced so that only the original Davis homestead and part of the one
belonging to James Ford were included. Incorporation carried at that election and North Pole became a
first-class city on January 15, 1953.

The first city council had five members: Everett Dahl, James Ford, Ray Johnson, Robert McAtee
and Con Miller. The council appointed James Ford as Mayor pro tem.




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE
HISTORY OF SALES TAX AND MIL RATE

DATE SALES TAX RATE MIL RATE
1953 0 3
1954 1 3
1955 1 3
1956 1 3
1957 1 3
1958 1 3
1959 1 3
1960 2 12
1961 2 12
1962 2 12
1963 2 12
1964 2 8
1965 2 8
1966 2 8
1967 2 7
1968 3 13
1969 3 11
1970 3 12
1971 3 12
1972 3 12
1973 3 12
1974 0 12
1975 S5&3 5.8
1976 3 5.8
1977 3 5.8
1978 3 5.8
1979 3 5.8
1980 3 5.8
1981 3 5.8
1982 3 5.8
1983 3 5.8
1984 3 5.8
1985 3 5.8
1986 3 3
1987 3 2
1988 3 2
1989 3 2
1990 3 2
1991 3 2
1992 3 2
1993 3 2
1994 3 2.35
1995 3 2.35
1996 3 2.3
1997 3 2.3

15



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE
HISTORY OF SALES TAX AND MIL RATE

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Al ARAARARPOVWILOVWLWW W W

w w w N

16



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

INVESTMENTS

In 2012, the City closed out three bank accounts that had monies for our three bond reserves (related to
assessments). We rolled that money ($163,645.80) into a —one-year CD, renewable in August.

The City has no other investments.

17



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE

LONG TERM DEBT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

USDA LOAN'92-06 - HIGHWAY PARK SEWER REVENUE BOND -

CONTACT: Mariela Figueroa
907-761-7779 fax 907-761-7793
mariela.figueroa@ak.usda.gov
DATES: Due on February 18 and August 18
ISSUE: 595,852.48
PAYMENTS: $18,482.50 September 1 and March 1
Principal and & Interest Amounts depend on date of posting by USDA
Electronically Debited from Central Treasury
GL ACCOUNTS: Principal - 02 00 00 2500 Note: this is budgeted in 02 00 00 6600
Interest - 02 12 00 6500
04 00007092 Assessments: Transfer Out
0200005901 WS Transfer In {principal amt)
0212005900  Sewer Transfer In (interest amt)
NOTES: There is no assessment for this bond. Payments are made out of Utility Fund.
The liability is booked because it is in an enterprise fund.
Ordinance 96-01
Sets up the issue to go to voters for approval.
Ordinance 98-01
Page 2 - Reserve Fund Requirement - $18,482.50
Page 7 - Section 11 - Revenues/Monies in Utility Fund are to pay 1) Operating Costs,
2) Principal and Interest on Bond, 3) Keep Reserve Fund for Bond
Page 8 - Amts in Reserve Fund are Pledged as Security for the Bond. City may
withdraw from the Reserve Fund to pay Bond if Utility Revenues are
insufficient to pay the Bond.
PRINCIPAL INTEREST
Year Payment GL Balance Year Payment Total By Year
2008 574,547.33
2009 4,362.81 570,184.52 2009 14,119.69 -
4,698.48 565,486.04 13,784.02 27,903.71
2010 4,693.29 560,792.75 2010 13,789.21 -
4,922.92 555,869.83 13,559.58 27,348.79
2011 4,819.16 551,050.67 2011 13,663.34
5,158.42 545,892.25 13,324.08 26,987.42
2012 5,064.37 540,827.88 2012 13,418.13
5,405.55 535,422.33 13,076.95 26,495.08
2013 5,321.67 530,100.66 2013 13,160.83
5,664.89 524,435.77 12,817.61 25,978.44
2014 5,690.49 519,110.12 2014 12,792.01
5,829.19 513,280.93 12,653.31 25,445.32
2015 5,971.28 507,309.65 2015 12,511.22
6,116.83 501,192.83 12,365.67 24,876.89
2016 6,265.92 494,926.90 2016 12,216.58
6,418.66 488,508.24 12,063.84 24,280.42

18



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE

LONG TERM DEBT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

USDA LOAN 91-08 - HIGHWAY PARK WATER ASSESMENT BOND - DISTRICT 2

CONTACT: Mariela Figueroa
907-761-7779 fax 907-761-7793
mariela.figueroa@ak.usda.gov
DATES: Due on June 20
ISSUE: $300,000 @ 4.75%
PAYMENTS: $16,890.00 Due on June 20
Principal and & Interest Amounts depend on date of posting by USDA
Electronically Debited from Bank 3 - Central Treasury
GL ACCOUNTS: Principal - 04 00 00 6600
Interest - 04 00 00 6500
NOTES: This is in a governmental fund, therefore, the liability is not booked.
Instead, by GASB rules, it is assumed that liability belongs to the governmental
entity as a whole and not just one fund. As opposed to long term debt in an
enterprise fund that is assumed to belong to just that one fund.
This assessment is for District 2
Payments are made out of Central Treasury.
Required reserve is held in a CD, along with the other bond reserves
In July 2004, City paid an extra $25,000
Revenue bond is a bond that receives payments only from revenues from a specified
revenue generating entity solely associated with the purpose of the bond.
Ordinance 02-03
Issue the bond for up to $300,000.
PRINCIPAL INTEREST
Year Payment Balance Year Payment Total by Year
2008 - 143,345.00
2009 10,081.08 133,263.92 2009 6,809.42 6,809.42
2010 10,559.92 122,704.00 2010 6,330.08 6,330.08
2011 11,061.53 111,642.47 2011 5,827.47 5,827.47
2012 11,586.96 100,055.51 2012 5,303.04 5,303.04
2013 12,137.33 87,918.18 2013 4,752.67 4,752.67
2014
2015 13,317.76 2015 3,572.24 3,572.24

19



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE
LONG TERM DEBT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

STILLMEYER STREET IMPROVEMENT GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND - DISTRICT 3

CONTACT: Kathleen Graves, Asst VP Ruth Hayes, Sr. Trust Administrator
206-667-8910 fax 206-667-8905 206-336-1615  fax 206-667-8905
kathleen.graves@bnymellon.com ruth.hayes@bnymellon.com
annamccully@bnymellon.com

DATES: April 22 Principal and Interest Due
Sept 1 Principal and Interest Due (three years beginning 2012)

October 23 Interest Due

ISSUE: 1,350,000.00 TAS 429186
Bank of New York - Mellon
April 1, 1994

PAYMENTS: Payments for principal and interest are fixed amounts according to payment

schedule.

GL ACCOUNTS: Principal - 04 00 00 6650
Interest - 04 00 00 6550

NOTES: This is in a governmental fund, therefore, the liability is not booked. Because it is

in a governmental fund, it is assumed that it belong to the governmental
entity as a whole and not just one fund. As opposed to long term debt in an
enterprise fund that is assumed to belong to just that one fund.
General Obligation Bond is a bond that is secured by the state/local government's
pledge to use legally available resources, such as tax revenues to repay the bond.
Payments are made out of Central Treasury assesment Fund (Fund 4).
This assessment is for Distric 3.
Resolution 04-20
Sets up the issue to go to voters for approval.
Payments to come first from the assessments and then from general revenues of
the city.
Ordinance 05-02
Issue of the Bond.
Refinanced in May 2012. Will have three years of a small payment due September 1;
this will finish off the part of the bond that was not callabie. - Paying until May 1, 2015
PRINCIPAL INTEREST
Year Payment Balance Year Payment Total by Year
2008 1,220,000.00
2009 50,000.00 1,170,000.00 2009 29,077.50
30,077.00 59,154.50
2010 50,000.00 1,120,000.00 2010 29,077.50
28,077.50 57,155.00
2011 50,000.00 1,070,000.00 2011 28,077.50
26,827.50 54,905.00
2012 55,000.00 1,015,000.00 2012 26,827.50
10,000.00 1,005,000.00 9,929.03
4,500.00 41,256.53
2013 55,000.00 950,000.00 2013 18,325.00
9,500.00 940,500.00 18,325.00
3,125.00 39,775.00
2014 60,000.00 65,000.00

20



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE

UTILTY LOANS
Drinking Water Loan - Loan #633011
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Utility Department -DEC Drinking Water Loan Stillmeyer

INTEREST

CONTACT: Terrinn Lowell 907-465-5172
terriann_lowell@dec.state.ak.us
DATES: Principal and Interest due on April 1st of each year
Note: They do not send a bill
ISSUE: 500,000.00
PAYMENTS: Principal - $25.000
Interest - Varies - See Schedule
GL ACCOUNTS  Principal - 02 00 00 2525
Interest - 02 10 00 6500
2510007093 Water Reserves - Transfer Out Water Base
0200005901 WS Transfer In (principal amt)
02 10 00 5900 Water Transfer In {(interest amt)
NOTES: This is for Stillmeyer water
Paid out of utility revenues
It was not a special assessment.
Special assessments are paid back by the beneficiary
PRINCIPAL
Year Payment GL Balance
2008 450,000.00
2009 25,000.00 425,000.00
2010 25,000.00 400,000.00
2011 25,000.00 375,000.00
2012 25,000.00 350,000.00
2013 25,000.00 325,000.00
2014 25,000.00 300,000.00
2015 25,000.00 275,000.00
2015 25,000.00 250,000.00
2016 25,000.00 225,000.00

NOTE: Interestis little higher in 2010 than normal...we missed the payment date.

Year
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2015
2016

Payment Total by Year

6,750.00
7,956.25
6,000.00
5,625.00
5,250.00
4,875.00
4,500.00
4,125.00
3,750.00

6,750.00
7,956.25
6,000.00
5,625.00
5,250.00
4,875.00
4,500.00
4,125.00
3,750.00

21



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE
UTILTY LOANS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Utility Department -Alaska Clean Water, Techite Loan ACWF 633291

This loan is for sewer infiltration reduction and Techite Sewer rehab and lining.
This loan was not developed as an assesment, All debt to be paid by the Utility.

CONTACT: Chris Novell (907) 465-5139
Chris.Novell@alaska.gov
DATES: Annual Payment on October 1st
ISSUE: 580,326.00
Rate 1.5%
PAYMENTS: $33,801.50
GL ACCOUNTS
NOTES:
Paid out of utility revenues
PRINCIPAL
Year Payment GL Balance
2013 580,326.00
2014 25,096.61 555,229.15
2015 25,473.06 529,756.09
2016 25,855.16 503,900.93
2017 26,242.99 477,657.94
2018 26,636.63 451,021.31

INTEREST

Year Payment Total by Year
2013

2014 2,331.91 2,33191
2015 8,328.44 8,328.44
2016 7,946.34 7,946.34
2017 7,558.51 7,558.51
2018 7,164.87 7,164.87

22



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE
UTILTY LOANS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Utility Department -Alaska Clean Water Loan, ACWF 633031

CONTACT:
DATES:
ISSUE: no closed out yet
PAYMENTS:
GL ACCOUNTS
NOTES: This loan is for backup generators for the sewer lift stations
This loan was not developed as an assesment, All debt to be paid by the Utility.
Paid out of utility revenues
The loan has not been closed out yet and we are still making draws on the balance
PRINCIPAL INTEREST
Year Payment GL Balance Year Payment Total by Year
2013 302,500.00 2013
LOAN NOT CLOSED LOAN  NOT CLOSED

23



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

The PERS fiscal year actuarially determined rates are found on the PERS Actuarial Valuation

City of North Pole, Alaska

2016 Alaska PERS Relief Summary Statement

Report which can be found on the state of Alaska’s Retirement and Benefits webpage at:
http://doa.alaska.gov/drb/employer/employer _contribution_rates/index.html

PERS Rates

PERS Rates are calculated on a fiscal year budget so rates are split for contribution from
organizations operating on a calendar year budget.

2015 Fiscal Year Rate 5.19%

2016 Fiscal Year Rate 5.19%

2016-2017 State of Alaska on behalf PERS payment

Budgeted PERS Relief
Fund |Department Salaries | City Rate| State Rate 2015| State Rate 2016
22% 5.19% 5.19%
1 |Administration 313,390 | 68,946 8,132 8,132
1 |Police 904,370 | 198,961 23,468 23,468
1 |[Fire 939,315 | 206,649 24,375 24,375
1 [Public Works 148,680 | 32,710 3,858 3,858
2 |Utility 306,766 | 67,489 7,961 7,961
23 |JAG 20,047 4,410 520 520
Total 2,632,568 | 579,165 68,315 68,315
State of Alaska 'on behalf amount’ 136,630

Subject to Alaska Statue 39.35.255 “Contributions by employers” establishes the uniform

contribution rate for PERS employers at 22 percent, with the State contributing the difference
between total PERS actuarial required contributions and the amount employers contribute at 22

percent of payroll.

Employer ‘on-behalf’ is determined by applying the on-behalf amount to the employee's gross
salary. On-behalf is the difference between the Actuarially Determined Rate and the Employer

Effective Rate.



http://doa.alaska.gov/drb/employer/employer_contribution_rates/index.html

City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

City of North Pole 2016 Budget
Overview of all Funds
Fund # Description Revenue Expeditures
General Fund Operating
Fund 1 General Fund Revenue 5,318,107
Fire 1,895,174
Police 1,839,575
Administration 600,472
Public Works 625,136
Professional Services 357,750
TOTAL 5,318,107 5,318,107
Major Enterprise Operating and Capital
Fund 2 Utility Fund Water 609,853 609,853
Utility Fund Sewer 607,302 607,302
Fund 3 Capital Projects Utilities 2,391,000 2,391,000
Fund 25 Water Reserves 176,165 176,165
Fund 27 Sewer Reserves 937,017 937,017
TOTAL 4,721,337 4,721,337
Debt Service Funds
Fund 4 Assesments 241,965 241,965
TOTAL 241,965 241,965
Non-Major Funds
Fund 5 Building Department 312,500 312,500
Fund 16 Fire Department (forestry) - -
Fund 21 ABADE- Dept Justice 110,000 110,000
Fund 22 AHSO Project - -
Fund 23 Byrne JAG 35,000 35,000
Fund 24 ABADE (State Forfietures) 8,500 8,500
Fund 31 Capital Project Gen Gov. 812,741 812,741
Fund 33 IRS Forfietures 34,000 34,000
Fund 36 Impound lot 25,000 25,000
TOTAL 1,025,241 1,025,241

25



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

City of North Pole 2016 Budget
Overview of all Funds
Fund # Description Revenue Expeditures
Community Purpose Funds
Fund 20 Festival 8,500 8,500
Fund 18 North Pole Community Ice Rink 10,962 10,962
Fund 35 Bed Tax 90,000 90,000
Fund 32 Sister City - -
TOTAL 109,462 109,462
Reserve Funds
Fund 50 Fire Fleet - -
Fund 51 Police Fleet - -
Fund 52 Admin Fleet - -
Fund 53 Public Works Fleet - -
Fund 54 Capital Projects Reserves - -
Fund 55 Utility Fleet 22,500 22,500
Fund 56 Health Care 755,000 755,000
TOTAL 777,500 777,500

26



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

Fund #

B R R e

22
25
27

22
23

General Fund
Administration
Professional Services
Police
Fire
Public Works

Total General Fund

Enterprise Fund
Water
Sewer
Water Reserves
Sewer Reserves
Total Utilities

Other Funds
Building
AHSO Officer
BYRNE - Jag

CITY OF NORTH POLE - Expenses (variance)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2016
2010 Actuals Difference 2011 Actuals Difference 2012 Actuals Difference 2013 Actuals Difference 2014 Budget Difference Budget Proposed Difference
561,670 598,478 36,808 598,478 644,204 45,726 644,204 582,030 (62,173) 582,030 616,026 33,996 616,026 545623 (15,554) 545,623 600,472 54,849
234,656 163,301 (71,354) 163,301 263,163 99,861 263,163 339,910 76,748 339,910 407,706 67,796 407,706 408750 (49,956) 408,750 357,750 (51,000)
1,603,300 1,776,661 173,361 1,776,661 1,688,699 (87,962) 1,688,699 1,677,126 (11,574) 1,677,126 1,882,572 205,447 1,882,572 1795620 (42,997) 1,795,620 1,839,575 43,955
1,808,289 1,933,311 125,022 1,933,311 1,970,503 37,193 1,970,503 1,918,078 (52,425) 1,918,078 1,880,489 (37,589) 1,880,489 1881511 (1,880,489) 1,881,511 1,895,174 (13,663)
551,144 462,689 (88,456) 462,689 606,285 143,596 606,285 626,715 20,430 626,715 619,926 (6,789) 619,926 606641 5,210 606,641 625,136 18,495
| 4,759,059 4,934,440 175,380 4,934,440 5,172,854 238,414 5,172,854 5,143,859 (28,995) 5,143,859 5,406,720 262,861 5,406,720 5,238,145 (1,983,787) 5,238,145 3,422,933 (1,815,212)|
1,035,764 973,971 (61,794) 973,971 1,048,596 74,625 1,048,596 1,115,561 66,966 1,115,561 1,127,068 11,506 1,127,068 729544 (1,127,068) 729,544 - (729,544)
1,387,372 1,449,149 61,776 1,449,149 1,426,615 (22,534) 1,426,615 1,914,030 487,415 1,914,030 1,704,949 (209,081) 1,704,949 682831 (1,097,647) 682,831 607,302 (75,529)
135,673 238,985 238,985 238,985 78,504 (160,481) 78,504 337,248 258,744 337,248 182,690 (161,083) 182,690 176,165 (6,525)
30,567 227,382 196,815 227,382 213,147 (14,236) 213,147 56,650 (156,496) 56,650 589,113 532,462 589,113 178,949 347,904 178,949 937,017 758,068
| 2,453,704 2,786,175 332,471 2,786,175 2,927,342 276,841 2,927,342 3,164,746 237,403 3,164,746 3,758,377 593,631 3,758,377 1,774,014 (2,037,893) 1,774,014 1,720,484 (53,530)|
12,368 47,680 35,311 47,680 9,561 (38,119) 9,561 44,490 34,929 44,490 71,029 26,539 71,029 649,000 241,471 649,000 312,500 (336,500)
147,400 95,613 (51,786) 95,613 79,269 (16,345) 79,269 91,509 12,240 91,509 54,512 (36,997) 54,512 - 55,488 - 110,000 110,000
72,637 43,616 (29,021) 43,616 79,233 35,618 79,233 47,961 (31,273) 47,961 50,000 2,039 50,000 50,000 (15,000) 50,000 35,000 (15,000)

27



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE - Breakout of Personnel & Operating Expenses

PERSONNEL EXPENSES - GENERAL & UTILITY FUNDS

Budget Proposed Proposed
Department 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Administration 433,781 453,845 441,968 431,172 444,123 503,472
Professional Services
Police 1,257,671 1,250,224 1,276,337 1,340,465 1,453,842 1,496,375
Fire 1,543,550 1,610,392 1,548,669 1,354,607 1,609,716 1,649,979
Public Works 182,895 254,298 262,740 257,697 288,241 289,986
Total General Fund | 3417897 3,568,758 3,529,714 3,383,940 | 3,795,922 3,939,812 |
(percent of operating budget) 74% 73% 73% 71% 73% 74%
Water 236,677 244,884 238,545 228,842 250,865 245,556
Sewer 321,014 331,835 310,285 269,005 245,335 246,519
Total Utility Fund | 557,690 576,718 548,830 497,848 | 496,200 | 492,075 |
(percent of operating budget) 42% 44% 37% 44% 36% 41%
Total Personnel Costs | 3975587 4,145,477 4,078,544 3,881,788 | 4,292,122 | 4,431,887 |
(percent of operating budget) 67% 67% 64% 66% 65% 68%
NON PERSONNEL EXPENSES - GENERAL & UTILITY FUNDS
Budget Proposed Proposed
Department 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Administration 133,511 156,568 101,064 97,756 101,500 97,000
Professional Services 163,301 263,163 339,910 407,706 408,750 357,750
Police 341,071 330,064 288,035 286,875 317,278 318,700
Fire 288,103 255,050 240,880 255,925 271,795 245,195
Public Works 268,065 336,422 343,938 316,122 318,400 335,150
Total General Fund | 1,194,050 1,341,266 1,313,827 1,364,383 | 1,417,723 | 1,353,795 |
(percent of operating budget) 26% 27% 27% 29% 27% 26%
Water 349,962 349,469 330,852 296,516 427,955 361,200
Sewer 416,095 371,328 603,492 345,018 437,496 357,700
Total Utility Fund | 766,057 720,797 934,344 641,533 | 865,451 | 718,900 |
(percent of operating budget) 58% 56% 63% 56% 64% 59%
Total Operating Costs | 1960108 2,062,063 2,248,171 2,005,916 | 2,283,174 | 2,072,695 |
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES - GENERAL & UTILITY FUNDS
Budget Proposed Proposed
Department 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Administration 567,292 610,412 543,032 528,928 545,623 600,472
Professional Services 163,301 263,163 339,910 407,706 408,750 357,750
Police 1,598,741 1,580,288 1,564,372 1,627,339 1,771,120 1,815,075
Fire 1,831,653 1,865,441 1,789,549 1,610,531 1,881,511 1,895,174
Public Works 450,959 590,720 606,677 573,819 606,641 625,136
Total General Fund | 4611947 4,910,024 4,843,541 4,748,323 | 5,213,645 | 5,293,607 |
Water 586,639 594,352 569,397 525,358 678,820 606,756
Sewer 737,109 703,163 913,777 614,023 682,831 604,219
Total Utility Fund | 1323748 1,297,515 1,483,174 1,139,381 | 1,361,651 | 1,210,975 |
Total Operating Costs | 5935695 6,207,540 6,326,715 5,887,704 | 6,575,296 | 6,504,582 |

NOTE - These are operating expenses only. They do not include Depreciation expenses, Transfer expenses or

Pers Relief expenses

28



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE - Breakout of Revenues

OPERATING REVENUES - GENERAL & UTILITY FUNDS
Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Budget Proposed Budget
Department 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
General Fund

Sales Tax 2,854,936 2,874,657 2,980,799 3,089,996 3,239,764 3,359,499
Property Tax 959,554 954,545 1,030,386 1,025,108 870,000 895,000
State collected Taxes 59,353 56,805 53,124 47,602 57,000 50,000
Fees 53,591 75,452 94,034 96,567 128,500 134,750
Contracts 411,253 433,356 456,120 481,312 495,637 502,000
Citations 110,665 76,790 61,304 85,306 94,000 91,000
Fire Revenues 36,080 6,911 6,947 1,582 4,500 2,500
Police Revenues 89,561 14,994 6,771 5,025 1,500 1,000
State 514,889 540,759 503,779 854,952 196,434 171,000
Grants 17,533 12,552 18,582 10,937 21,000 25,000
Interest 3,183 2,621 2,312 2,717 2,750 2,750
Miscellaneous 60,326 30,325 203,912 37,710 18,000 20,000

General Fund Revenue 5,170,925 5,079,768 5,418,068 5,738,813 5,129,085 5,254,499
Transfers Into General Fund - - 32,918 39,520 10,000 20,000
Transfer In From Fund Balance - 1,822 - - 96,060 43,608
Total General Fund Revenue 5,170,925 5,081,590 5,450,986 5,778,333 5,235,145 5,318,107

Utility Fund
Water

Water Sales 611,267 629,529 703,722 653,079 723,488 607,853
PERS Relief 16,481 17,518 21,264 39,332 - -
FRR/Water Base 11,389 - - - - -
Tie In Fees 2,250 200 500 - - -
Lab Testing 13,711 19,914 3,435 2,061 4,000 2,000
Miscellaneous 50,835 21,641 8,294 7,226 - -

Water Revenue 705,933 688,802 737,215 701,698 727,488 609,853
Transfer into Utility Fund 53,501 5,625 5,250 - 3,750 -
Trasfer in From Retained Earnings
Total Water Revenue | 759,434 694,427 742,465 701,698 731,238 609,853 |

Sewer

Sewer Sales 496,780 571,804 625,436 533,579 473,913 527,302
PERS Relief 20,484 22,004 26,805 45,882 - -
FRR/Sewer Base 17,675 - - - 45,750 -
Tie In Fees 750 200 - - - -
SID Treatment/Testing 94,001 242,497 58,611 27,027 70,000 70,000
Construction Permits
Miscellaneous 8,341 1,406 11,744 106,551 - 10,000

Sewer Revenue 638,031 837,911 722,595 713,039 589,663 607,302
Transfers into Utility Fund - 26,495 25,978 53,407 40,750 -
Transfer In From Retained Earnings - - - - 50,724 -
Total Sewer Revenue 638,031 864,407 748,574 766,446 681,137 607,302

Total Utility Fund 1,397,465 1,558,833 1,491,039 1,468,144 1,412,375 1,217,155
Total Operational Revenues 6,514,889 6,606,481 6,877,878 7,153,550 6,446,236 6,471,654
Total Revenues with Transfers 6,568,390 6,640,423 6,942,025 7,246,477 6,647,520 6,535,262

29



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

General Fund Description

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund and is used to account for resources
traditionally associated with general government, administration, police, fire and Public Works
which are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another
fund.

In the 2016 Budget revenues have been grouped together by type for a better comparison of
sources of revenue. For example all types of taxation have the label (TAXES) depending on
where the revenue is derived from.

NOTE: Changes in the General Fund Revenue Budget include the breakout of Fireworks licenses
(01-00-00-4009). In the past these fees have been accounted for in Miscellaneous revenue.

General Fund Revenues

Revenues are derived principally from taxation. Proceeds from property tax and sales tax account
for 81 percent of General Fund revenue. Revenue derived from charges for services or fees
include fingerprinting fees, ambulance fees, and other fees found on The City of North Pole Fee
Schedule. In total, these proceeds account for approximately 2.5 percent of General Fund
revenues.

Contractual revenues from the Fairbanks North Star Borough for Ambulance service, and the
Army Corps of Engineers contract account for 9.4 percent of General Fund revenues.

Current year and prior year citation revenue makeup approximately 1.7% of General Fund
Revenue’s.

State assistance in the form of revenue sharing and liquor license revenue sharing make up
approximately 3.2% of General Fund Revenues.

Fire and Police specific revenues, grants, fines and forfeitures, interest, other miscellaneous
revenues and intergovernmental transfers account for slightly over 2 percent of General Fund
revenues.

Taxation Breakdown

The City of North Pole collects taxation revenues through two primary means, property tax and
sales tax.

Property tax is collected by the Fairbanks North Star Borough on behalf of the City of North
Pole per Alaska Statute 29.45.560. Property tax is calculated using a mill rate or (percentage) of
the value of the property. One mill of tax is equal to 1/10™ of one percent of the value of a
property. The best way to figure the tax amount of a property is to use the following equation



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Property Value X [.00(Mill rate)] = Tax Amount
The City of North Pole has a mill rate of 3.5 or .35% of the value of your property.

If your property was worth $100,000 the property tax would by $350 per year for the City of
North Pole.

Property tax revenue is projected to be approximately 16.8 percent of our general fund revenue
in 2016, down significantly from 2014 however up from 2015 projections slightly due to
construction at Petro Star Refinery.

Sales tax is collected by the City of North Pole and includes some of the following special taxes,
Bed tax, Tobacco Tax and Alcohol Tax. These special taxes are factored at different rates per
City of North Pole Code 4.08.020.

General Sales Tax 4%  Maximum tax per transaction $8.00
Bed Tax 8%  No Cap (Same as FBKS and FNSB)
Alcohol Tax 6%  No Cap

Wholesale Tobacco Tax 10% No Cap
All sales tax is collected monthly or quarterly

Aggregate sales tax revenue is projected to be 63.2% of General Fund revenue, very similar to
2015, however up from 2014 due to increases in Alcohol Tax and Tobacco Tax. The following
sales taxes are represented showing their percentage of the General Fund Revenue.

General Sales Tax 54.7%
Bed Tax A%
Alcohol Tax 5%

Tobacco Tax 3.1%



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

GENERAL FUND REVENUE - FUND 01

2016 2016
Line Account 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed % of

# Number Account Title Actual Actuals Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget Budget
1 01-00-00-4002 Taxes: Property 959,554 954,545 1,030,386 1,025,108 870,000 895,000 895,000 16.8%
2 01-00-00-4140 Taxes: State collected shared Taxes 59,353 56,805 53,124 47,602 57,000 50,000 50,000 0.9%
3 01-00-00-5000 Taxes: Sales 2,452,042 2,463,477 2,585,385 2,663,397 2,796,514 2,909,999 2,909,999 54.7%
4 01-00-00-5802 Taxes: Alchohol 193,166 207,515 216,078 211,997 263,000 264,500 264,500 5.0%
5 01-00-00-5817 Taxes: Hotel-Motel 83,173 85,894 55,273 82,374 21,250 22,500 22,500 0.4%
6 01-00-00-5818 Taxes: Tobacco 126,556 117,771 124,062 132,228 159,000 162,500 162,500 3.1%
7 01-00-00-4005 Fees: Ambulance transportation 27,801 49,127 64,949 66,657 88,000 91,000 91,000 1.7%
8 01-00-00-4045 Fees: Made In North Pole - - - - 0.0%
9 01-00-00-4018 Fees: FingerPrinting 10,295 11,495 10,620 10,420 12,500 12,500 12,500 0.2%
10 01-00-00-4141 Fees: Business License 15,495 14,830 18,465 19,490 16,000 19,250 19,250 0.4%
11 01-00-00-4009 Fees: Fireworks Licences - 12,000 12,000 12,000 0.2%
12 01-00-00-4003 Contracts: Ambulance Service 358,946 365,968 383,469 401,588 413,637 420,000 420,000 7.9%
13 01-00-00-4163 Contracts: Corps of Engineers 52,307 67,388 72,652 79,724 82,000 82,000 82,000 1.5%
14 01-00-00-4017 Citations: Police Current Year 58,985 44,353 38,464 49,114 56,000 56,000 56,000 1.1%
15 01-00-00-4021 Citations: police Prior Year 51,680 32,436 22,840 36,192 38,000 35,000 35,000 0.7%
16 01-00-00-4008 Fire: Other 36,080 6,911 6,947 1,582 4,500 2,500 2,500 0.0%
17 01-00-00-4014 Police: Other 11 60 - - 0.0%
18 01-00-00-4019 Police: Reports 6,368 3,015 1,775 950 1,500 1,000 1,000 0.0%
19 01-00-00-4024 Police: Impound Lot 5,760 768 - - 0.0%
20 01-00-00-4025 Police: Take Home Cars 383 899 9 - - 0.0%
21 01-00-00-5820 Police: DEA Reimbursement 81,133 - - - 0.0%
22 01-00-00-5822 Police: IRS Reimbursement 1,667 5,320 4,159 3,336 - - 0.0%
23 01-00-00-5823 Police: Marijuana Eradication 739 - - 0.0%
24 01-00-00-4062 State: Municipal Assistance 67,592 82,196 - - - - 0.0%
25 01-00-00-4142 State: Liquor License 5,200 4,800 4,600 4,800 5,200 6,000 6,000 0.1%
26 01-00-00-4162 State Revenue Sharing 200,737 200,000 198,860 201,754 191,234 165,000 165,000 3.1%
27 01-00-00-4165 State: PERS Relief 241,360 253,763 300,319 648,397 - - - 0.0%
28 01-00-00-5085 Grants: CVI Grant 3,360 3,255 4,301 - - - - 0.0%
29 01-00-00-5809 Grants: ASTEP HVE Grants 14,173 9,297 5,427 3,451 11,000 - 0.0%
30 01-00-00-5807 Grants: EMPG 8,854 7,487 10,000 25,000 25,000 0.5%
31 01-00-00-5800 Interest 3,183 2,621 2,312 2,717 2,750 2,750 2,750 0.1%
32 01-00-00-5801 Miscellaneous 60,326 30,325 203,912 37,710 18,000 20,000 20,000 0.4%
33 01-00-00-5900 Transfer In: Fund Balance - 1,822 - 96,060 43,608 43,608 0.8%
34 01-00-00-5900 Transfer In: Forfeitures - - 0.0%
35 01-00-00-5900 Transfer In: (Utilities) 5,000 - 0.0%
36 01-00-00-5901 Transfer In: Fund 10 (Beautification) 1,788 - - - 0.0%
37 01-00-00-5901 Transfer In :Fund 24 (SOA Forfeitures) 17,632 - - 0.0%
38 01-00-00-5901 Transfer in: Fund 36 (Impounds) 17,630 21,888 5,000 20,000 20,000 0.4%
39 01-00-00-5901 Transfer In: Fund 16 (Fire) 13,500 - - - 0.0%

Total 5,170,925 5,081,590 5,450,986 5,778,333 5,235,145 5,318,107 5,318,107 100.0%

NOTE: In 2013 the City transfered in $10,000 (from fund balance) for a Beautifiaction grant recieved in previous years 2015

NOTE: in 2013, the City received $23,205, from GVEA, as a refund on overcharges (from prior years) for electricty for street lights; along with $147,518
for sales tax (from prior years)  that was not charged, but should have been charged to various accounts around town. Both amounts were posted to
Miscellaneous Revenue.

NOTE: In 2014, Impound Lot revenues have been moved to Impound Lot (Fund 36) and are seen as a transfer in from Fund 36, to better account for cost
associated with impounds

NOTE: In 2014, the City has budgeted for payments to PERS made by the State, on behalf of the City. While there is no direct revenue or expense to the
City, we are required by GASB to book these amounts. The revenue has been booked into account 01-00-00-4165 and the expenses have been booked
to each department as PERS Relief account. In previous years, the expense side was booked to the PERS expense for each department; this budget
breaks out that portion of the total PERS expense and moves it to the new accounts that were set up for this expense.

NOTE: Devaluation of the Flint Hills Refinery had a large negative effect on property tax revenues.

Department

% of Budget

Approved Budget

Administration
Professional Services
Police
Fire
Public Works
Total General Fund Expenses
General Fund Revenue
expenses equal revenue

11%
7%
35%
36%
12%

600,472
357,750
1,839,575
1,895,174
625,136

5,318,107
5,318,107




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

CITY OF NORTH POLE
CLERKS OFFICE

Mission:

The Office of the City Clerk provides the professional link between citizens, local governing
bodies, city administration and agencies of government at all levels. Administer and conduct
city elections in accordance with applicable local, state, and federal election laws in the highest
possible standards. To preserve public records of the City of North Pole.

Program Description:

The City Clerk must adhere to constitutional government and laws of the community and state;
impart standards of quality and integrity that merit public confidence; and maintain professional
ethical standards. The City Clerk is responsible for administrative support to the Council;
accurate records of proceedings of the governing body; administration of City elections;
maintaining all records of the City; research and development of ordinances, resolutions, and
reports; provide public information to citizens of the City; serve as a conduit between the
Administration and the Council; personnel & payroll; Human Resources. The City Clerk is
responsible for city elections and knowledge of election laws (federal, state and local).

Objectives:

e Continue to run the office in an efficient and effective manner providing the public access
to their local government and staying within the fiscal constraints as required by state
statutes and the city code of ordinances.

e Conduct efficient and litigation free elections.

e Improve election history information on the City webpage.

e Continue the restoration of permanent and historical paper documents with the
implementation of Laserfiche.

e Provide and educate citizens for easy access to public records.

e Provide human resource services for the City and its employees. Maintain current
personnel, payroll and employment policies/practices to ensure compliance with
changing federal and state law.

Major Long Term Issues and concerns:
e Work toward adding a permanent position to continue the work with archiving records of
all departments.
e Update filing system and organize records.
e Work with added staff to ensure and implement the document protocol for the city.
e Continue to work with staff and department heads on making the budget process to flow
more easily.

FY2015 Accomplishments:
e Updated filing systems and organized records and archives.
Updated the EEOP and filed with the federal government.
Scanned and classified all personnel records in laserfiche for easier access.
Took over the function of payroll & reporting.
Assisted all departments with the bidding process and advertisements.
Negotiated health care contract with Alaska USA Insurance and AW Rehn to ensure
affordable health care for employees and the City.

33



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

e With the purchase of Laserfiche we have added a Records Search link to the front page of
the website to give the public easy access to public records.

e Scanned and catalogued minutes, ordinances, resolutions, public packets, etc into
laserfiche.

e Conducted City elections free of litigation.

FY2016 New Initiative:

e Continue to scan and archive records with the new electronic scanning and archiving
system.

e Work to envelop all departments within the City to implement a document management
system.

e Develop and implement a travel policy.

e Purchase two new ipads or other device each year to keep equipment up to date.

e Work efficiently with legal to ensure that documents are scanned and catalogued
appropriately according to the document protocol.

Line-ltem Explanations / Admin
7001 Publication & Advertising. Cost of publishing agendas, meeting notices, public hearing notices
and bids in the Fairbanks Daily Newsminer.
7002 Election Expense. Annual fee for FNSB to help with the elections for the City.

7004 Travel/Administration ( Council). Travel costs for Mayor and Council to travel to Juneau for
annual lobbying and Washington DC, attend Alaska Municipal League (AML) annual conference in
Anchorage and Summer Session in August.

7009 Council Supplies & Equipment. Purchase of computers, ipads, and materials needed for the
council.

7049 Training. Travel costs for City Clerk to attend annual Alaska Association of Municipal Clerks
(AAMC) conference and International Institute of Municipal Clerks (IIMC), Finance Officer, A/R, A/P
to attend the Caselle Conference (Financial software), and for Finance Officer to attend AGFOA and
the GFOA conference. Also includes mileage, hotel and meals. Included in this is any webinars for
continuing education credits.

34



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget
Tricia Fogarty, CFO

CITY OF NORTH POLE

Finance Deparitment

The Finance Department oversees all financial affairs regarding the city. We are a small
department consisting of the Accountant, Tricia Fogarty; Accounts Receivable / Utility Billing
Clerk, Renee Beckman; and our Accounts Payable Clerk, Stephanie DeCristo. In the last year our
staff took on new job positions, in part to cross-train to better handle emergencies.

In March of 2015 we were able to bring two trainers from Caselle (our accounting software) on
site to work with our staff and our department heads. This is the first time we have had the
opportunity to have onsite training in the thirteen years we have used this software. The
training we received from that was outstanding. Our auditing firm Kohler, Schmitt & Hutchison
was included at a planning meeting to reorganize our chart of account. This is a project that
has been discussed for several years. | am happy to tell you that we are projecting to launch a
new chart of accounts in January of 2016. During the training Caselle helped us set up grants
and activity codes to better track our grants. In the future we intend to use our Caselle
software to its full advantage. “Caselle is One of The Best Accounting Software Programs on
The Market” — Gary Hutchison, Auditor.

I have worked with the Mayor and the Department Heads to give them the access they need in
order to manage their departments’ finances and budgets and to provide transparency. This
year we were able to purchase an Excel add-on called miExcel. This will provide an invaluable
tool with real time data.

| attended a two day grants class on how to manage grants, the class provide me with several
tools to keep the City’s grants in good working order. As well as do’s and don’ts, the instructor
was very clear on “if it’s not in writing it never happened”.

| attended a week long class given by GFOA (Government Finance Officers Association). This
was part one of a two part series, “Introduction to Governmental Accounting, Auditing and
Financial Reporting”. This was an overview of how governmental accounting works as an
accrual-based versus cash-based accounting.

The Finance department attended the annual two-day conference put on by Caselle in October.
During that conference | was able to meet with the representative that will work with us on our
new chart of accounts. They walked me through the process on how they will mock up the new
accounts and run test transactions such as payroll, payables, utility billing and issues any we
might have so they may be corrected before the program is launched.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget
Tricia Fogarty, CFO

It is my goal to have a fully professionally-trained staff in order to serve our citizens and support
all our City’s departments in their daily duties. As well as to continue to promote
communication and to re-instill integrity in the accounting office.

TEAMWORK

coming together is a beginning
keeping together 1s progress
working together is success

- Henry Ford

36



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actuals Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
1 01-01-00-6000 Wages: Full Time 267,147 274,244 274,256 269,321 277703 313,390 313,390
2 01-01-00-6060 Wages: Council 14,950 16,100 14,625 16,750 16000 16,000 16,000
3 01-01-00-6090 Overtime: Regular 295 1,145 614 656 1350 1,000 1,000
4 01-01-00-6091 Holiday Pay 182 277 -
5 01-01-00-6097 Workman's Comp 1,602 1,778 1,489 823 1777 1,972 1,972
6 01-01-00-6098 FICA 462 682 583 752 600 650 650
7 01-01-00-6099 Medicare 4,093 4,378 4,188 4,152 4028 4,547 4,547
8 01-01-00-6100 PERS 60,349 63,293 61,498 62,225 62580 68,949 68,949
9 01-01-00-6102 Insurance: Health & Disability 80,507 86,013 76,943.99 68,048 78085 94,964 94,964
10 01-01-00-6103 Annual Leave 4,375 6,028 7,493.11 8,444 2000 2,000 2,000
11 01-01-00-6100 PERS: Relief 31,186 33,791 38,997.91 87,098 0 - -
12 01-01-00-7001 Publications & Advertising 20,469 18,908 13,622.20 25,858 20000 20,000 20,000
13 01-01-00-7002 Election Expense 3,879 7,152 2,011.62 2,530 3000 3,000 3,000
14 01-01-00-7003 Promotion 7,403 3,688 1,482 1,190 2500 3,000 3,000
15 01-01-00-7004 Council: Travel 11,641 16,896 10,658 9,116 7000 7,000 7,000
16 01-01-00-7006 Sales Tax Rebates 4,648 4,800 788 710 0 = -
17 01-01-00-7007 Maint. Contracts/Equipment 41,377 35,665 39,933 30,937 25000 25,000 25,000
18 01-01-00-7009 Council: Supplies 4,892 1,904 6,092 3,204 1500 1,500 1,500
19 01-01-00-7015 Vehicle: Gas 1,061 2,674 301 591 1500 1,500 1,500
20 01-01-00-7016 Vehicle: Maintenance 863 773 30 500 500 500
21 01-01-00-7022 Office Supplies 9,294 12,506 6,160 6,798 10500 10,500 10,500
22 01-01-00-7029 Miscellaneous 6,135 6,444 5,880 6,594 6500 6,500 6,500
24 01-01-00-7030 Office Equipment 5,557 4,959 2,731 3000 3,000 3,000
25 01-01-00-7039 Postage/Meter Rental 6,409 5,054 2,141 931 2500 2,500 2,500
26 01-01-00-7041 Bad Debts - -
27 01-01-00-7049 Training/ Classes/Manuals 9,884 5,876 6,265 6,535 18000 13,000 13,000
28 01-01-00-8055 Arctic Winter Games 15,000 - - -
29 01-01-00-8056 Sled Dog Races 20,000 - - -

TOTAL 598,478 644,204 582,030 616,026 545,623 600,472 - 600,472

NOTE: In 2014, staff travel has been included in training/ classes/ manuals Acct# 01-01-00-7049
NOTE: Acct# 01-01-00-7004 (travel / administration) was renamed to (Travel Council) to better represent the cost of Council travel.

NOTE: In 2014, Maintainance Contracts and Equipments (01-01-00-7007) was reduced because IT support was consolidated to a new account in Professional Services
NOTE: In 2016 Director of City Services wages were removed from the Admin Budget and a wages for a full time records retention clerk was added to manage the document protocoll for the Flint Hllls Lawsuit.

37



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Administration Breakout of Expenses
Actual Actual Actual | Actual | Actuals Budget Proposed
PERSONNEL COSTS 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Salaries 263,876 267,147 | 274,244 | 274,256 | 269,321 277,703 313,390
Salaries - Council 12,805 14,950 | 16,100 | 14,625| 16,750 16,000 16,000
Overtime 295 1,145 614 656 1,350 1,000
Holiday Pay 1,020 182 277 - - -
Medicare 3,925 4,093 4,378 4,188 4,152 4,028 4,547
SS 652 462 682 583 752 600 650
Pers 61,273 60,349 | 63,293 | 61,498 | 62,225 62,580 68,949
Pers - State
Leave Cash Out 4,133 4,375 6,028 7,493 8,444 2,000 2,000
Workman's Comp 1,866 1,602 1,778 1,489 823 1,777 1,972
Disability Insurance
Health Insurance 65,680 80,507 | 86,013 | 76,944 | 68,048 78,085 94,964
TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 151,354 433,781 | 453,845 | 441,968 | 431,172 444,123 503,472
(percent of operating budget) 27% 76% 74% 81% 82% 81% 84%
NON PERSONNEL COSTS 131,141 133,511 | 156,568 | 101,064 | 97,756 101,500 97,000
(percent of operating budget) 23% 24% 26% 19% 18% 19% 16%
TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET - 567,292 | 610,412 | 543,032 | 528,928 | 545,623 | 600,472
PERS RELIEF 7,881 | 31,186 | 33,791 | 38,998 | 87,098 | - | -
[ TOTARBUBGET N 561,670 598,478 | 644,203 | 582,030 | 616,026 545,623 | 600,472

38



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Professional Services

Professional Services is designated as the fund for expenses not related to a particular department or
that relate to the City as a whole.

Some of the budget line items have changed due to changes in contracts. Legal Fees have been
increased to account for additional legal review and consultation in 2016. Dispatch services have been
increased to account for a new agreement with the City of Fairbanks. The Dispatch agreement is to
increase fees over a three year period to approximately 220,000 per year, this agreement is based on a
new methodology agreed upon by current users. Bed Tax allocations have been removed completely
from Professional services and are now collected and disbursed from a Bed Tax Fund (Fund 37). IT
support has seen an increase as we are budgeting to bring all departments under one IT support

agreement.

All transfers from the General Fund are also included in the professional services budget.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES EXPENSE

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actuals Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
1 01-02-00-6104 Insurance: General 19,997 20,770 23,026 26,377 23000 24,500 24,500
2 01-02-00-7004 Fees: Audit & Accounting 20,783 25,539 24,754 18,644 36000 36,000 36,000
3 01-02-00-7005 Fees: Legal 4,641 7,122 7,038 18,110 20000 20,000 20,000
4 01-02-00-7012 CH: Building Maintenance 1,557 5,648 5,921 5500 3,000 3,000
5 01-02-00-7016 CH: Electricity 9,976 10,588 10,448 11,774 12500 11,000 11,000
6 01-02-00-7017 CH: Heating Fuel 7,997 11,800 11,782 9,828 12500 10,000 10,000
7 01-02-00-7019 CH: Phone 8,548 10,367 9,485 10,378 8750 8,750 8,750
8 01-02-00-7020 Santa Seniors: Fuel (2,027) 576 2,430 -
9 01-02-00-7025 Fees: Dispatch Services 85,841 90,133 101,979 140500 180,000 180,000
10 01-02-00-7035 Ordinance Codification 860 5,464 1,522 1,741 3000 3,000 3,000
11 01-02-00-7042 Citations: Admin Fees 3,954 3,902 3,415 2,606 3500 3,500 3,500
12 01-02-00-7043 Citations: SOJ Fees 8,322 3,675 2,625 1,456 3500 3,500 3,500
13 01-02-00-7050 Fees: Credit Card User 3,932 4,615 5,796 6,487 5500 5,500 5,500
14 01-02-00-7055 Preparedness - 1,000 0 - -
15 01-02-00-7071 Fees: Website Design & Maintenance 2,039 2,498 1,996 2,457 0 - -
16 01-02-00-7201 Bed Tax: NP Chamber 21,209 21,903 14,095 21,005 - -
17 01-02-00-7203 Bed Tax: Christmas In Ice 10,605 10,951 7,047 10,503 - -
18 01-02-00-7204 Bed Tax: NPEDC 35,348 36,505 21,856 35,009 - -
19 01-02-00-7205 Bed Tax: FCVB 3,535 3,651 2,349 1,425 - -
20 01-02-00-7024 Fees: AK Railroad 8,000 8,000 8000 8,000 8,000
21 01-02-00-7007 Fees: IT Contract 12,710 40500 41,000 41,000
22 01-02-00-7091 Transfer To: Fund 50 (Fire Fleet) 14,352 14,278 13975 -
23 01-02-00-7091 Transfer To: Fund 51 (Police Fleet) 14,352 24,278 13975 -
24 01-02-00-7091 Transfer To: Fund 53 (Public Works Fleet) 9,936 5,492 9675 -
25 01-02-00-7091 Transfer To: Fund 52 (Admin Fleet) 5,520 9,885 5375 -
26 01-02-00-7091 Transfer To: Fund 54 (GG Reserves) 44,159 43,933 43000 -
27 01-02-00-7999 Transfer To: Fund Balance -
28 01-02-00-5900 Transfer to Bed Tax Fund 37 0 -

TOTAL 163,301 263,163 339,910 407,706 408,750 357,750 357,750

NOTE: In 2013, the Council adopted ordinance 13-11 (Designated funds) that created funds for vehicle repacement and capital projects. These funds are required to be funded with a percentage of property tax.
NOTE: In 2013, Ak Railroad Permit Fees were added to Professional Services

NOTE: In 2013, IT suport was added to Professional Services

NOTE: In 2013, Transfer to Fund Balance was moved to Professional Services
NOTE: In 2016 All allocation for Fleet and Capital Projects Funds have been suspended for a period of one year to cover a budget gap.

NOTE: in 2015 a new agreement for Dispatch services calls for a three year stepped increase of 40,000 per year to better reflect cost of dispatch services provided by the City of Fairbanks.

40




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

North Pole Police Dept. Chief Steve Dutra

125 Snowman Ln. Phone: 907-488-8459

North Pole, AK 99705 Fax: 907-488-5299
The Honorable Bryce Ward October 15, 2015

Mayor, City of North Pole
Members of the North Pole City Council
Citizens of the City of North Pole

North Pole Police Department
“A Status Report”

I would like to spend some time discussing the dynamics of your police department. We have
a fine group of employees who all have been hand selected from a diverse pool of applicants.
Your staff has done a great job at meeting the mission even though our staffing levels in 2015
were at the lowest they have been in years. | am going to share with you an incredible amount
of information in order to educate you on the job that your officers have done over the last year
and some of the exciting objectives for 2016.

This will be my fourth year as Chief of Police and my fourth budget, all of which have come in
under budget. This last year we faced significant challenges and met most of those with
success, but not without sacrifices. We entered 2015 with the same mission but with a
decrease in personnel over 2013 levels.

The police department is the only department who cut a position in order to meet the
strains placed on the city budget. There was an expectation that this position would be
reinstated once the fiscal problems were resolved. As we enter the 2016 budget cycle the same
budget issues seem to be present and our lost position remains out of reach. We shall discuss
the effects of this reduction later in the budget presentation.

First of all, I want to point out that our 2016 Proposed Budget and our 2015 Original Approved
Budget for salaries is only $45,939 difference. | would like you to understand that our 2016
Proposed Budget is affected by the drop in funding for 2015-2016 JAG/BYRNE GRANT.
This was reduced by $15,000 year over year.

So the real difference between our 2016 Proposed Personnel Budget and our 2015 Proposed
Personnel Budget is approximately $30,939 or 3.6%. This is well within the expected growth
range considering the 3% increases to the unified pay scale, Professional Development
increases, and the return of Officer Phil McBroom.

41



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

I want the council to be informed as to why we are showing an increase over the 2015
Amended Budget.

In order to sum up this change | wanted to show these numbers in a simpler form.

Salaries > $858,431 Original 2015 Approved (Nov 2014)
$848,431 Amended 2015 (September 2015)
— $904,370 Proposed 2016 salary budget
+—» -$15,000 Loss of funding JAG
> $889,370 Comparable year over year increase
v

$30,939 = 3.6% increase in salaries
Historical Budget:

In order to show you where we are and what our historical budgets have looked like, | am
including the following graph.

Actual Actual Actual Actual Proposed Proposed
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$737,744.76 $738,160.50 $759,984.00 | $800,505.00 $858,431.00 | $904,370.00

Our 2016 budget has been cut in some areas to accommodate changes in the expected costs due
to falling prices or cost cutting measures introduced in previous years. In other areas we are
seeing some increases particularly in salaries, Holiday Pay, Leave Cash out, Equipment
Outlay, Building and Vehicle Maintenance.

In order to meet the budget gap in 2016 and maintain a balanced budget we have maintained a
flat budget in almost all categories. This of course means rising costs will require us to
continue to be frugal and innovative in our purchasing. | will make an itemized list of the
changes.

Line item 01-03-6000 - Salaries: | have given a fairly itemized explanation above.

Line item 01-03-6019 - Uniform Expenses: With many categories we are seeing an increase
in costs. Uniforms are not an area where most cost cutting measures can be applied. The
increase in cost is relatively small from approximately $461 an officer to $500. Last year we
had to do a budget amendment due to cost overages.

42



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Line item 01-03-6091 — Holiday Pay: As the increase in wages directly affects the expense
for Holiday Pay and the 7 year average has been $8,374 it was necessary to increase this line
item and do what we can to try and implement cost cutting measures.

Line item 01-03-6103 — Leave Cash Out: This line item can be unpredictable due to
employee requests. The 7 year average is $12,749 but it has reached almost $19,000 in some
past years. Due to the budget amendment increase in late 2015 we felt it best to increase this
line item to reflect a more accurate cost.

Line item 01-03-7009 — Equipment Outlay: This line item is at the heart of our equipment
purchase and has the widest range of mission critical expenses. Some of these items include
computers and related accessories, Taser EOL replacement to include cartridges, and
ammunition costs are expected in 2016. These items can be high dollar expenses.

Line Item 01-03-7011 — Building maintenance: This line item could be doubled in order to
manage the building needs. We have garage door replacement concerns, gutters for garage
bays, boiler maintenance, interior doors and locks, plumbing, carpet and floor cleaning, and
other associated costs just to name a few. Our building is aging and has significant needs.

Line item 01-03-7014 — Vehicle Maintenance: This line item has been increase in
anticipation of rising costs of repairs and the aging fleet. Although we have avoided major
repairs to significant numbers of vehicles, we are seeing major problems with transmissions in
more than one vehicle. We have seen costs reach over $18,000 and this was in 2013.

Line item 01-03-7015 — Vehicle gas and Oil: This line item is seeing a decrease in expected
cost due to the drop in prices of gas. We are seeing enough of a trend in these prices to adjust
downward without too much concern.

Line item 01-03-7017 — Heating Fuel: This line item is also seeing a decrease due to
expected drop of fuel prices. We have seen a 7 year average of approximately $9,800.

Line item 01-03-7018 — Telephone: This line item is seeing a slight increase do to expected
costs associated with cell phones and air cards for patrol cars. We have done our best to reduce
these contracts and may be able to achieve lower costs with additional cuts to services.

Line item 01-03-7039 — Postage: This line item is expected to rise due to cost increases
related to USPS pricing.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Personnel challenges:

2015 was a relatively calm year compared to previous years. We observed one turnover during
2015 and this occurred in August. As of this presentation this position has been held open for a
returning Army Captain who is returning under the UCERA rules. We are super excited to
have Phil McBroom back.

Although the 2014 reduction of one officer has caused some summer shortages the change to
the AHSO Traffic Officer has allowed us to fill the gaps.

2015 could be considered an anomaly since it is the first year in recent memory where
personnel issues were not our top challenge.

| attribute a lot of this stability to increases made to the pay scale and shift differentials.

Staffing Levels:

Standard Patrol staffing levels at full complement are as follows: (excluding May — Sept)

(2) Officers and 1 Sergeant to cover each of the three shifts (Ideal)
(1) Lieutenant on Day shift monitoring Department Operations and grants.

Shift overlaps: 10 Hours shifts

Monday 0000 0100 '020070300 "0400 0500”0600 0700 0800 09001000 "1100 "1200 "1300 140071500 "1600 1700”1800 "1900 2000”2100 2200 2300
Grave

Days

Swings

Examples of Patrol staffing:

May — September (Patrol Only) with current budget and NO Traffic Officer in Patrol rotation:

Day shift = 2 patrol officers Swing shift = 3 officers Grave shift = 2 officers
October — April (Patrol Only)

Day shift = 2 patrol officers Swing shift = 3 officers Grave shift = 3 officers
Traffic Officer =1  Rotational in shift assignments

During each year these levels fluctuate due to vacations, training, injuries, family leave,
sickness, and other related personal matters.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Augmented staffing includes:

(1) Chief of Police

(1) Lieutenant

(1) Evidence Custodian/Dispatcher

(1) SDEU Officer assigned full time to Drug/Alcohol Interdiction
(1) Detective

Overtime:
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$30,147.00 $33,250.00 $15,288.69 $18,794.57 $19,550.18 $26,654.00 $22,971.00 $43,040.00 $43,040.00

As you can see above our overtime expenses were on a downward trend mainly due to 10 hour
shifts starting in 2009. Budget years 2013-14 are higher. This is attributed to shortage in staff
due to injury, attrition, and training. The 2015 proposed increases were to cover shift
differential with the hope that staff shortages, due to officers leaving, will slow or cease and
overtime expenses can stabilize closer to 2010-2012 levels. As we have noticed in 2015 this
seems to be slowing.

Training:

Our annual training regimen includes training in firearms where qualifications are required
twice a year, blood borne pathogen, hazmat, First Aid and CPR/AED, Taser refreshers,
Emergency Vehicle Operations, defensive tactics, and use of force. There are many other
courses that we send officers and command staff to that help us offer a better service to the
community. These can include Crises Intervention Training, Crime Conferences, Department
of Homeland Security training, Ethics and so on.

Our professional development requires officers to attend Field Training Officer, Interview and
Interrogation classes. These courses certify our officers to train new police officers and or
reserve officers and are required for everyone. Our interview and interrogation requirement is
one of the most important training classes. This gives the officers the skills they need to be
successful in resolving cases.

Grant Funding:

We understand that revenues are tight and the needs of our small community are unique. In
order to help offset budget strains, the Police Lieutenant manages the JAG grant on top of
patrol duties when patrol staffing falls below minimums. In 2015 our grant awards and
contracts related to our staffing were in the range of $133,000. The grants and contracts varied
depending on actual expenses. Final figures are not yet available since fiscal years fall in
difference sequences.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Police Related Revenue including Grants and Contracts:

In an attempt to show the council, and the public, that the North Pole Police Department is not
a 100% direct drain on the budget we wanted to show a balanced financial picture. The
following sources of revenue are directly tied to police related functions.

2015 Budget totals

ICAC Agreement $5,000.00
JAG $35,000.00
Chena Lakes $82,795.00
Reports $825.00
Asset Forefeiture* $65,000.00
Citation Revenue $31,569.00
Fingerprinting $11,000.00
Liquor license $5,200.00
Impound fees* $11,136.00
Total $247,525.00

* Amounts to date

Although we do not regulate our activities based on revenue streams it is important to
acknowledge these sources of revenue which help offset the overall cost of police services to
the citizens of North Pole. Many of these revenue streams require significant time
commitments in order to maintain.

Some of these grants have been with the City of North Pole for some time and | felt it was
important to identify the amount of money granted to the city over the years. The benefits to
the citizens have been substantial.

SOA - Pass through Byrne funding Grant awards have been approximately $279,000 not
counting Equitable Sharing Funds.

Chena Lakes Contract:

Every year since the 1990’s the City of North Pole has signed a contract with the Army Corp
of Engineers for law enforcement services. These services include one full time officer
stationed in the Chena Flood Control project between May 1 and September 30. This officer

patrols the area during this period and returns to normal patrol between October 1 and April 30.

This last fiscal year the contract was for $82,795. This is a win win for the city and the Corp of
Engineers. We expect this contract to continue in 2016.

46



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Equitable Sharing Funds and SOA money seizure:

Over the course of our involvement in the SDEU, or the State Drug Enforcement Unit and the
IRS Task force the city has realized revenue streams from these programs. One of the
programs is the Asset Forfeiture or Equitable Sharing program. This program diverts revenue
into two funds. One of the funds is called Justice (DEA) and the other is Treasury (IRS).
Depending on the agency adopting the case these funds will be diverted through one of these
two agencies.

Generally these funds come through the Alaska State Troopers, due to their designation as the
coordinating agency, and are diverted and divided based on the pre-determined revenue sharing
agreement. Once the revenues are divided they are distributed to participating agencies.

These revenues come from illicit drug/alcohol activity and money laundering cases to
including, but not limited to, marijuana grows, heroin distribution, and methamphetamine.
Any federally adopted case funneled through SDEU would qualify for this distribution process.

The third source of funds comes from cases prosecuted through the State of Alaska. These
cases are also divided amongst participating agencies to exclude the federal government, unlike
Equitable Sharing funds which have a proportional percentage extracted from them prior to the
division. Each set of funds has its own criterion for spending.

As of the date of this letter, we have received over $400,000. This money has been used to
renovate the police station with much needed desks, flooring, painting of station, new roof,
additional funding for heating renovations, gear and so on. We have purchased a new vehicle
for the Major Crimes Detective and SDEU Detective and paid for a significant amount of
training for our officers. We have also made a substantial purchase of laptops for patrol using
these funds.

Impound Fees:

In late 2012 | was successful at completing a long term deterrence plan and implement an
impound program for DUI, Driving While Suspended, and No Insurance offenses. The City of
North Pole now has another tool to help reduce these crimes from occurring inside the city
limits.

The entire idea behind this plan was to reduce the number of DWSOL, DUI and No Insurance
events through a community backed effort where vehicles used by violators would be
impounded. The administrative fee of $384.00 was originally intended to be placed into a
fund that would allow the City of North Pole to establish a Forfeiture Program. Last year, due
to budget shortfalls this money was diverted to the general fund and no money was put aside
for the original purpose. This year the Mayor has set aside a majority of these funds for the
purpose they were intended. To date this program has generated approximately $47,000.00

This program adds an additional layer of deterrence and helps secure the safety of the citizens.
| firmly believe the City of North Pole should seek vehicle forfeiture on repeat offenders but
without sufficient funding, this program will be placed on hold.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Special Funding for Programs related to Investigations:
Internet Crimes Against Children or ICAC:

The North Pole Police Department has entered into an agreement with the Anchorage Police
Department to assist a nationwide effort to combat the victimization of children on the internet.
We have problems in our own community with documented predators engaging in online
solicitation and child pornography distribution.

Our involvement includes investigations into reports within our jurisdiction and assisting other
agencies in investigations. Our monthly reports are filed with the ICAC APD unit and for this
we received authorized funding in the amount of $5,000. In 2015 we used a portion of these
funds to pay for our UFED Annual License. It is our intension to use these funds in the next
budget cycle for a similar expense and possible some additional training or equipment.

Internal Revenue Service:

The North Pole Police Department has entered into an agreement for the last several years
where our Detective is assigned to assist IRS agents with cases. Detective Bruce Milne is a
Task Force Officer assigned to assist the IRS. For his involvement the City of North Pole is
compensated for any overtime incurred during an investigation. This could include some costs
associated with travel for training. In 2015 the City of North Pole received approximately
$1200.00 for overtime expenses. | would also like to note here that our previous detective
assigned to this task force, Det. Stewart brought in $187,000 in Equitable Sharing Funds in
2014; all related to his IRS activities. Det. Stewart has also taken several high profile heroin
dealers off the streets.

Changes to Grant Funding in 2016:

We do not expect a change in funding from ICAC or the IRS. We have received new MOU’s
for 2015 from both of these agencies, it is expected that this relationship will be continued.
Our Byrne/Jag grant is funded on a July 1 — June 30 cycle and the amount of funding expected
in the 2015-16 cycle is $35,000. We have received our JAG funding for 2014 to July 2015 in
the amount of $50,000. We have seen a slow decrease in these grant funds.

48



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Annual Programs supported by Police Department Staff:

As a department we believe it is our duty to support the community in as many ways possible.
2015 was a difficult year for the staff due to demands and schedule shortfalls. We continued
our support for the following programs.

e Gang Resistance Education And Training: or GREAT.
A program aimed at 6™ graders in the North Pole Middle School. This course is taught
one day a week and focusses positive decision making skills and positive interaction
with law enforcement.

e Presentations to parents and students on social media and dangers associated with smart
phone and similar devices.

e Annual Preparedness Fair at the Carlson Center.

Tours of police station to include girl scouts, boy scouts, elementary school kids, and

more.

Community interaction during 4™ of July parade and Homecoming.

Our annual Operation Glowstick. Focuses on child safety during Halloween.

Attend a variety of meetings with organizations all over the area.

Bi- Annual assistance with classes taught at the CTC law enforcement academy.

High School forensic class to students.

Guys Read — 4™ grade elementary school reading

North Pole Middle School Red Ribbon Week.

Equipment Status:

Over the last 10 years the City of North Pole has invested into police vehicles in order to
maintain a fleet capable of supporting the mission of the police department. The idea behind
this investment was to replace a vehicle every year in order to maintain a healthy fleet of
vehicles not prone to breakdown and maintain a level of safety for our officers.

When a vehicle goes down it requires an enormous investment of time and money. When a car
IS subject to repair it requires someone, usually patrol, to drive the vehicle to repair and then
retrieve the vehicle once it is repaired. This takes the patrol officer out of the city limits for the
time it takes to do this.

We have supported the assigned vehicle method versus the pool car method and have been able
to stretch the life of our vehicles up to 15 years. Using this method gives the vehicle a longer
life and it has been proven over and over in numerous studies to be the most economical way
to provide patrol cars for police departments.

Unfortunately over the last several years we have allowed our fleet replacement schedule to
falter. Often times the vehicle is sacrificed to close the “budget gap.” This can be best
explained in the following way. Of the 14 vehicles in our fleet, 3 have been purchased with
funds other than general fund revenue. We have used Grants and Asset Forfeiture funds to
purchase vehicles.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Currently our average vehicle has 67,564 miles on it. This average just fell from the 2015
numbers of 88,000 with the replacement of the SEDU vehicle this last month and new arrival
due in shortly. Without that replacement of this vehicle these numbers would have been over
90,000 miles. It is my hope we can purchase a couple of vehicles in 2016 through standard
purchases from the new fleet fund. This will level out the fleet and place close to our healthy
status. | do suspect 2017 we will need one more year of double purchase. After that a single
vehicle will be perfect to maintain the fleet.

In 2007 budget shortfalls and delays in vehicle purchases cause 3 vehicles to arrive in 2008.
This may have been a good thing for the fleet but as these vehicles meet their end of life this
poses a significant problem with 3 vehicles needing replacement at the same time.

In 2012 and 2015 | was able to use Equitable Sharing to purchase a vehicle for our Detectives.
In 2010, I was able to secure a grant from AHSO to purchase a vehicle for our traffic unit. In
2012 1 cut my budget to find money to purchase a vehicle due to an oversight in the 2011
budget preparations. In 2013 we purchased a motorcycle using funds from the sale of some
assets. This motorcycle was significantly less expensive than a vehicle and will help decrease
mileage on more than one fleet vehicle over the next 20+ years. It is important for us to share
this information because it will become our biggest obstacle in the years to come.

I am extremely thankful for the vehicle fleet funds and the outlook on vehicle replacement
being on a regular cycle and not subjected to budget fluctuations. We are expecting to
purchase two patrol vehicles in 2015 in order to maintain the fleet at a safe level. We are
currently waiting for our vehicle we purchased this year to arrive.

Supplemental Equipment:

Along with our patrol fleet we have acquired numerous support vehicles. These vehicles
include (2) 6 x 6 Polaris side by sides, (2) enclosed trailers for emergency response equipment,
(2) four wheelers, and (2) snowmobiles. We also have one motorcycle to be used during the
summer months.

All of this equipment should be stored in warm storage. This is one of the reasons we support
the capital improvement funds given to the City of North Pole this year by the legislature and
the Governor.

Computers and IT status:

We are now using AlasConnect for our IT services and we could not be happier. They have
been easy to work with and very responsive to our needs.

50



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Conclusion:

As you can see your police department is an extremely diverse organization. We have
numerous revenue sources tied to our activities which help offset the costs to the citizens. We
do as much as we can with the as little as we can. We are continuously finding ways to
improve our services.

As | have shown above, we are involved in a lot of programs and we take pride in providing
the best police service we can. Our commitment to the community is our top priority. We
have been given a mission to keep this community safe and we take that commitment very
serious.

Thank you for your time.

Chief Steve Dutra

51



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

POLICE DEPARTMENT EXPENSES

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actuals Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
1 01-03-00-6000 Wages: Full Time 737,745 738,161 759,984 800,505 848,431 904,370 904,370
2 01-03-00-6019 Uniform Expense 5,078 5,736 6,684 4,730 7,000 6,500 6,500
3 01-03-00-6020 Investigative Expense 2,220 2,583 3,430 5,347 7,000 7,000 7,000
4 01-03-00-6022 Overtime: Training 6,512 3,929 6,262 3,438 6,000 6,000 6,000
5 01-03-00-6030 Dispatch Contract 36,130 - - -
6 01-03-00-6090 Overtime: Regular 18,795 19,550 26,654 22,971 43,040 43,040 43,040
7 01-03-00-6091 Holiday Pay 8,341 9,574 7,766 8,601 7,500 8,000 8,000
8 01-03-00-6095 Overtime: HVE & IRS 13,522 12,517 8,075 6,043 10,000 -
9 01-03-00-6096 Overtime: CVI 2,320 1,383 3,044 1,750 3,500 -
10 01-03-00-6097 Workman's Comp 24,138 26,543 25,974 33,284 42,651 50,430 50,430
11 01-03-00-6098 FICA 19 50 50 90 - -
12 01-03-00-6099 Medicare 7,984 11,130 11,970 11,998 13,267 13,954 13,954
13 01-03-00-6100 PERS 186,701 183,095 177,808 191,883 202,833 198,961 198,961
14 01-03-00-6102 Insurance: Health & Disability 225,777 231,405 241,670 248,212 256,620 256,620 256,620
15 01-03-00-6103 Annual Leave 25,818 18,995 6,601 11,689 20,000 15,000 15,000
16 01-03-00-6105 Insurance: General 98,383 99,343 103,938 106,419 123,000 123,000 123,000
17 01-03-00-6100 PERS: Relief 96,787 99,345 112,754 245,233 - -
18 01-03-00-6106 Unemployment 5,550 2,960 - - -
19 01-03-00-7001 Subscriptions & Publications 437 1,513 830 330 2,000 2,000 2,000
20 01-03-00-7007 Maintenance Contracts 3,462 2,559 1,518 2,882 3,500 3,500 3,500
21 01-03-00-7008 Police Training 12,442 13,781 12,314 11,736 15,000 15,000 15,000
22 01-03-00-7009 Equipment Outlay 13,537 9,033 12,546 17,707 16,000 17,500 17,500
23 01-03-00-7010 Equipment Maintenance 7,056 3,087 3,201 2,065 5,500 5,500 5,500
24 01-03-00-7011 Building Maintenance 3,510 8,308 5,824 2,513 5,000 6,000 6,000
25 01-03-00-7014 Vehicle: Maintenance 10,834 16,640 18,730 14,792 19,500 20,500 20,500
26 01-03-00-7015 Vehicle: Gas & Oil 46,520 52,595 39,032 39,676 43,178 40,500 40,500
27 01-03-00-7016 Electricity 22,898 17,987 20,170 22,152 20,000 20,000 20,000
28 01-03-00-7017 Heating Fuel 9,711 12,254 9,495 11,452 14,000 12,000 12,000
29 01-03-00-7018 Telephone 19,339 19,281 17,931 18,862 19,000 20,000 20,000
30 01-03-00-7022 Office Supplies 1,586 4,867 4,048 3,070 5,000 5,000 5,000
31 01-03-00-7028 Operational Supplies 3,813 3,773 5,178 3,758 5,000 5,000 5,000
32 01-03-00-7029 Miscellaneous 2,049 5,193 4,998 3,305 5,000 5,000 5,000
33 01-03-00-7031 Recruitment 1,797 2,494 3,109 1,666 1,500 3,500 3,500
34 01-03-00-7039 Postage 990 925 676 28 1,100 1,200 1,200
35 01-03-00-7055 DEA Reimbursables 81,133 - - - -
36 01-03-00-7061 Equipment Lease: Payments 29,779 46,076 14,250 13,661 - -
37 01-03-00-7062 Equipment Lease: Interest. 3,949 2,036 134 723 - -
38 01-03-00-7091 Transfer To: Fund 51 (Police Fleet) - - - 10,000 24,500 24,500 24,500
39 01-03-00-7199 Wages: Police Reserves - - 478 -
TOTAL 1,776,661 1,688,699 1,677,126 1,882,572 1,795,620 1,839,575 1,839,575
NOTE: In 2011, the City receieved $81,133 from the DEA to purchase equipment on their behalf. This is a one-time occurance. The revenue is under General Fund Revenues, the expense is listed above in 01-03-00-7055.
NOTE: In the past, the wages/ benifits for the JAG and AHSO officers have been budgeted in the Police Department. In 2011, these positions are being budgeted in Funds 22 and 23.
NOTE: in 2014, the City dropped the AHSO officer (as of October 1st) and assumed the full cost of the personnel in patroll wages-benifits
NOTE: In 2016 the JAG grant was reduced from $50,000 to $35,000

52



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Police Department Breakout of Expense

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Proposed
PERSONNEL COSTS 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Salaries 737,745 738,161 760,462 800,505 848,431 | 904,370
Salaries - OT 25,307 23,479 32,916 26,409 49,040 49,040
Holiday Pay 8,341 9,574 7,766 8,601 7,500 8,000
Grant Overtime 15,842 7,793 11,119 7,793 13,500 -
Taxes 8,002 11,180 12,020 12,088 13,267 13,954
Pers 186,701 183,095 177,808 191,883 202,833 198,961
Leave Cash Out 25,818 18,995 6,601 11,689 20,000 15,000
Workman's Comp 24,138 26,543 25,974 33,284 42,651 50,430
Health and Disability Insurance 225,777 231,405 241,670 248,212 256,620 | 256,620
TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 1,257,671 1,250,224 1,276,337 1,340,465 1,453,842 | 1,496,375
(percent of operating budget) 79% 79% 82% 82% 82% 82%
NON PERSONNEL COSTS 341,071 330,064 288,035 286,875 317,278 | 318,700
(percent of operating budget) 21% 21% 18% 18% 18% 18%
TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET | 1,598,741 | 1,580,288 | 1,564,372 | 1,627,339 | 1,771,120 | 1,815,075
PERS RELIEF | 96,787 | 99,345 | 112,754 | 245,233 | - -
DEA Reimbursable Expenses | 81,133 | - | - | - | - -
[ TOTARBUDGET N 1,776,661 | 1,679,633 | 1,677,126 | 1,872,572 | 1,771,120 | 1,815,075

53



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

North Pole Fire Department
125 Snowman Lane - North Pole, Alaska 98705
Phone: 907.488.2232 Fax: 907.488.3747

Honorable Bryce Ward
Mayor, City of North Pole
Members of the North Pole City Council

North Pole Fire Department
Fiscal Year 2016 Budget Proposal

Mayor Ward, Council Members;

North Pole Fire Department is an all-risk, all-hazard agency, responding to a wide variety of
emergency and non-emergency needs in the community. It is a valued asset that the citizens rely on
daily. The workload has steadily increased, with an increase in emergency responses as well as the
department’s support of community services.

North Pole Fire Department has been in existence since 1957, comprised of individuals with a desire
to protect the lives and property of their neighbors. Through the years, the department has seen a lot
of changes as the community has grown and changed, with quite a number of North Pole’s finest
citizens contributing their time and effort as volunteers. These contributions have made North Pole
Fire Department one of the premier fire departments in the State of Alaska.

Currently, the department operates as a combination department, comprised of paid staff and
volunteers. Services are provided 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year. Paid employees
include the Fire Chief, Deputy Fire Chief, three Captains, three Lieutenants, three Engineers, three
Firefighters and an Administrative Assistant. Volunteer members serve as their schedule allows,
supplementing the paid staff. The combination system provides the volunteers a flexible schedule to
accommodate work and family, with the paid staff providing around the clock emergency response
capability for the community.

North Pole Fire Department responds to over 1,000 calls per year. This includes all responses to fire
and emergency medical requests both inside and outside the City of North Pole. The department has
mutual-aid agreements with other departments throughout the Interior, including both military bases.
North Pole Fire Department has for many years maintained a contract with the Fairbanks North Star
Borough for ambulance services, providing treatment and transport of people in an approximately
100 square mile area. An automatic-aid agreement with North Star Fire Department is maintained to
the mutual benefit of both departments during periods of low staffing, particularly during the daytime
hours when volunteers have commitments to work and school.

The services provided by the fire department have grown and changed in step with the City. The
wide variety of services provided include fire suppression, fire prevention, advanced life support



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

emergency medical services, technical rescue services, hazardous materials response, and public
education on injury prevention and safety.

North Pole Fire Department works with the community in a number of ways to help educate the
citizens on injury prevention and safety. Some of the programs the department has implemented
include: Risk Watch, a comprehensive injury prevention program currently in use at North Pole
Elementary School; newborn and child safety classes, bicycle safety programs; and Fire Prevention
month. The department also sponsors the fire department Open House, fireworks safety public
service announcements, various special request classes for North Pole Middle School and North Pole
High School, and a fire and life safety program for the residents at Holiday Heights. Community
CPR classes, first-aid courses, and babysitting classes are also supported.

Training is a vital element in the department. All members are trained to standards published by the
National Fire Protection Association, and as mandated by federal and state regulations. The
department is certified by the State of Alaska to provide training at the Firefighter I and II level, and
provides training in emergency medical response to the EMT III level for qualified members.
Hazardous materials training and technical rescue courses are offered throughout the year, as well as
courses in vehicle extrication, wild land firefighting, industrial firefighting, and instructor courses.
This in-house training is crucial in meeting the varied hazards the community faces, and helps to
provide members with the skills and expertise needed to serve and protect the citizens.

Several important identified needs have been addressed through securing available grant funding.
This includes items such as fire hose, protective clothing, and upgrades to self-contained breathing
apparatus, communications equipment, medical equipment and a new ambulance and platform truck
delivered in 2014. Addition grants received include; FEMA grant for smoke and CO detectors, DHS
grant for radios, equipment for our EOC and funding to offset wages as we participated in Alaska
Shield 2014 and a grant to offset the wages of the Fire Chief for time spent on emergency
management duties. Although we have had some success obtaining grants it’s important to note that
grants are competitive in nature, and should not be counted on as a source of revenue. We will
continue to pursue grants as they become available.

North Pole Fire Department strives to meet the needs of the community by providing the best
emergency services possible. As the community changes and grows, it becomes more complex, and
the dangers it faces become more complex as well. North Pole Fire Department will continue to
adapt and change to meet the community’s needs, to provide safe, efficient service to the citizens it

protects.

Respgctfully Submitted,
ag.am le

Buddy Lane

Fire Chief



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

FIRE DEPARTMENT EXPENSE

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actuals Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
1 01-04-00-6000 Salaries 894,531 916,386 887,129 881,217 862,671 939,315 939,315
2 01-04-00-6030 Dispatch Contract 36,130 - - - - -
3 01-04-00-6032 Ambulance Billing Fees 1,914 3,717 4,261 3,771 5,100 3,600 3,600
4 01-04-00-6090 Overtime 23,164 38,238 20,702 36,233 36,000 36,000 36,000
5 01-04-00-6091 Holiday Pay 11,753 14,764 17,122 14,976 15,000 15,000 15,000
6 01-04-00-6092 Overtime - Forestry 9,949 893 - - - - -
7 01-04-00-6094 Straight Time - Forestry 658 - - - - -
8 01-04-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 67,157 75,907 70,150 89,211 98,099 98,099 98,099
9 01-04-00-6098 FICA 4,505 4,764 4,855 4,861 5,000 5,000 5,000
10 01-04-00-6099 Medicare 13,122 13,566 13,528 13,252 14,332 14,332 14,332
11 01-04-00-6100 PERS 294,708 301,852 202,685 220,088 201,499 206,649 206,649
12 01-04-00-6102 Health & Disability Insuarnce 143,143 157,049 220,878 211,294 279,584 279,584 279,584
13 01-04-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 10,988 16,483 35,416 33,164 20,000 20,000 20,000
14 01-04-00-6105 Insurance 47,230 47,498 48,938 51,849 55,000 55,000 55,000
15 01-04-00-6106 Unemployement 1,031 - 89 - - -
16 01-04-00-6100 PERS Relief 101,658 105,062 128,529 269,958 - -
17 01-04-00-7007 Maintenance Contracts 3,366 7,401 8,021 11,596 11,000 6,000 6,000
18 01-04-00-7008 Fire Training/Education 18,139 13,132 8,440 13,255 12,000 10,000 10,000
19 01-04-00-7009 Equipment Outlay 5,159 1,523 (2,996) 2,032 6,000 2,500 2,500
20 01-04-00-7010 Equipment Maintenance 7,388 10,370 7,492 9,944 6,500 6,500 6,500
21 01-04-00-7011 Base Station/Radio Mnt. 515 1,030 3,143 1,552 1,500 1,500 1,500
22 01-04-00-7014 Vehicle Maintenance 9,815 8,292 8,428 7,736 9,000 9,000 9,000
23 01-04-00-7015 Vehicle Gas & Oil 23,436 22,813 22,699 19,503 22,000 18,000 18,000
24 01-04-00-7022 Office Supplies 1,395 558 817 1,559 2,900 1,900 1,900
25 01-04-00-7029 Fire Dept/Miscellaneous 3,283 3,493 4,138 5,219 3,000 3,000 3,000
26 01-04-00-7030 Building Supplies 2,191 3,174 2,820 2,352 2,600 2,600 2,600
27 01-04-00-7035 PY Ambulance Fees Return 958 352 1,057 - -
28 01-04-00-7039 Postage 695 446 267 562 650 650 650
29 01-04-00-7040 Ambulance Supplies 19,986 15,353 18,701 20,652 21,000 21,000 21,000
30 01-04-00-7050 Part Time Labor 66,517 70,490 76,205 70,311 77,531 36,000 36,000
31 01-04-00-7051 Part Time Labor - Forestry 2,323 - - - -
32 01-04-00-7061 Equipment Lease Payments 37,681 39,953 46,944 41,071 46,945 46,945 46,945
33 01-04-00-7062 Equipment Lease -interest. 9,263 6,991 - 5,873 - - -
34 01-04-00-7065 Fire Supplies (Expendables) 198 - - - - -
35 01-04-00-7075 Volunteer Incentive 964 1,607 - 1,814 - - -
36 01-04-00-7085 Prevention/Public Education 2,254 2,717 50 1,140 2,500 1,500 1,500
37 01-04-00-7095 Employee Health Protection 635 1,700 3,818 1,670 1,100 2,500 2,500
38 01-04-00-7099 NFPA Station Uniforms 2,319 894 706 2,094 2,500 3,000 3,000
39 01-04-01-7011 Fire Dept. Maintenance 2,015 3,219 885 110 3,000 3,000 3,000
40 01-04-01-7016 Fire Dept. Electricity 16,188 17,252 17,120 17,938 17,000 15,000 15,000
41 01-04-01-7017 Fire Dept. Heat 15,466 17,869 13,374 14,710 15,000 12,500 12,500
42 01-04-01-7018 Fire Dept. Telephone 11,965 12,065 10,239 9,930 9,500 9,500 9,500
43 01-04-02-7011 Annex Maintenance Expense 153 105 88 7,000 1,000 1,000
44 01-04-02-7016 Annex Electricity 2,305 3,136 2,885 3,193 3,000 3,000 3,000
45 01-04-02-7017 Annex Heat costs 5,219 7,510 6,316 3,152 5,500 5,500 5,500
46 01-04-02-7018 Annex: Phone 952 - -
47 01-04-03-7016 Dorm Electricity 334 228 518 500 500 500 500
48 01-04-03-7017 Dorm Heat costs 655 - 1,348 - -
49 01-04-03-7018 Dorm: Phone - - 97 - -
TOTAL 1,933,311 1,970,503 1,918,078 2,100,577 1,881,511 1,895,174 1,895,174




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Fire Department Breakout of Expenses

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Proposed
PERSONNEL COSTS 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Salaries 894,531 916,386 887,129 881,217 862,671 939,315
Salaries - OT 23,164 38,238 20,702 36,233 36,000 36,000
Forestry Pay 12,931 893 - - - -
Holiday Pay 11,753 14,764 17,122 14,976 15,000 15,000
Part Time Employees 66,517 70,490 76,205 70,311 77,531 36,000
Unemployment 1,031 - - 89 - -
Taxes 17,627 18,330 18,383 18,113 19,332 19,332
Pers 294,708 301,852 202,685 220,088 201,499 206,649
Accrued Vacation Pay 10,988 16,483 35,416 33,164 20,000 20,000
Workman's Comp 67,157 75,907 70,150 89,211 98,099 98,099
Health Insurance 143,143 157,049 220,878 211,294 279,584 279,584
TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 1,543,550 | 1,610,392 1,548,669 1,574,694 1,609,716 | 1,649,979
(percent of operating budget) 84% 86% 87% 86% 86% 87%
NON PERSONNEL COSTS 288,103 255,050 240,880 255,925 271,795 245,195
(percent of operating budget) 16% 14% 13% 14% 14% 13%
TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET 1,831,653 | 1,865,441 | 1,789,549 | 1,830,619 | 1,881,511 | 1,895,174
PERS RELIEF 101,658 | 105,062 | 128,529 | 269,958 | - -
[ TotAaiBubeET 1,933,311 1,970,503 1,918,078 2,100,577 1,881,511 1,895,174

57




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Public Works Department

The “products” of the Public
Works Department affect most
North Pole residents and visitors
on a daily basis—roads, parks,
sidewalks and beautification
efforts. Public Works is also
responsible for maintaining city
buildings and grounds. The
facilities under the jurisdiction of
Public Works contribute to
improving the quality of life for
our residents and making our city
more attractive to visitors.

Flower planting in one of the Santa Claus Lane roundabouts.

The flowers planted by Public
Works in the Santa Claus
roundabouts were especially beautiful this past summer and these plantings continue to receive
positive comments from residents and visitors. This past year some projects involving Public
Works included the installation of Harmony Park Outdoor Musical Equipment in the Terry
Miller Park (equipment funded with a $25,000 donation from the Snedden Family Foundation);
building retaining walls at City Hall for landscaping; working with volunteers from the Soil and
Water Conservation Service to install rainfall gardens at City Hall; and completion of the North
Pole Dog Park. Public Works also received surplus skateboard park equipment from the Eielson
Air Force Base. Public Works will be rehabilitating the skateboard park equipment and will
begin installing the equipment in 2016 at the North Pole Skateboard Park.

Public Works is responsible for maintaining over 18 miles of City-owned roads. Routine
maintenance functions include snow plowing, graveling icy intersections, road sweeping, road
patching, road paving, road striping and brush cutting. Public Works performs some of these
functions directly and uses private contracts for others. Over the past several years, Pubic Works
has made an effort to perform as many functions internally versus using private contractors; for
example, when the Department has adequate summer staff, it does the brush cutting along city
roads, but for especially large projects we have had to use a private contractor. There are other
functions like snow plowing the roads or sweeping up the tons of gravel spread during the winter
that Public Works does not have the staffing or equipment to economically perform. Internally,
Public Works will continue to sweep and plow the 12 miles of pedestrian paths around the City.

Private contractors perform all major road-paving projects. Our road paving projects are
typically paid for with state and/or federal funds channeled through the Fairbanks Metropolitan
Area Transportation System (FMATS) with a 9.03% cash match from the City. In 2016, the
proposed FMATS project will repave the Dougchee Road approach between Badger Road and
the bridge; repave the 5™ Avenue and Blanket Boulevard pedestrian paths and crack seal
damaged roads. Public Works will hire a private contractor to perform routine maintenance
projects like filling large potholes and repairing subsiding roads.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Increase in Snow Plow Expense

After salary and road maintenance expenses, the next largest expense in the Public Works budget
is snowplowing. The City Council approved HEEL, Inc. (Hawks Enterprises) to be the City’s
Snowplow contractor for the 2015-2016 snowplowing season. Public Works is asking the City to
consider including additional funding in the snowplowing budget to plow Santa Clause Lane in
the event ADOT’s budget reductions result in less frequent plowing of this major road within the
City. Santa Claus Lane is one of the most heavily traveled roads in the City. The road is so
heavily traveled that snowfall on the road becomes hardpack even before it can be plowed.
Public Work’s does not have the equipment to plow this road. To keep this critical road passable,
Public Works is requesting that additional funding be added to the snowplowing budget to allow
plowing of Badger Road/Santa Claus Lane from the city boundary to the end of Santa Claus
Lane in the event ADOT cannot plow the road in a timely manner. If supplemental funds are
included in the Public Works snowplowing budget to plow Santa Clause Lane, Public Works
will request a quote from Heel to perform the work.

Shifting Salary Expenses to Building Department

Recent increases in the work demands to manage the projects permitted by the Building
Department, the Department is proposing to begin paying a share of the Director of City
Services’ loaded wage. Salary and related expenses associated with the Building Department
have previously been reflected in 10% of the Director’s wages included in the Administration
budget. The 2016 proposed Building Department budget includes 20% of the Director of City
Services loaded wage. The loaded wage includes salary, PERS and health insurance. The time
allocation reduces the share of the Director’s wages paid by the Public Works Department from
30% to 25% and reduces the share paid by the Utility Department from 60% to 55%. Each year
this salary allocation will be re-examined because the level of construction within the City can
vary significantly from year-to-year.



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT EXPENSE

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actuals Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
1 01-08-00-6000 Salaries 99,702 127,153 139,083 154,476 146,443 148,680 148,680
2 01-08-00-6003 Leave Cash Out - - - -
3 01-08-00-6090 Overtime 2,239 4,863 5,118 596 5,000 5,000 5,000
4 01-08-00-6091 Holiday Pay 311 - - 500 -
5 01-08-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 3,761 7,789 9,076 10,102 8,582 9,002 9,002
6 01-08-00-6098 FICA 1,739 2,329 2,114 1,013 2,500 2,500 2,500
7 01-08-00-6099 Medicare 1,007 2,451 2,639 2,430 2,104 2,156 2,156
8 01-08-00-6100 PERS 22,815 29,155 31,599 33,647 31,934 32,710 32,710
9 01-08-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 16,918 40,294 36,593 36,772 43,178 41,938 41,938
10 01-08-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 3,901 1,154 1,269 - 2,000 2,000 2,000
11 01-08-00-6105 Insurance 11,966 13,242 13,242 12,841 16,000 16,000 16,000
12 01-08-00-6100 PERS Relief 11,729 15,565 20,038 46,108 - - -
13 01-08-00-7000 Summer Hire 30,502 39,110 35,135 16,191 43,000 43,000 43,000
14 01-08-00-6106 Unemployment summer hire 114 2,470 3,000 3,000 3,000
15 01-08-00-7001 Parks/Trails/Grounds Supplies 5,095 5,972 8,225 19,887 10,000 15,000 15,000
16 01-08-00-7008 Training 213 3,366 842 - - 1,500 1,500
17 01-08-00-7009 Equipment Outlay 1,487 9,964 15,112 14,975 10,000 10,000 10,000
18 01-08-00-7011 Building Maintenance 10,345 19,208 11,680 9,023 10,000 10,000 10,000
19 01-08-00-7012 Street Maintenance 81,499 66,758 88,519 55,085 72,477 75,000 75,000
20 01-08-00-7013 Street Lights Maintenance 6,520 6,606 5,091 7,149 6,000 10,000 10,000
21 01-08-00-7014 Vehicle Maintenance 1,270 8,998 8,017 23,307 10,000 10,000 10,000
22 01-08-00-7015 Vehicle Gas & Oil 5,165 8,379 8,882 10,415 9,000 11,000 11,000
23 01-08-00-7016 Electricity 5,567 5,551 3,729 4,229 5,000 5,000 5,000
21 01-08-00-7017 Heating Fuel 13,680 15,617 14,154 9,417 15,000 11,000 11,000
22 01-08-00-7018 Telephone, Public Works 1,095 2,578 1,717 3,639 4,500 5,000 5,000
22 01-08-00-7019 Electricity - Radar Sign 51 253 400 400 400
23 01-08-00-7020 Snow Removal 47,100 49,470 60,200 36,500 66,500 76,000 76,000
24 01-08-00-7024  |ARRC Permits 200 - - -
25 01-08-00-7029 Public Works Misc 6,290 2,121 8,587 6,174 5,500 5,500 5,500
26 01-08-00-7031 FMATS Match Participation 32,006 63,384 53,303 56,322 35,023 30,000 30,000
27 01-08-00-7032 Electricity -Street lights 35,019 35,582 29,541 27,518 25,000 25,000 25,000
28 01-08-00-7033 Christmas Decorations 3,548 2,678 975 965 3,000 3,000 3,000
29 01-08-00-70xx Memorial Park Electricity 750 750
30 01-08-00-7034 Beautification 13,316 12,069 18,422 15,000 15,000 15,000
31 01-08-00-7092 Transfer Out 3,631 - -
TOTAL 462,689 606,285 626,715 619,926 606,641 625,136 - 625,136

60



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Public Works Department Breakout of Expenses

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Proposed
PERSONNEL COSTS 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Salaries 99,702 127,153 139,083 154,476 146,443 148,680
Salaries - OT 2,239 4,863 5,118 596 5,000 5,000

Holiday Pay 311 - - - 500 -
Part Time Employees 30,502 39,110 35,135 16,191 43,000 43,000
Taxes 2,745 4,780 4,753 3,443 4,604 4,656
Pers 22,815 29,155 31,599 33,647 31,934 32,710
Leave Cash Out 3,901 1,154 1,269 - 2,000 2,000
Workman's Comp 3,761 7,789 9,076 10,102 8,582 9,002
Unemployment - - 114 2,470 3,000 3,000
Health Insurance 16,918 40,294 36,593 36,772 43,178 41,938
TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 182,895 254,298 262,740 257,697 288,241 289,986
(percent of operating budget) 41% 43% 43% 45% 48% 46%
NON PERSONNEL COSTS 268,065 336,422 343,938 316,122 318,400 335,150
(percent of operating budget) 59% 57% 57% 55% 52% 54%
TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET | 450,959 | 590,720 | 606,677 | 573,819 | 606,641 | 625,136

PERS RELIEF | 11,729 | 15,565 | 20,038 | 46,108 | - | -
[ totaBubeer | 462,688 | 606,285 | 626,715 | 619,926 | 606,641 | 625,136

61




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Utility Department

Adjusting to Cessation of Refining at Flint Hills Resources North Pole
Refinery

Halting oil refining at the Flint Hills Resources North Pole Refinery has had significant
ramifications for the Utility Department. The most significant impact on the Utility has been a
decline in Sewer Division’s revenues. Because billings and customer payments lag one month
behind customer usage, it will not be until February 2016 before the Utility will know the full
impact of the first full year of reduced revenues from Flint Hills; however, the Sewer Division
will be in a deficit situation and will require a transfer from reserves to balance its 2015
expenses.

In 2015, the Utility’s response to the reduction in revenue from Flint Hills was to cut staff and
expenditures and not raise utility rates. This strategy is not a long-term solution for the loss of
revenue from Flint Hills. To maintain services and prevent serious deterioration in utility
infrastructure, the Utility is requesting an increase in the sewer charge while keeping the water
rate unchanged. The requested increase in the sewer charge is from $0.01141/gallon in 2015 to
$0.0134/gallon—an increase of $0.00199/gallon. The rate increase would result in the average
sewer bill increasing by $4.98/month (based upon the average sewer usage of 2,500
gallons/month).

Water System

There are only two modest capital projects planned for the Water Division in 2016. The capital
projects proposed for the Water Division are intended to help protect water infrastructure. The
last several years there have been weather-related prolonged power outages within the City. The
Water Division has been fortunate that the power outages have not directly affected water
infrastructure; however, ignoring the problem could result in devastating impacts on water
infrastructure.

The water treatment plant and well house, including the drinking water wells, have emergency
generators. There are no emergency generators for the three circulation stations. In the depth of
winter, if there was a prolonged power outage that affected one or more circulation stations this
could quickly result in freezing of customer water service lines. As an interim solution prior to
the purchase of emergency generators, the Utility is proposing to install generator hookups at the
circulation stations. Such hookups would enable the utility to use its mobile emergency
generators to power circulation station. This is only a temporary solution because the Utility only
has three mobile emergency generators plus a loan to purchase two additional generators. In a
worst case scenario, these generator could be called upon to power 13 sewer lift stations and 3
water circulation stations. The funding allocated for this project is $25,000 drawn from Utility
Reserves.

The second modest capital project proposed for the Water Division is installation of a security
fence at the well house. The well house is in a relatively isolated location and the current fence

62



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

only blocks vehicle via the entry road. The proposed project would encircle the well house and
the two drinking water wells. A fence would not stop anyone intent on vandalizing the facility,
but it would prevent “casual vandalism” by limiting the easy access that currently exists. The
funding allocated for this project is $15,000 for the well house fence drawn from Utility
Reserves. This fencing project would be combined with an automatic gate at the wastewater
treatment plant.

Wastewater System

The Utility has one major capital project and one minor capital project planned for the
Wastewater Division. The Utility was one of only four municipalities to be awarded a Municipal
Matching Grant (MMG) in the 2016 State Capital Budget. The Utility received a $1.96 million
MMG for the Phase 3 Sewer Rehabilitation Project. The MMG requires a 30% match from the
Utility ($840,000) for a project with a total cost of $2.8 million. Phases 1 & 2 projects
rehabilitated the eight lift stations in greatest need of updating. The four lift station in Phase 3
include Cary Road, Hurst Road, Mockler Drive and Tanana Drive lift stations. If there are
sufficient funds, the project will include rehabilitation of the electronic controls of the 13™ active
lift station (Stillmeyer Subdivision). Engineering and design for the project began in October
2015. The goal is to release the invitation to bid (ITB) in February 2016; identify a construction
contractor in March; award the construction contract in April; begin construction in May; and
achieve substantial completion in September.

The second capital project planned for the Wastewater Division is installation of an
electronically controlled entry gate at the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP). Access to the
WWTP is via an access road at the end of Shellinger Drive. Because the treatment lagoons are
elevated above ground level by approximately 15 feet, the access road is a relative steep grade.
An automatic gate is critical for the safe operation of the Utility’s large jet vac truck. During the
winter, the Utility uses treated wastewater to dump down manholes to protect sewer mains that
are susceptible to freezing. Using treated wastewater saves utility customers from paying for
potable water to prevent the freezing of sewer mains.

During the months when sewer mains are most susceptible to freezing, the jet vac truck makes
multiple trips to the WWTP. For security reasons, each time someone enters the WWTP the
access gate should be closed behind them. With icy road conditions; the jet vac driver must exit
the vehicle; manually open the gate; reenter the vehicle and drive to level ground at the top of the
hill; exit the vehicle and walk down the icy hill and close the gate; walk back up the icy hill to
the jet vac truck and fill the truck with treated wastewater. After the utility staff member has
filled the jet vac with treated wastewater, the driver must stop at the top of the driveway and exit
the vehicle; walk down the icy hill and manually open the access gate; walk back up the icy hill,
reenter the vehicle, and drive down the hill; once outside the gate, they must exit the vehicle,
manually close the gate and reenter the vehicle. Every time the utility staff member exits and re-
enters the vehicle in icy conditions increases the risk of a work-related accident.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Notice of Violation

In 2012 and in 2013, there was loss of
river flow at the sewer outfall on the
Tanana River. Not having river flow at
the sewer outfall is a violation of the
Utility’s discharge permit even though
the loss of river flow is an act of nature.

The Utility began working with ADEC in
late 2013 and into 2014 to develop a
compliance order by consent (COBC) to
find a solution of the loss of river flow at
the sewer outfall. In late summer 2014,
ADEC changed its approach and issued
the Utility a Notice of Violation (NOV).
The NOV requires the Utility to propose
solutions to correct the NOV.
Fortunately, in 2014 the Utility received a
$500,000 legislative award to help fund
determination of a solution to the loss of
river flow at the sewer outfall.

In May 2013 a view of the sewer outaII channel of the
At the end of August 2015, the Utility Tanana River that would typically have flow two to three
submitted a response to the NOV feet deep.

proposing two feasible solutions—
extending the sewer discharge main to a more reliable channel of the Tanana River or
construction a large discharge pond to discharge treated wastewater into the groundwater. The
utility expects to present its preferred solution to ADEC in December 2015. Following approval
of the Utility’s preferred alternative, the Utility will be required to generate engineering plans,
invitation to bid documents and obtain required permits by ADEC’s October 2016 deadline.
Generating the initial responses to the NOV will cost the Utility approximately $220,000 leaving
approximately $280,000 to generate the engineering and acquire the necessary permits.

Shifting Salary Expenses to Building Department

Recent increases in the work demands to manage the projects permitted by the Building
Department, the Department is proposing to begin paying a share of the Director of City
Services’ loaded wage. Salary and related expenses associated with the Building Department
have previously been reflected in 10% of the Director’s wages included in the Administration
budget. The 2016 proposed Building Department budget includes 20% of the Director of City
Services loaded wage. The loaded wage includes salary, PERS and health insurance. The time
allocation reduces the share of the Director’s wages paid by the Public Works Department from
30% to 25% and reduces the share paid by the Utility Department from 60% to 55%. Each year
this salary allocation will be re-examined because the level of construction within the City can
vary significantly from year-to-year.



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

WATER / SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND - Fund 02 - Water-10 & Sewer-12

WATER - 12-10 SEWER - 12-12
Revenues 609,853 Revenues 607,302
Expenses 609,853 Expenses 607,302
Difference - Difference

TOTAL WATER & SEWER
Revenues 1,217,155
Expenses 1,217,155
Difference -

65



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Utility Department Water Revenue

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
1 02-10-00-4165 [PERS Relief 16,481 17,518 21,264 39,332 - -
2 02-10-00-5000 [Water Utility Revenue 610,467 | 629,529 703,722 653,079 723,488 607,853 607,853
3 02-10-00-5800 |Interest on Deposits - - - -
4 02-10-00-5801 Miscellaneous Revenue 48,545 6,274 8,294 7,225.79 - -
5 02-10-00-5802 Reimburseable Water Breaks 2,290 15,367 - -
6 02-10-00-5810 |Bulk Water Sales Revenue 800 - - -
7 02-10-00-5815 |Tie-in Fees 2,250 200 500 - -
8 02-10-00-5820 [Interfund Trans.from General - - - -
9 02-10-00-5825 |Water FRR Residential/Com'| 5,470 - - -
10 02-10-00-5830 |Water Base 5,919 - - -
11 02-10-00-5835 |Lab Testing 13,711 19,914 3,435 2,061 4,000 2,000 2,000
12 02-10-00-5900 |[Transfer In -
13 02-10-00-5901 |Transfer In - FRR Water 53,501 5,625 5,250 3,750 -
TOTAL 759,434 | 694,427 742,465 701,698 731,238 609,853 - 609,853

NOTE: In 2011, Water FRR Residential and Water Base Revenues were transferred to Fund 25

66



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

UTILITY DEPARTMENT WATER EXPENSE

2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget

1 02-10-00-6000 |Salaries 142,375 147,208 151,074 143,654 157,933 153,383.00 153,383
2 02-10-00-6090 Overtime 3,725 2,344 1,950 2,443 4,000 4,000.00 4,000
3 02-10-00-6091 Holiday Pay - - - -

4 02-10-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 4,600 4,928 4,432 4,573 5,367 5,393.00 5,393
5 02-10-00-6098 Fica 9 10 11 - -

6 02-10-00-6099 Medicare 2,157 2,197 2,285 2,109 2,290 2,224.00 2,224
7 02-10-00-6100 PERS 48,327 50,330 33,532 32,573 34,304 34,085.00 34,085
8 02-10-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 31,169 34,354 41,091 38,370 41,471 41,471.00 41,471
9 02-10-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 4,323 3,514 4,171 5,110 5,500 5,000.00 5,000
10 02-10-00-6105 Insurance 17,017 19,288 17,684 18,870 25,000 22,000.00 22,000
11 02-10-00-6106 Unemployment 1,998 555 - - -
12 02-10-00-61xx PERS Relief 21,264 39,332 - -
13 02-10-00-6500 Interest Expense ADWF 5,564 5,625 5,250 4,875 5,975 -
14 02-10-00-7001 Publications & Advertising 371 667 726 1,363 3,000 3,200.00 3,200
15 02-10-00-7003 Billing Service - 1,621 1,983 2,049 3,000 3,000.00 3,000
16 02-10-00-7004  |Audit/Accounting Fees 10,039 9,216 8,977 6,236 11,444 10,000.00 10,000
17 02-10-00-7005 Legal Fees 2,591 2,726 2,012 1,221 5,000 2,500.00 2,500
18 02-10-00-7006 Professional Services (26) 989 989 2,500 2,500.00 2,500
19 02-10-00-7007  |Safety Equipment 235 945 239 562 2,500 2,500.00 2,500
20 02-10-00-7009 Equipment Outlay/Repair 32,459 35,148 52,000 6,314 10,000 10,000.00 10,000
21 02-10-00-7011 System Supplies 3,604 33,074 11,118 4,634 15,000 12,500.00 12,500
22 02-10-00-7012 Water Treatment Chemicals 7,152 7,319 5,041 7,360 15,000 12,500.00 12,500
23 02-10-00-7014  |Vehicle Maintenance 4,582 1,124 207 473 3,000 3,000.00 3,000
24 02-10-00-7015  |Vehicle Gas/oil 5,343 7,178 5,341 4,217 5,500 5,000.00 5,000
25 02-10-00-7019 Laboratory 22,029 11,340 7,305 11,701 10,000 10,000.00 10,000
27 02-10-00-7022 Office Supplies 2,098 3,905 1,952 1,959 3,500 3,500.00 3,500
28 02-10-00-7029 Miscellaneous 5,989 3,634 1,759 1,985 2,000 2,500.00 2,500
29 02-10-00-7039 Postage 3,572 1,234 549 55 3,500 2,000.00 2,000
30 02-10-00-7041 Bad Debt Expense 2,906 260 7,068 2,000 2,000.00 2,000
31 02-10-00-7045  |Training - 321 1,977 1,235 2,500 2,500.00 2,500
32 02-10-00-7050 Debt Retirement-AK.Drinking Water - - 25,000 - -
33 02-10-00-7051 Credit Card User Fees 5,933 6,643 8,107 9,208 7,500 7,500.00 7,500
34 02-10-00-7060 Accumulated Annual Leave 2,308 (113) 1,917 - - - -
35 02-10-00-7092  |Transfer Out - FRR 5,470 - - z
36 02-10-00-7094 Transfer Out - Water Base 5,919 - - - -
37 02-10-00-7097 Transfer Out - Capital Projects 2,144 64,745 - - -
38 02-10-00-7400 Deferred Maintenance Expense 4,218 1,200 15,000 5,000 5,000.00 5,000
39 02-10-00-7500 Utility Truck Replacement - - - -
40 02-10-00-7802 Reimburseable Water Breaks - 1,020 - - -
41 02-10-00-7905 Energy Reserve - - - -




City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

UTILITY DEPARTMENT WATER EXPENSE

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
42 02-10-00-8100 Water - Depreciation Expense 371,492 389,612 522,984 562,377 - - -
43 02-10-04-7016 Electricity WTP 52,007 48,803 45,540 44,328 55,000 55,000.00 55,000
44 02-10-04-7017 Heating Fuel WWTP 81,932 53,466 46,792 52,042 75,000 70,000.00 70,000
45 02-10-04-7018 Telephone WTP 9,687 8,458 4,948 3,586 4,000 4,000.00 4,000
46 02-10-04-7020 Building Maintenance WTP 122 192 220 2,000 2,000.00 2,000
47 02-10-05-7018 Telephone - SCADA 7,954 7,526 8,000 8,000.00 8,000
48 02-10-06-7016 Electricity - Highway Park 21,140 21,719 24,200 20,403 27,500 25,000.00 25,000
49 02-10-06-7017 Heating Fuel - Highway Park 3,809 5,463 3,989 3,659 5,000 5,000.00 5,000
50 02-10-06-7018 Telephone - Hiway Park 406 403 149 - 250 - -
51 02-10-06-7020 Building Maintenance - Highway Park - 975 500 500.00 500
52 02-10-08-7016 Electricity - 8th Avenue 8,896 10,352 9,420 8,827 13,000 12,000.00 12,000
53 02-10-08-7017 Heating Fuel - 8th Avenue 3,813 3,289 4,773 4,033 4,500 4,500.00 4,500
54 02-10-08-7020 Building Maintenance - 8th Avenue 243 765 110 500 500.00 500
55 02-10-10-7016 Electricity - Stillmeyer 14,740 14,881 16,313 15,622 23,000 20,000.00 20,000
56 02-10-10-7017 Heating Fuel - Stillmeyer 2,039 3,574 2,675 1,756 3,000 3,500.00 3,500
57 02-10-10-7018 Telephone - Stillmeyer 472 459 169 - 250 - -
58 02-10-10-7020 Building Maintenance - Stillmeyer - 110 500 500.00 500
59 02-10-11-7016 Electricity - Well House 9,190 12,084 11,608 13,166 13,000 13,000.00 13,000
60 02-10-11-7017 Heating Fuel - Well House 1,871 6,606 2,665 2,061 5,000 3,500.00 3,500
61 02-10-11-7018 Telephone - Well House 1,920 2,942 280 - 250 - -
62 02-10-xx-7020 Building Maintenance - Well House 500 500.00 500
63 02-10-00-7999 Move to Retained Earnings - - 9,149 - -
64 02-10-12-7016 Electricity - Utility Shop 6,969 6,008 3,000 2,500.00 2,500
65 02-10-12-7017 Heating Fuel - Utility Shop 3,247 6,953 2,997 4,000 4,000.00 4,000
66 02-10-12-7018 |Telephone - Utility Shop 115 849 1,683 1,000 1,000.00 1,000
67 02-10-12-7031 Snow Removal - - -
68 02-10-12-7020 Building Maintainance - Utility Shop 31 2,137 2,500.00 2,500
69 02-10-00-7999 Transfer to Retained Earnings 50,724 3,097.00 3,097
70 02-10-xx-7020 Well House Maintainance -

TOTAL 973,971 | 1,048,596 1,115,561 1,127,068 729,544 609,853 - 609,853

68




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Water Department Breakout of Expenses

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Proposed
PERSONNEL COSTS 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Salaries 142,375 | 147,208 151,074 143,654 | 157,933 153,383
Salaries - OT 3,725 2,344 1,950 2,443 4,000 4,000
Holiday Pay - - - - - -
Taxes 2,157 2,206 2,295 2,120 2,290 2,224
Pers 48,327 50,330 33,532 32,573 34,304 34,085
Leave Cash Out 4,323 3,514 4,171 5,110 5,500 5,000
Workman's Comp 4,600 4,928 4,432 4,573 5,367 5,393
Health Insurance 31,169 34,354 41,091 38,370 41,471 41,471
TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 236,677 | 244,884 238,545 228,842 [ 250,865 245,556
(percent of operating budget) 40% 41% 42% 44% 37% 40%
NON PERSONNEL COSTS 349,962 | 349,469 330,852 296,516 | 427,955 361,200
(percent of operating budget) 60% 59% 58% 56% 63% 60%
TOTAL OPERATINGBUDGET | 586,639 | 594,352 | 569,397 [ 525358 | 678,820 | 606,756
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE | 371,492 | 389612 522984 | 562,377 | - -
TRANSFERS OUT | 13,533 | 64,745 | - - - -
PERS RELIEF | - | - 21,264 | 39,332 | - -
[ TOTAUBUDGET N 073,971 | 1,048,596 | 1,115,561 | 1,127,068 | 678,820 606,756

69




City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

Utility Department Water Reserve (Fund 25)

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Proposed

# Account Number REVENUES Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
1 25-10-00-5825 FRR Residential Water 65,235 63,818 65,064 98,705 101,810 96,425 96,425
2 25-10-00-5830 Water Base 70,438 71,512 71,662 72,376 80,880 79,740 79,740
3 25-10-00-5900 Transfer in from Retained Earnings - -
TOTAL 135,673 | 135,330 136,726 171,081 182,690 176,165 - 176,165
358,855

EXPENSES

4 25-10-00-7091  |Transfer out Fund 3 (Capital Projects) 337,248 40,000 40,000
5 25-10-00-7091  |Transfer out Fund 55 (Utility Fleet) - 11,250 11,250 11,250
6 25-10-00-7091  |Transfer out Fund 2 (Utility) - -
7 25-10-00-7092 Transfer Out - FRR - 104,180 24,486 3,750 -
8 25-10-00-7093 Transfer Out - Water Base 134,805 54,018 -
9 25-10-00-7xxx ADWF (633011) Water Loan 30,975 30,975
10 25-10-00-7999 Transfer To Retained Earnings 167,690 93,940 93,940
TOTAL - 238,985 78,504 337,248 182,690 176,165 - 176,165

NOTE: Expenses to this fund will be for the repair and replacement of water utility infrastructure. These expenses will need to have the approval of council.

NOTE: Expenses to this fund will also be for the 10% pay back on the principal and the related interest on various ADEC water loans.

NOTE: 2010 and 2011 Budget Actuals vary slightly from financials: In the budget, amounts in the Transfer From accounts have been combined with the normal revenue accounts
25-10-00-5901 - has been combined with 25-10-00-5825
25-10-00-5902 - has been combined with 25-10-00-5830

This makes it easier to compare revenues year to year.

NOTE: In 2014, the City began transfering to Utility Fleet (Fund 55) at a 50% match rate from Fund 25 (water reserves) and Fund 27 (Sewer reserves)

Water Reserves (Fund 25)

Retained Earnings

Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/15

161,565

70



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Utility Department Sewer Revenue

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
1 02-12-00-4165 PERS Relief 20,484 22,004 26,805 45,882 - -
2 02-12-00-5000 Sewer Utility Revenue 496,780 571,804 625,436 533,579 473,913 527,302 527,302
3 02-12-00-5002 Flint Hills Lab Testing 6,361 687 - 10,000 10,000
4 02-12-00-5005 SID Pretreatment Program - 196,502 58,611 27,027 70,000 70,000 70,000
5 02-12-00-5010 Construction Permits 39,873 - - -
6 02-12-00-5800 Interest on Deposits 309 248 138 - - -
7 02-12-00-5801 Miscellaneous Revenue 8,032 1,158 5,245 105,864 - -
8 02-12-00-5802 Industrial SID Lab Tests 94,001 45,995 - - -
9 02-12-00-5805 Facility Repair & Replacement 7,204 - - -
10 02-12-00-5815 Tie-In Fees 750 200 - - -
11 02-12-00-5820 Interfund Trans.from General - - -
12 02-12-00-5825 Sewer FRR Com'l & Residential 5,007 - 33,802 -
13 02-12-00-5830 Sewer Base 5,464 - 11,948 -
14 02-12-00-5900 Transfer In 26,495 25,978 53,407 40,750 -
15 02-12-00-5900 Transfer In From Retained Earnings 50,724 -

TOTAL 638,031 904,280 748,574 766,446 681,137 607,302 - 607,302

NOTE: In 2014, SID Lab Test account# (02-12-00-5802) was consolidated with the SID Pretreatment Program account# (02-12-00-5005)

NOTE : In 2011, Sewer FRR and Sewer Base revenues were transfered to Fund 27

71



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Sewer Expense

2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
1 02-12-00-6000 Salaries 177,617 185,096 190,588 169,051 153,268 153,383 153,383
2 02-12-00-6090 Overtime 4,280 2,709 2,310 1,375 5,000 5,000 5,000
3 02-12-00-6091 Holiday Pay - - -
4 02-12-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 6,656 7,185 6,288 5,761 5,097 5,356 5,356
5 02-12-00-6098 Fica 11 11 12 - -
6 02-12-00-6099 Medicare 2,692 2,750 2,867 2,453 2,222 2,224 2,224
7 02-12-00-6100 PERS 60,040 63,220 42,270 37,783 33,277 34,085 34,085
8 02-12-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 58,784 65,267 60,973 48,275 41,471 41,471 41,471
9 02-12-00-6103 Leave Cash Outs 6,283 4,302 4,978 4,296 5,000 5,000 5,000
10 02-12-00-6105 Insurance 17,255 10,461 16,034 15,957 18,000 18,000 18,000
11 02-12-00-6106 Unemployment 4,662 1,295 - - -
12 02-12-02-6107 WWTP Land Acquisition - 630 - -
13 02-12-00-6xxx PERS Relief 26,805 45,882 - -
14 02-12-00-6500 Rev. Bond Int. (HwyPkSewer) 26,074 26,495 25,978 27,026 25,000 -
15 02-12-00-6501 Interest Expense - ACWF Loans - 2,332 - -
16 02-12-00-6600 Rev. Bond Princ.(HwyPkSewer) - - 11,500 -
17 02-12-00-6601 Principal Payment - ACWE Loans - - 33,802 -
18 02-12-00-7001 Publications & Advertising 1,439 260 776 1,188 2,000 2,500 2,500
19 02-12-00-7003 Billing Service - 1,621 1,983 2,049 3,000 3,000 3,000
20 02-12-00-7004 Audit/Accounting Fees 10,039 9,216 8,977 6,236 11,444 10,000 10,000
21 02-12-00-7005 Legal Fees 4,131 3,487 2,510 3,322 5,000 2,500 2,500
22 02-12-00-7006 Professional Services 181 9,645 5,293 10,730 2,500 2,500 2,500
23 02-12-00-7007 Safety Equipment 1,490 1,894 360 1,570 2,000 2,000 2,000
24 02-12-00-7008 Pretreatment Program 13,550 39,040 61,322 77,489 70,000 70,000 70,000
25 02-12-00-7009 Equipment Outlay/Repair 63,849 10,734 15,423 5,962 18,500 10,000 10,000
26 02-12-00-7010 Utility Truck Replacement - 25 - -
27 02-12-00-7011 System Supplies 6,998 9,675 15,761 5,841 10,000 10,000 10,000
28 02-12-00-7012 | & | Evaluation & Repair - - - -
29 02-12-00-7013 WWTP Chemicals 21,231 23,180 16,539 18,400 20,000 20,000 20,000
30 02-12-00-7014 Vehicle Maintenance 1,325 2,575 950 2,060 4,000 4,000 4,000
31 02-12-00-7015 Vehicle Gas & Oil 6,715 7,487 6,074 5,548 7,000 7,000 7,000
32 02-12-00-7017 Heating Fuel - WWTP - - -
33 02-12-00-7019 Laboratory 112,535 89,093 44,697 28,144 35,000 40,000 40,000
34 02-12-00-7023 Laboratory - Industrial Pretreatment - -
35 02-12-00-7021 Liability Insurance - - - -
36 02-12-00-7022 Office Supplies 187 2,490 4,653 1,293 2,500 2,500 2,500
37 02-12-00-7029 Miscellaneous 4,466 2,616 (756) 5,751 6,500 5,000 5,000
38 02-12-00-7039 Utitlity Postage 3,587 1,750 578 99 3,000 3,000 3,000
39 02-12-00-7042 Bad Debt Expense 2,140 86 7,033 1,000 1,000 1,000
40 02-12-00-7045 Training 218 321 160 6 2,000 2,000 2,000
41 02-10-00-7050 Credit Card User Fees 5,787 6,491 8,107 9,208 7,500 7,500 7,500

72




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Sewer Expense

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget

42 02-12-00-7060 Accumulated Annual Leave 2,308 (113) 2,192 - - -
43 02-12-00-7092 Transfer Out - FRR 5,007 - -
44 02-12-00-7094 Transfer Out - Sewer Base 5,464 - -
45 02-12-00-7096 Transfer Out - FRR Industrial 7,204 - -
46 02-12-00-7097 Transfer Out - Capital Projects 2,144 - -
47 02-12-00-7300 Richardson Hwy. Dawson Crossing - - -
48 02-12-00-7400 Deferred Maintenance Expense 273 1,200 - 2,000 10,000 10,000
49 02-12-00-7600 Transfer FRR 249,296 -
50 02-12-00-7905 Energy Reserve - - -
51 02-12-00-8100 Sewer - Depreciation Expense 689,913 723,565 971,256 1,044,414 - -
52 02-12-04-7016 Electricity -WWTP 55,730 61,115 63,247 55,789 65,000 60,000 60,000
53 02-12-04-7017 Heating Fuel -WWTP 15,931 15,087 13,752 16,150 16,000 16,000 16,000
54 02-12-04-7018 Telephone - WWTP 3,575 2,612 4,486 3,438 3,750 3,450 3,450
55 02-12-04-7020 Building Maintenance - WWTP - 3,522 1,000 2,500 2,500
56 02-12-05-7018 Telephone - SCADA - 6,788 4,766 7,500 8,000 8,000
57 02-12-06-7016 Electricity - Generator Storage 244 230 226 144 - -
58 02-12-06-7017 Heating Fuel - Generator Storage - - -
59 02-12-70-7016 Electricity -Lift Station 1A - Holiday 5,009 3,496 3,621 3,268 4,000 4,000 4,000
60 02-12-70-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 1A 94 534 50 - 250 - -
61 02-12-71-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 2A - Yukon 4,334 2,424 2,585 2,735 4,500 4,000 4,000
62 02-12-71-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 2A - Yukon 94 579 50 - 250 - -
63 02-12-72-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 3A - Kitt 1,845 1,197 1,152 1,199 2,000 1,500 1,500
64 02-12-72-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 3A - Kitt 94 583 50 - 250 - -
65 02-12-73-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 3B - 8th Ave 594 569 749 937 1,000 1,000 1,000
66 02-12-73-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 3B 571 513 95 - 750 - -
67 02-12-74-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 3C - N Blanket 3,065 2,740 2,834 2,376 3,250 3,000 3,000
68 02-12-74-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 3C 533 419 95 - 250 - -
69 02-12-75-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 4B - S Blanket 1,169 1,150 - -
70 02-12-75-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 4B 472 417 - -
71 02-12-76-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 4C - Black Bear 2,527 2,758 - -
72 02-12-76-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 4C 472 417 - -
73 02-12-77-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 4F - H&H 5,163 5,838 2,765 2,456 4,000 2,000 2,000
74 02-12-77-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 4F 533 513 95 - 250 - -
75 02-12-78-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 5A - Finnel 683 722 957 943 1,250 2,000 2,000
76 02-12-78-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 5A 533 513 95 - 250 - -
77 02-12-79-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 5B - Hurst 1,458 966 1,245 1,057 1,750 1,500 1,500
78 02-12-80-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 6A - Old Richardson 1,899 1,124 1,087 727 1,000 1,000 1,000
79 02-12-80-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 6A - Old Richardson 94 534 50 - 250 - -
80 02-12-81-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 6B - Tanana 770 836 872 855 1,250 1,250 1,250
81 02-12-82-7016 Electricity - Lift Station Mockler 644 745 767 681 1,000 1,000 1,000
82 02-12-83-7016 Electricity - Lift Station Stillmeyer 4,063 3,661 3,567 2,051 3,000 3,000 3,000
83 02-12-83-7018 Telephone - Stillmeyer 434 417 - - - -




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Sewer Expense

2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget

84 02-12-84-7016 Electricity - Utility Shop - 3,000 2,500 2,500
85 02-12-84-7017 Heating Fuel - Utility Shop 5,424 2,997 4,000 4,000 4,000
86 02-12-84-7018 Telephone - Utility Shop 849 1,683 1,000 1,000 1,000
87 02-12-10-7020 Building Maintenance -Utility Shop - 2,500 2,500 2,500
88 02-12-00-7031 Snow Removal - - - -
89 02-12-00-7999 Move to Retained Earnings - - 3,083 3,083

TOTAL 1,449,149 1,426,615 1,914,030 1,704,949 682,831 607,302 607,302

74




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Utility Department Sewer Breakout of Expenses

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Proposed
PERSONNEL COSTS 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Salaries 177,617 185,096 190,588 169,051 153,268 153,383
Salaries - OT 4,280 2,709 2,310 1,375 5,000 5,000
Holiday Pay - - - - - -
Pers 60,040 63,220 42,270 37,783 33,277 34,085
Taxes 2,692 2,762 2,878 2,465 2,222 2,224
Leave Cash Out 6,283 4,302 4,978 4,296 5,000 5,000
Workman's Comp 6,656 7,185 6,288 5,761 5,097 5,356
Unemployment 4,662 1,295 - - - -
Health Insurance 58,784 65,267 60,973 48,275 41,471 41,471
TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 321,014 331,835 310,285 269,005 245,335 246,519
(percent of operating budget) 44% 47% 34% 44% 36% 41%
NON PERSONNEL COSTS 416,095 371,328 603,492 345,018 437,496 357,700
(percent of operating budget) 56% 53% 66% 56% 64% 59%
TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET | 737,109 | 703,163 | 913,777 | 614,023 | 682,831 | 604,219 |
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE | 689,913 | 723,565 | 971,256 | 1,044,414 | - - |
TRANSFERS OUT | 19,819 | - - - - 3,083 |
PERS RELIEF | - - 26,805 | 45,882 | - - |
ACCRUED LEAVE | 2,308 | (113)] 2,192 | - - -
[ votaBubGET ] 1,449,149 | 1,426,615 | 1,914,030 | 1,704,319 | 682,831 | 607,302 |

75



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Utility Fund Sewer Reserves (Fund 27)

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 27-12-00-5801 Miscellaneous Revenue 3,399 - - -
2 27-12-00-5805 FRR Industrial Sewer 67,714 71,749 320,472 51,649 29,333 29,333
3 27-12-00-5825 FRR Sewer 58,993 57,607 58,198 89,382 105,389 89,250 89,250
4 27-12-00-5830 Sewer Base 64,262 65,458 65,540 65,911 73,560 69,300 69,300
5 27-12-00-5900 Transfer from Retained Earnings - 712,169 712,169
6 27-12-00-5900 Transfer from (Assesments Dist 1) 36,965 36,965
TOTAL 190,969 198,211 444,210 206,942 178,949 937,017 - - 937,017
EXPENSES
7 27-12-00-7091  |Transfer out Fund 3 (Capital Projects) 589,113 855,000 855,000
8 27-12-00-7091 Transfer out Fund 55 (Utility Fleet) - 11,250 11,250 11,250
9 27-10-00-7xxx Loan Expense (ACWF #633291) 33,802 33,802
10 27-10-00-7xxx Loan Expense (USDA #92.06) 36,965 36,965
11 27-12-00-7091 Transfer out Fund 02 (Utility ) - 11,948 -
12 27-12-00-7092 Transfer Out - FRR 227,382 107,436 32,210 3,750 -
13 27-12-00-7093 Transfer Out - Sewer Base 105,710 24,440 - -
14 27-10-00-7999 Transfer To Retained Earnings 152,001 -
TOTAL 227,382 213,147 56,650 589,113 178,949 937,017 - - 937,017

NOTE: Expenses to this fund will be for the repair and replacement of water utility infrastructure. These expenses will need to have the approval of council.
NOTE: Expenses to this fund will also be for the 10% pay back on the principal and the related interest on various ADEC water loans.
NOTE: 2010 and 2011 Budget Actuals vary slightly from financials: In the budget, amounts in the Transfer From accounts have been combined with the normal revenue accounts
27-10-00-5901 - has been combined with 27-12-00-5825
27-10-00-5902 - has been combined with 27-12-00-5830
27-12-00-5903 - has been combined with 27-12-00-5805
This makes it easier to compare revenues year to year.

NOTE : In 2014, the City began transfering to Utility Fleet (Fund 55) at a 50% match rate from Fund 25 (Water reserves) and Fund 27 (Sewer reserves)

NOTE: In 2014, we also began including the YTD account Balance with the published budget

Sewer Reserves (Fund 27)
Retained Earning{ Balance
10/21/15 232,041

Account Balance as of

76



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Captial Projects (Fund 3)

2016 2016

Line 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget

REVENUES
1 03-50-00-5001 Utility Well and Controlls 28,036 147,500 -
p 03-52-00-5900 Transfer: WWTP Land Aquistition 109,503 -
3 03-64-00-5001 W Water Plant ADEC #63321 41,640 -
4 03-64-00-5002 W Water Plant USDA 60-002-1586 113,701 -
5 03-65-00-5001 Water Plant E & D #63320 61,332 -
6 03-65-00-5002 Water Plant E & D #60-002-1585 184,634 -
7 03-69-00-5001 Techite Grant Rev 14,028 -
8 03-72-00-5001 WWTP Rehab grant revenue 1,714,698 | 1,075,140 -
9 03-72-00-5900 WWTP Rehab Transfer In 764,429 708,526 -
10 03-73-00-5003 Mixing Zone Compliance Rev 1,206 500,000 320,000 320,000
11 03-75-00-5001 Lift Station Rehab Phase 3 MMG 63324 1,960,000 1,960,000 1,960,000
12 03-74-00-5001 State ACWF Rev (loan ACWF 633031) 302,500 111,000 111,000
13 -
TOTAL - - - 3,033,206 | 4,693,666 2,391,000 2,391,000
EXPENSES

14 03-50-00-7001 Utility Well and Controlls 28,036 147,500 -
15 03-52-00-7001 WWTP Land Aquistition 109,503 -
16 03-64-00-7002 W Water Design and Eng 155,128 -
17 03-65-00-7001 Water Plant E & D #63320 246,178 -
18 03-69-00-7001 Techite Expense 20,041 -
19 03-72-00-7001 WWTP Rehab Construction Exp 2,160,048 | 1,075,140 -
20 03-72-00-7002 WWTP Rehab Engineering 289,520 708,526 -
21 03-73-00-7003 Mixing Zone Compliance 1,206 500,000 320,000 320,000
22 03-74-00-7004 Emergency Generators ACWF 633031 172,936 302,500 111,000 111,000
23 03-75-00-7001 Lift Station Rehab Phase 3 MMG 63324 1,960,000 1,960,000 1,960,000
24 -
25 -
26 -
27 -
28 -
29 -
30 -
31 -
TOTAL - - - 3,154,560 | 4,693,666 2,391,000 2,391,000

77



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Debt Service Funds

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general obligation bond and special assessment debt principal, interest and related
cost for issuance that are not accounted for in other funds.

78



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

Assesments (Fund 04)

2016 2016

Line 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actual  Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget

REVENUES
1 04-00-00-4000 Go Bond Issuance -
2 04-00-00-4100 Current Assesments Recievable -
3 04-00-00-4500 Assesments Prinicple Dist 1 2,085 3,000 3,000
4 04-00-00-4501 Assesment Principle Dist 2 18,949 19,000 19,000
5 04-00-00-4502 Assesment Principle Dist 3 170,512 170,000 170,000
6 04-00-00-4600 Assesment Interest Dist 1 1,209 1,215 1,215
7 04-00-00-4601 Assesment Interest Dist 2 5,167 5,200 5,200
8 04-00-00-4700 Assesment Interest Dist 3 34,691 34,750 34,750
9 04-00-00-47xx Assesment Penatly Dist 1 - -
10 04-00-00-4701 Assesment Penatly Dist 2 1,057 1,200 1,200
11 04-00-00-4702 Assesment Penatly Dist 3 7,564 7,600 7,600
12 04-00-00-xxxx Transfer from Fund Balance - -
13 -
TOTAL - - 241,234 241,965 241,965
EXPENSES

14 04-00-00-6500 Highway Park Bond interest 4,183 4,200 4,200
15 04-00-00-6550 Stillmeyer Bond Interest 41,300 41,300 41,300
16 04-00-00-6600 Highway Park Bond Principle 12,707 13,000 13,000
17 04-00-00-6650 Stillmeyer Bond Principle 60,000 60,000 60,000
18 04-00-00-7000 Bond Escrow 36,965 37,000 37,000
19 04-00-00-7001 Stillmeyer Bond Fees - -
20 04-00-000-7005 |Legal Expense 5,000 5,000
21 04-00-00-7029 Miscellaneous Expenses - -
22 04-00-00-7039 Postage/ Meter Rental - -
23 04-00-00-7092 Transfer Out - -
24 04-00-00-xxxx Highway Park Revenue Bond 36,500 36,500
25 04-00-00-7999 Transfer to Fund Balance 90,262 44,965 44,965
TOTAL - - 241,234 241,965 241,965

Assesments (Fund 04)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

| 10/21/2015

124,240

79



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Building Department

The Building Department is responsible for implementing the building codes adopted by the
City. The City has traditionally adopted the same national building codes as the City of
Fairbanks. In addition, the City also traditionally adopts the amendments to the national codes
adopted by the City of Fairbanks based upon recommendations by the Building Code
Commission composed of building professionals from the Interior. North Pole does this for two
reasons. First, having uniform building codes across the two cities makes it easier for developers
and contractors who operate in both municipalities. Second, it is an expensive process and the
City lacks the personnel and resources to conduct an independent review of the national codes
and generate code amendments. The City does adopt additional code amendments to reflect
unique or special conditions that apply in the City.

Building codes are “best practices” that provide builders, contractors, tradesman, and do-it
yourselfers guidance concerning standards of construction. Building according to the codes also
provides protection of property owners’ health and safety and investment by helping to ensure
that structures are safe, secure and energy efficient. To ensure that the City provides quality plan
review and inspections of construction within the City, the Building Department contracts with
professional engineers licensed in the State of Alaska to provide these services.

Projected Major Building Projects in 2016

The majority of the Building
Department budget reflects
the projected revenues from
the construction of an Asphalt
Plant by the Petro Star
Refinery and the development
of a senior residential
community located in the
Stillmeyer Subdivision. These
two projects have an
estimated combined value of
$60 million. The Asphalt
Plant has an accelerated
construction schedule with
construction that began in late
2015 with a completion date

projected for May 2016. Due
- — to the design-build
7 S construction plan and the
, % | ¥ complexity of the project
A Wy (TSI ST e ST involving multiple separate
3-D rendering of Asphalt Production facility planned at the Petro Star projects, the Building
Refinery. Department worked with

Petro Star to issue a Blanket

80



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Building Permit that will encompass all the components of the project under a single permit. The
senior community project has a projected three-year construction plan. As of the submission of
the budget in October 2016, the Building Department has issued no permits for the senior
housing project.

Shifting Salary Expenses to Building Department

Recent increases in the work demands to manage the projects permitted by the Building
Department, the Department is proposing to begin paying a share of the Director of City
Services’ loaded wage. Salary and related expenses associated with the Building Department
have previously been reflected in 10% of the Director’s wages included in the Administration
budget. The 2016 proposed Building Department budget includes 20% of the Director of City
Services loaded wage. The loaded wage includes salary, PERS and health insurance. The time
allocation reduces the share of the Director’s wages paid by the Public Works Department from
30% to 25% and reduces the share paid by the Utility Department from 60% to 55%. Each year
this salary allocation will be re-examined because the level of construction within the City can
vary significantly from year-to-year.



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

Building (Fund 05)
2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 05-00-00-4001 Residential Plan Check Fee 7,946 1,000 2,908 - 5,000 10,000 10,000
2 05-00-00-4002 Residential Building Permit Fee 14,193 2,388 5,075 1,148 5,000 15,000 15,000
3 05-00-00-4003 Commercial Plan Check Fee 8,766 15,737 17,781 5,000 55,000 55,000
4 05-00-00-4004 Commerical Building Permit Fee 28,852 40,155 36,624 5,000 80,000 80,000
5 05-00-00-4005 Industrial Plan Check Fee - : 5,000 10,000 10,000
6 05-00-00-4006 Industrial Building Permit Fee 8,925 - 5,000 15,000 15,000
7 Institutional Plan Review Fee 32,000 12,500 12,500
8 Institutional Building Permit 25,000 7,500 7,500
9 05-00-00-4007 Road Excavation Bond 5,000 500,000 5,000 5,000
10 05-00-00-4008 Storm Water Plan Inspection Fee = 1,000 1,000 1,000
11 05-00-00-4009 Storm Water Permit Fee - 1,000 1,500 1,500
12 05-40-00-4010 Special Inspection Fee - -
13 05-00-00-5900 Transfer In From Fund Balance = 60,000 100,000 100,000
TOTAL 59,757 3,388 72,801 60,553 649,000 312,500 - 312,500
312,500
EXPENSES
1 01-08-00-6000 Salaries - 20,244 20,244
2 01-08-00-60xx Workers Comp. Ins. - 174 174
3 01-08-00-60xx PERS - 4,454 4,454
4 01-08-00-60xx Medicare - 294 294
5 01-08-00-60xx Health & Disability Insurance - 3,734 3,734
6 05-00-00-7000 Road Excavation Bond Return - 5,000 500,000 5,000 5,000
7 05-00-00-7001 Residential Plan Review 4,000 500 3,000 - 6,000 7,500 7,500
8 05-00-00-7002 Residential Inspections 6,150 5,250 2,000 750 5,000 12,500 12,500
9 05-00-00-7003 Commercial Plan Review 9,298 697 10,060 18,229 10,000 35,000 35,000
10 05-00-00-7004 Commercial Inspections 25,113 20,314 15,503 17,000 65,000 65,000
11 05-00-00-7005 Industrial Plan Review 3,024 1,492 7,500 50,000 50,000
12 05-00-00-7006 Industrial Inspections 1,437 5,715 9,828 12,500 60,000 60,000
13 05-00-00-7005 Institutional Plan Review : 15,000 7,500 7,500
14 05-00-00-7006 Institutional Inspections = 42,000 12,500 12,500
15 05-00-00-7007 Storm Water Plan Inspections - 1,000 1,000
16 05-00-00-7008 Storm Water Site Inspections z - 1,500 1,500
17 05-01-00-7001 Publications & Advertising 260 417 2,000 3,000 3,000
18 05-01-00-7005 Legal Fees 75 100 - 1,000 1,000 1,000
19 05-01-00-7006 Professional Services 1,350 17,346 15,000 6,000 6,000
20 05-01-00-7022 Office Supplies/Software 1,607 422 277 883 7,500 7,500 7,500
21 05-01-00-7029 Admin/Misc. Expenses 262 343 2,500 2,600 2,600
22 05-01-00-7041 Bad Debt Expense z - -
23 05-01-00-7049 Training Classes/Manuals 819 1,239 6,000 6,000 6,000
24 TOTAL 47,680 9,561 44,490 71,029 649,000 312,500 - 312,500
25
Building (Fund 05) NOTE: 20% of the wages and benifits for Director of City Services are now comming from the building department starting in
Date Fund Balance 2016 to account for additional work required

Account Balance as of |

10/21/2015

142,205

from new

NOTE : A portion of the revenue from Fund Balance Transfer In is from revenues recieved in prior years; but the correlating
expenses are not projected until the preceeding year.

82



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Non-Major Funds

Non-Major Funds are established to finance a particular activity and are created from receipts
of designated and restricted revenues.

83



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND - Fund 16

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
16-00-00-5900 Transfer in from fund balance 3,567 -
2 16-00-00-4001 Revenue 24,897 -
3 16-00-00-5100 Donations - Volunteer Dinner 7,000 -
TOTAL 31,897 - - 3,567
EXPENSES
4 16-00-00-7901 Transfer to General Fund 13,500 -
5 16-00-00-7000 Expenses 9,285 19,665 9,828 3,595 -
6 16-00-00-7001 Volunteer Dinner 5,840 -
TOTAL 15,126 19,665 23,328 3,595

NOTE - This fund is funded by Dept of Forestry use of city fire trucks and by special donations. It is used by the Fire Department
for expenses related to upgrading the fire department and their annual dinner.

Fire (Fund 16)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

(28)

84



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

ABADE - Fund 21

2016 2015
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Amended
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 21-00-00-4001 Revenues 60,384 6,382 26,747 49,605 30,496 -
2 21-00-00-5900 Transfer In 2,665 934 105,430 110,000 110,000
TOTAL 60,384 6,382 29,412 50,538 135,926 110,000 - 110,000
EXPENSES
3 21-00-00-7000 Expeditures 3,995 31,505 10,931 12,500 100,516 110,000 110,000
4 21-00-00-7001 Vehicle Purchase 23,936 35,410 -
5 21-00-00-7002 Equipment 22,547 - -
6 21-00-00-7091 Transfer Out 6,311 -
TOTAL 3,995 77,987 17,242 12,500 135,926 110,000 - 110,000

Abade (Fund 21)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

124,878

NOTE: This fund is for drug forfeiture monies that come to the City through the Federal Government. These monies must be accounted
for separately in their own fund. There are very tight restrictions as to the use of these monies. All expenses must be approved by the
federal department of justice.

85




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

AHSO TRAFFIC OFFICER - Fund 22

2016 2016

Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed

#  Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget

REVENUES
| 1 22-00-00-4001 Grant Revenue 91,357 75,989 84,550 54,512 -
22-00-00-4165 PERS Relief 4,256 3,279 6,960 - -
| TOTAL 95,613 79,269 91,510 54,512 - - -
EXPENSES
4 22-00-00-6000 Salaries 47,043 37,130 46,305 29,834 -
5 22-00-00-6022 Training Overtime 1,192 581 -
6 22-00-00-6090 Overtime 2,735 2,558 2,648 1,196 -
7 22-00-00-6091 Holiday Pay 1,047 433 935 144 -
10 22-00-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 2,225 2,154 2,152 1,452 -
11 22-00-00-6098 FICA 3

12 22-00-00-6099 Medicare 744 682 694 437 -
13 22-00-00-6100 PERS 15,735 12,407 10,976 7,157 -
14 22-00-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 19,649 23,904 20,839 13,707 -
15 22-00-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 1,387 -
16 22-00-00-6105 Insurance -
17 22-00-00-7000 Expenditures 3,855 -
18 20-00-00-6100 Pers Relief 6,960 - -
TOTAL 95,613 79,269 91,509 54,512 - - -

NOTE: In the past, expenses and revenues, for the AHSO Traffic Officer, were budgeted in the General Fund even though the actual

revenues and expenses were booked to Fund 22. Starting in 2011, the City of North Pole will begin budgeting all revenues and

expenses from this program in Fund 22.
NOTE: The City has received a state grant for 100% funding of this position through September 30, 2013.
NOTE: The AHSO Grant was a 90% match for the salary of the officer in 2014

NOTE: THe AHSO Grant will be a 75% match for the salary of the officer in 2015.
NOTE: The City Council defunded this position in 2015 and terminated the grant

86




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

BYRNE/JAG OFFICER - Fund 23

2016 2016

Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget

REVENUES
1 23-00-00-4001  |Grant Revenue 40,353 72,704 45,662 50,000 50,000 35,000 35,000
2 23-00-00-4165 PERS Relief 3,263 6,529 2,299 -
TOTAL 43,616 79,233 47,961 50,000 50,000 35,000 - 35,000
EXPENSES

3 23-00-00-6022 Training Overtime - - - -
4 23-00-00-6000 Salaries 20,460 44,583 25,807 28,639 30,000 35,000 35,000
5 23-00-00-6022 Training Overtime 38 - -
6 23-00-00-6090 |Overtime 1,839 2,407 1,692 1,849 -
7 23-00-00-6091  |Holiday Pay 517 567 - -
8 23-00-00-6095 Grant Overtime - 534 - -
9 23-00-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 1,070 2,451 1,204 1,394 1,410 -
10 23-00-00-6099 Medicare 354 784 (2,582) 434 435 -
11 23-00-00-6100 PERS 12,064 18,759 3,625 6,320 6,600 -
12 23-00-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 7,312 9,111 15,916 11,365 11,555 -
13 23-00-00-6103 Leave Cash Out - - - -
14 23-00-00-6108 Pers Relief 2,299 -
15 23-00-00-7000 Expenditures - - - -
TOTAL 43,616 79,233 47,961 50,000 50,000 35,000 - 35,000

NOTE: In the past, expenses and revenues, for the JAG Officer, were budgeted in the General Fund even though the actual
revenues and expenses were booked to Fund 23. Starting in 2011, the City of North Pole will begin budgeting all revenues and
expenses for this program in Fund 23.

NOTE: The grant was reduced to $35,000 in 2016 from $50,000

NOTE: This grant is for the term of July 1, YEAR through June 30th, YEAR. It is assumed that the City will recieve continued grant
support from the State, however; if not, the City will need to cover the cost of this position from the General Fund.

NOTE: It should be noted that this position is a normal, full-time, position within the Police Department, it was created under the
General fund. The JAG grant was received at a later time to help offset the costs of this officer.

87




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

STATE FORFEITURES FUND - Fund 24

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 24-00-00-4001 Transfer In 3,696 26,738 11,954 8,500 8,500
2 24-00-00-4001 State Forfeiture Revenue 1,356 4,341 34,273 1,776 -
TOTAL 1,356 4,341 37,968 28,514 11,954 8,500 8,500
EXPENSES
3 24-00-00-7000 Expenses 927 4,776 5,152 11,954 8,500 8,500
4 24-00-00-7091 Transfer to General Fund 22,632 -
TOTAL - 927 4,776 27,784 11,954 8,500 8,500

State Forfeitures (Fund 24)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

8,422

NOTE: This Fund account is for assets recieved in State of Alaska forfeitures (Police) this fund is not as restricted as the

ABADE fund.

88




City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

Captial Projects (Fund 31)

2016 2016

Line 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget

REVENUES

1 31-12-00-5001 Fire Equip Grant Revenue 36,817 -
2 31-12-00-5005 Fire Equip Code Blue 40,197 -
3 31-13-00-5001 Ladder Truck Grant Revenue 36,896 13,000 13,000
4 31-14-00-5001 Ambulance Grant Revenue 125,000 -
5 31-14-00-5005 Ambulance Other Revenue 35,000 -
6 31-14-00-5901 Transfer In Ambulance 4,200 -
7 31-16-00-5001 Police Heating Cooling Grant Revenue 75,000 -
8 31-17-00-5001 EMW 2014SS-00010 32,283 2,000 2,000
9 31-xx-00-5001 SHSP 2014 Grant Revenue (14-SHSP-GR-340-94) 64,000 64,000
10 31-21-00-5005 FNSB Beautification Grant Rev 10,000 10,000 10,000
11 31-22-00-5001 Archives Grant Revenue 86,045 32,000 32,000
12 31-28-00-5005 Exercise Trail Donations 5,000 5,000 5,000
13 31-29-00-5900 Transfer in Memorial Park 5,000 5,000 5,000
14 31-29-00-5005 Donations Memorial Park 30,000 30,000
15 31-70-00-5001 HLS Radios Grant Rev 63,646 -
16 31-33-00-5001 Strategic Plan (15-RR-006) revenue 80,000 80,000 80,000
17 31-xx-00-5001 Strategic Plan (15-DC-117) Revenue 71,000 71,000 71,000
18 31-31-00-5001 Redesign City Hall (15-DC-116) Revenue 300,000 300,000 300,000
19 31-35-00-5001 Homeland Security Training (EMW-2015-SS-00026-501) 128,000 180,741 180,741
20 31-32-00-5001 Terry Miller Park 5,000 5,000
21 31-34-00-5001 Memorial Park Grant FNSB 15,000 15,000
TOTAL - - - 555,085 | 579,000 812,741 812,741

89



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

Captial Projects (Fund 31)

2016 2016

Line 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget

EXPENSES

1 31-12-00-7001 Fire Equip Expenses 47,017 -
2 31-12-00-7005 Fire Equip Code Blue Expense 30,000 -
3 31-13-00-7001 Ladder Truck Grant Revenue 36,896 13,000 13,000
4 31-14-00-7001 Ambulance Expense 164,200 -
5 3116-00-7001 Police Heating Cooling Expense 75,000 -
6 31-17-00-6000 SHSP Wages 3,117 2,000 2,000
7 31-17-00-6090 SHSP Overtime 19,807 -
8 31-17-00-6097 SHSP Workers Comp Ins 1,268 -
9 31-17-00-6099 SHSP Medicare 186 -
10 31-17-00-6100 SHSP PERS 1,519 -
11 31-17-00-6102 SHSP Health and Disability Ins 974 -
12 31-17-00-7001 SHSP Expenses 5,413 64,000 64,000
13 31-21-00-7001 FNSB Beautification 9,995 10,000 10,000
14 31-22-00-6075 Archives Salaries 13,868 -
15 31-22-00-6097 Archives Work Comp 90 -
16 31-22-00-6098 Archives FICA 869 -
17 31-22-00-6099 Archives Medicare 203 -
18 31-22-00-7001 Archives Expenses 71,015 32,000 32,000
19 31-28-00-7001 Exercise Trail Exp 735 5,000 5,000
20 31-29-00-7001 Memorial Park Exp 5,000 50,000 50,000
21 31-70-00-7001 HLS Radios Exp 63,646 -
22 31-33-00-7001 Strategic Plan (15-RR-006) Exp 80,000 80,000 80,000
23 31-xx-xx-7001 Strategic Plan (15-DC-117) Exp 71,000 71,000 71,000
24 31-31-00-7001 Redesign City Hall (15-DC-116) Exp 300,000 300,000 300,000
25 31-35-00-7001 (EMW-2015-55-00026-S01) Active shooter 128,000 17,571 17,571
26 31-35-00-7001 (EMW-2015-S5-00026-S01) Conference travel 9,678 9,678
27 31-35-00-7001 (EMW-2015-S5-00026-501) Preparedness 6,500 6,500
28 31-35-00-7001 (EMW-2015-55-00026-S01) Door security upgrade 123,661 123,661
29 31-35-00-7001 (EMW-2015-55-00026-501) Exercise participation 12,896 12,896
30 31-35-00-7001 (EMW-2015-S5-00026-S01) Exericese Travel 5,946 5,946
31 31-35-00-7001 (EMW-2015-S5-00026-501) State Delieverd Training 4,489 4,489
32 31-32-00-7001 Terry Miller Park 5,000 5,000
TOTAL - - - 503,801 | 579,000 812,741 812,741




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

IRS FORFEITURES - Fund 33

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 33-00-00-4001 IRS Forfeitures 6,417 185,687 - -
2 33-00-00-5900 Transfer In From Fund Balance 2,615 503 78,034 34,000 34,000
TOTAL 6,417 2,615 186,190 78,034 34,000 - 34,000
EXPENSES
3 33-00-00-7000 Expense 114,523 78,034 34,000 34,000
4 33-00-00-7091 Transfer Out 2,665 - -
TOTAL 2,665 - 78,034 34,000 - 34,000

NOTE: This fund was created in 2012 to account for forfeitures from IRS case work.

IRS Forfeitures (Fund 33)

Date Fund Balance
Account Balance as of 10/21/2015 24,209




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

IMPOUND LOT FUND - FUND 36

2016 2016
Line 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actuals Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
36-00-00-4024  |Administration Fees 20,352 22,272 36,000 25,000 25,000
36-00-00-4025 Transfer to General Fund -
3 36-00-00-5900 [Transfer from Fund Balance -
TOTAL 20,352 22,272 36,000 25,000 - 25,000
EXPENSES
4 36-00-00-7105 Hearing Fees -
5 36-00-00-7106 Attorney Fees -
6 36-00-00-7107 Towing Fees -
7 36-00-00-7108  |Bad Debt -
8 36-00-00-7109 Refund to Vehicle Owner 384 384 -
9 36-00-00-7092 Transfer to General fund 17,630 21,888 5,000 20,000 20,000
10 36-00-00-7029 Miscellaneous 1,930 -
11 36-00-00-7039 Postage 408 -
12 30-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 31,000 5,000 5,000
TOTAL 20,352 22,272 36,000 25,000 - 25,000

NOTE - This fund was created in 2012, by ordinance, to collect impound lot fees. It was the intention to build funds in order for the City to have a

impound lot of our own for siezures. In 2013, impound lot fees

were budgeted as revenue in the general fund.
At year end, we will do a transfer, from the Impound Lot Fund to the General Fund for all fees received, minus expenses.

NOTE - In 2015 we are reducing the transfer to General Fund to only $5,000

Impound (Fund 36)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

10,752

92




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Community Purpose Funds

Community Purpose Funds are established to finance a particular activity or event and are created from
receipts of designated funds. Generally donations for a specific event.

93



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

NORTH POLE COMMUNITY ICE RINK FUND - Fund 18

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES - -
1 |18-00-00-4001 North Pole Community Ice Rink 50 - 650 - -
2 (18-00-00-5900 Transfer in 10,961 10,962 10,962
Total 50 - - 650 10,961 10,962 - 10,962
EXPENSES - -
3 [18-00-00-7000 North Pole Community Ice Rink - 190 - 662 10,961 10,962 10,962
Total - 190 - 662 10,961 10,962 - 10,962

NOTE: This fund is used for repairs/maintenance at the North Pole High School Hockey Rink A community member makes the

repairs and submits his invoices for reimbursement.

Reimbursement is contingent on funds available - the city periodically receives donations for this specific purpose.

North Pole Community Ice Rink (Fund 18)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/21/2015

10,962

94




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

NORTH POLE FESITVAL FUND - Fund 20

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 20-00-00-4001 North Pole Festival donations 10,648 9,650 6,005 7,840 7,500 7,500 7,500
2 20-00-00-4002 City Funds 200 - - -
3 20-00-00-5900 Transfer from Fund Balance 1,500 1,000 1,000
TOTAL 10,648 9,850 6,005 7,840 9,000 8,500 - 8,500
EXPENSES
20-00-00-7000 Expeditures (65) 1,200 - - - -
5 20-00-00-7001 Summerfest and 7,708 3,584 5,563 7,656 7,500 7,500 7,500
6 20-00-00-7002 Other Festivals 1,281 1,616 - 1,500 1,000 1,000
TOTAL 8,925 6,400 5,563 7,656 9,000 8,500 - 8,500

NOTE: This fund is used for expenses related to Summer Fest and the Mayor's Labor Day Picnic.

community donations for this purpose.

North Pole Fesitval (Fund 20)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

9,289

Revenues are received from

95




City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Sister City (Fund 32)

2016 2016
Line 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 32-00-00-5001 |Travel to Japan 200.00
2 32-00-00-5900 |Transfer In 800.00
Total - - 1,000.00
EXPENSES
[ 2 ][ 32-00-00-7001 [EXPENSES 1,000.00
Total - - 1,000 -

NOTE: This fund was created in 2012 to account for expenses/donations for Sister City travel and hosting.

Sister City (Fund 32)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as o

10/21/2015

500

96



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Bed Tax - Fund 37

2016 2016
Line 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 37-00-00-7000 Bed Taxes Collected 90,000 90,000 90,000
2 -
TOTAL 90,000 90,000 - - 90,000
EXPENSES
3 33-00-00-7000 Grant Disbursments Expense 41,455 67,500 67,500
4 33-00-00-7091 City Administration Fee 21,250 22,500 22,500
5 Transfer to Fund Balance 27,295 -
TOTAL 90,000 90,000 - - 90,000

NOTE: This fund was created in 2015 for Bed Tax Grants

IRS Forfeitures (Fund 33)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

30,309

97



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

Reserve Funds

Reserve Funds are committed by Ordinance and can only be used for the specific purpose as defined by
City Code. Reserve funds are designed to allow budgeting over multiple years for expensive equipment
that may be difficult to purchase without saving for.

98



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

VEHICLE FLEET FUND - FIRE - Fund 50

2016 2016
Line 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 50-00-00-5900 Transfer From General Fund 14,352 14,278 13,975 -
50-00-00-5005 Other Revenue - -
TOTAL 14,352 14,278 13,975 - - - -
EXPENSES
3 50-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance - 13,975 -
4 50-00-00-7091 Transfer out 4,200 -
TOTAL 4,200 13,975 - - - -

NOTE: Budgeted transfers into this fund will be done at year end, once all property tax has been collected.

NOTE: This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by a percentage of Property Tax.

NOTE: Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council.

Vehicle Fleet Fund - Fire (Fund 50)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

24,430

99



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

VEHICLE FLEET FUND - POLICE - Fund 51

2016 2016
Line 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 51-00-00-5900 Transfer From General Fund 14,352 24,278 38,475 -
TOTAL 14,352 24,278 38,475 - - - -
EXPENSES
3 51-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 24,278 -
4 51-00-00-7000 Police Vehicle Purchase 38,475 -
TOTAL 24,278 38,475 - - - -

NOTE: Budgeted transfers into this fund will be done at year end, once all property tax has been collected.

NOTE: This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by a percentage of Property Tax

NOTE: Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council

Vehicle Fleet Fund - Police (Fund 51)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

23,630

100



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

VEHICLE FLEET FUND - ADMIN - Fund 52

2016 2016
Line 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 52-00-00-5900 Transfer From General Fund 5,520 9,885 5,375 -
TOTAL 5,520 9,885 5,375 - - - =
EXPENSES
3 52-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 9,885 5,375 -
4 _
TOTAL 9,885 5,375 - - - =

NOTE: Budgeted transfers into this fund will be done at year end, once all property tax has been collected.

NOTE: This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by a percentage of Property Tax.

NOTE: Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council

Vehicle Fleet Fund - Admin (Fund 51)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

15,405

101



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

VEHICLE FLEET FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - Fund 53

2016 2016
Line 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 53-00-00-5900 Transfer From General Fund 9,936 5,492 9,675 -
2 -
TOTAL 9,936 5,492 9,675 - - - -
EXPENSES
3 53-00-00-7001 Expenses 3,000 -
4 53-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 2,492 9,675 -
TOTAL - 5,492 9,675 - - - -

NOTE: Budgeted transfers into this fund will be done at year end, once all property tax has been collected.

NOTE: This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by a percentage of Property Tax.

NOTE: Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council

Vehicle Fleet Fund - Public Works (Fund 53)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

12,427

102



City of North Pole

2016 Proposed Budget

CAPITAL PROJECTS - GENERAL GOVERNMENT RESERVES - Fund 54

2016 2016
Line 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 54-00-00-5900 Transfer From General Fund 44,159 43,933 43,000
2
TOTAL 44,159 43,933 43,000 - -
EXPENSES
3 54-00-00-7001 Expense 30,789 7,000
4 54-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 13,144 36,000
TOTAL - 43,933 43,000 -

NOTE: Budgeted transfers into this fund will be done at year end, once all property tax has been

collected.

NOTE: This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by a percentage of Property

Tax.

NOTE: Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council.

General Projects Reserves (Fund 54)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

55,244

103



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

VEHICLE FLEET FUND - UTILITY - Fund 55

2016 2016
Line 2013 2014 2015 Proposed Council Proposed
# Account Number Account Title Actuals Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
1 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 25 Water Reserve 11,250 11,250 11,250
2 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 27 Sewer Reserve 11,250 11,250 11,250
3 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 25 Water Reserve (operator truck) 15,000 -
4 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 27 Sewer Reserve (operator truck) 10,000 -
55-00-00-5005 Revenue from sale of assets 963 -
TOTAL 25,963 22,500 22,500 - - 22,500
EXPENSES
5 55-00-00-7901 Transfer to Retained Earnings (Utility Truck) - -
6 55-00-00-7901 Transfer to General Fund Balance (Jet Vac) - -
7 55-00-00-7901 Transfer to General Fund Balance (Crane Truck) - -
8 55-00-00-7901 Purchase Utility Truck -
9 55-00-00-7901 Purchase Backhoe -
10 55-00-00-7901 Transfer to Retained Earnings 25,963 22,500 22,500 22,500
TOTAL 25,963 22,500 22,500 - - 22,500

NOTE - This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by allocations from Fund 25 (Water Reserves) and Fund 27

(Sewer Reserves).

NOTE - Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council.

Vehicle Fleet Fund - Utility (Fund 55)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

25,963

104



City of North Pole
2016 Proposed Budget

HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVES - Fund 56

2016 2016
2013 2015 Proposed Proposed
Account Number Account Title Actuals Budget Budget Amendments Budget
REVENUES
56-00-00-xxxx RX Rebates -
56-00-00-xxxx Stop Loss -
56-00-00-xxxx Employee Contribution 65,000 65,000
56-00-00-xxxx Employer Contribution 690,000 690,000
56-00-00-xxxx Transfer In: General Fund -
TOTAL - - 755,000 755,000
EXPENSES
56-00-00-Xxxxx Expense, Health Care cost 742,000 742,000
56-00-00-Xxxxx Expense, Disability 13,000 13,000
TOTAL - - 755,000 755,000

NOTE: This is a new fund in 2015. All receipts from RX Rebates, Stop Loss Payments and any
other receipts related to the City Health Insurance Program will be booked to this fund.

NOTE: At yearend, any expenses booked that are in excess of payments to the Health Insurance
Carrier will be transferred to this fund - to help build a reserve. Transfer out, from this fund, will be
made to the General Fund if payments to the health insurance carrier are in excess of expenses

booked.

Health Insurance Reserves (Fund 55)

Date

Fund Balance

Account Balance as of

10/21/2015

81,193

105



O©Ooo~NOoOOT b~ wWwN R

Sponsored by: Mayor Ward
Intorduced & Advanced: November 9, 2015
Adopted: December 7, 2015

CITY OF NORTH POLE
ORDINANCE NO. 15-22

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO
AMEND TITLE 13, PUBLIC SERVICES

WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing
requirement; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the
requirements of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified.

Section 2. Title 13 is amended in the North Pole Code of Ordinances as follows in the attached
table:

Title 13

PUBLIC SERVICES

Chapters: 13.24 Utility Rates
13.24.020 Metered Water and Sewer Utility Rates

Monthly water and sewer utility rates beginning January 1, 2615, 2016 shall be the following:

FRR?- | FRR?- FRR?
Monthly| Per |Monthly| Water | Sewer |Significant
Per base gallon base per per | industrial
gallon water sewer sewer | gallon | gallon |discharger,
Customer class water | charge | charge! | charge | charge | charge sewer
Single-family $0.01705 $5 $0-01141 $5 $0.0025 | $0.0025 --
residential $0.1340
Senior single-family ~ {$0.008525|  $5 $0-00571| $5 $0.0025 | $0.0025 --
residential $0.00670
Multifamily residential | $0.01705 | $25 |$0:04341| $25 |$0.0025 |$0.0025 --
$0.1340
Senior multi-family $0.01705 | $25 [$6-0434%1| $25 |$0.0025 | $0.0025 --
residential $0.1340
Commercial $0.01705 | $25 [$6-0434%| $25 |$0.0025 | $0.0025 --

1




O©Ooo~No ok wWwN -

Sponsored by: Mayor Ward
Intorduced & Advanced: November 9, 2015
Adopted: December 7, 2015

FRR2- | FRR?- | FRR?
Monthly| Per |Monthly| Water | Sewer |Significant
Per base gallon base per per | industrial
gallon water sewer sewer | gallon | gallon |discharger,
Customer class water | charge | charge! | charge | charge | charge sewer
$0.1340
Commercial/significant| $0.01705 | $25 |$6-6434%| $25 -- -- $0.003911
industrial discharger $0.1340
Bulk water charge $0.03
Fire Hydrant Meter $0.03 $500
deposit®

1. The monthly sewer charge for the months of May, June, July and August will be capped at an
amount not to exceed the average of the water usage during the months September through April
for Single Family and Senior Single-Family residential customers only.

2. Facility Repair and Replacement: Funds generated to repair and replace utility capital

infrastructure.

3. Fire Hydrant Meter deposit: The deposit is returned if the equipment is returned in good
working order with no damages. Any damages to the equipment are deducted from the deposit.
Any damages in excess of the deposit are added to the customers bulk water charges invoice.

Section 3. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective January 1, 2016.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this

7th of December, 2015.

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC

North Pole City Clerk

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor




~NOoO O~ WN -

oo

10
11

12
13

14
15

16

17
18
19
20
21

22

23
24
25
26
27
28

29
30
31

32
33
34
35
36

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced: November 9, 2015
Adopted: December 7, 2015

CITY OF NORTH POLE
ORDINANCE 15-23

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO
AMEND 4.09.025 BED TAX GRANT DISTRIBUTION.

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement;
and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the
requirements of the City and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole wishes to promote and encourage economic and tourism
development within the City of North Pole, and

WHEREAS, a grant based program is the best way to ensure funding is allocated in the most
responsible manner,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified.

Section 2. Title 4 Chapter 9 Section .025 Bed Tax Grant Distribution, is hereby amended in the
North Pole Code of Ordinances as follows [new text in italicized red font; deleted text in

strikethrough font].
4.09.025 Bed tax grant distribution.

A. Bed tax grant distribution amounts are based on the prior years audited financials; there will
be an administration fee of twenty-five percent of the total bed tax collected by the City
annually. Distribution of the remaining bed tax revenues shall be at the discretion of the City
Council, which shall distribute the remaining revenues on an annual basis to approved
organizations for the prescribed purposes, so long as the organization’s purpose and objectives
align with NPMC 4.09.020(C) and they have submitted the application before the cutoff date.

B. Any recipient of funding under this chapter shall execute a contract with the City setting
forth terms and conditions necessary to enable the City to assure compliance with the purposes
and limitations under this section.

C. Organizations and agencies will be required to report to the City of North Pole that funds
were used exclusively for the purposes stated in the grant application. Ten percent of these
appropriations will be withheld until the complete report is filed with the Chief Financial Officer.
Prior to receiving any funding under this section, applicants must agree to reimburse the City the
full amount of any grant proceeds not used for the purposes stated on the application.


http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0409.html#4.09.020

37
38

39
40
41

42
43

44
45

46

47

48

49
50

51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64

65

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced: November 9, 2015
Adopted: December 7, 2015

D. The City Council establishes the following grant guidelines and process for the selection,
application and distribution of bed tax funds.

1. The City of North Pole stipulates that applicants must provide and indicate to the
Council on the appropriate forms supplied by the City of North Pole the following
information:

a. If an applicant has the disbursement responsibility for other organizations,
they must list all organizations that they represent.

b. The applicant must complete the application in its entirety and may submit
financial information in their format including:

i. Balance sheet for the last fiscal year.
ii. Income and expense statement for the last fiscal year.
iii. Applicant’s projected budget for the upcoming year.

iv. Wage and salary information for employees for current and
upcoming year.

c. An applicant must answer questions in the order provided.
2. A successful applicant is required to report to the City of North Pole how bed tax
funds were spent. Ten percent of these appropriations will be withheld until a report is
filed with the Chief Financial Officer.
a. All organizations receiving bed tax funds must have completed the bed tax
grant report (if applicable) for prior funds distributed, before any additional funds
are distributed.
b. An organization applying for bed tax funds must be in good standing with the
City of North Pole and have completed the bed tax report for the last period of
bed tax funds distributed.
3. The City of North Pole bed tax grants cannot support requests for the following:
a. Loans, deficits, or debt reduction.
b. Endowments.

c. Scholarships.

d. Health and social services activities.



66

67

68

69

70
71

72
73
74

75
76
77

78
79

80

81
82

83
84
85

86
87
88

89
90
91
92
93

94
95

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced: November 9, 2015
Adopted: December 7, 2015

e. Entertainment cost or alcoholic beverages.

f. Lobbying.

g. Legal claims against the City of North Pole.
4. Grant Award Criteria.

a. Show how use of the funds will contribute significantly to the growth and
promotion of the City of North Pole.

b. Show how the grant monies will be used to supplement a successful ongoing
program of activities or a new program that needs initial support to accomplish its
stated goals.

5. Grant applications will be available from the Office of the City Clerk and must be
received at the Office of the City Clerk no later than close of business (5:00 p.m.) on the
last business day of October of each year.

6. Bed tax grant amounts will be allocated by the North Pole City Council no later than
December 31st of the year the applications are due.

7. Scoring proposals from applicants:

a. The Mayor shall create a committee to review all applications and give
recommendations to the Council for allocation amounts.

i. Committee members may not serve on a board or have a controlling
interest in any of the organizations applying for City of North Pole bed
tax funds.

b. All applicants who have turned in their applications on time and have
completely filled them out will be given no more than ten minutes to pitch their
proposal and answer questions.

c. Each individual scorer will be given only one hundred points to allocate to the
desired applicants. Once all applicants have presented, each applicant’s score will
be averaged. The point value given to an applicant shall be the percentage of the
total bed tax grant amount to be awarded, after the City’s administration fee of
twenty-five percent. (Amended during 2015 reformat; Ord. 14-14 § 2, 2014)

d. The Bed Tax Selection Committee shall meet on the fourth Tuesday Menday of
November to hear proposals from applicants



96
97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced: November 9, 2015
Adopted: December 7, 2015

Section 3. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. of the first City
business day following its adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this
7" day of December, 2015.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk

PASSED
Yes:

No:
Absent:




O 0 ~1I N kW —

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced: November 9, 2015
Possible Adoption: December 7, 2015

CITY OF NORTH POLE
ORDINANCE 15-24

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE AMENDING THE
2015 BUDGET REQUESTING THE PURCHASE OF COMPUTER
EQUIPMENT FOR THE FIRE DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, the North Pole Police Department needs to purchase a new server for the station.

WHEREAS, the North Pole Fire Department currently has a server that they no longer need,
therefore the police department wants to purchase it for their use.

WHEREAS, the use of Justice Funds in the amount of $4000.00 would be used to pay for the
purchase of the new server and equipment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:

Section 1. This ordinance is of a special nature and shall not be included in the North Pole code
of Ordinances.

Section 2. Amending Fund 01, Fire Department office supplies as per fiscal note attached:
SEE ATTACHED FISCAL NOTE

Section 3. Effective date.

This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. of the first City business day following its

adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this
7" day of December, 2015.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC

North Pole City Clerk z‘:SS:SED/FAILED
No:
Absent:




City of North Pole, Alaska

Budget Amendment Note
Year: 2015
Ordinance: 15-XX

Originator / Sponsor Name: Chief Bryan Lane, Mayor Ward

Date: November 9, 2015

Does the Ordinance or Resolution have a fiscal impact? Yes

Fund- Dept. Title Account Description Account # Debit Credit

01 — General Fund |FD Office Supplies 01-04-00-7022 $4,000

01 - General Fund |Fire Dept. Revenue 01-00-00-4008 $4,000

Summary : The Police Department recently purchased a new server from the Fire
Department. The Fire Department will use the funds to purchase new computers.

Prepared By: _Bb&d).} < Date: (‘/9’/(5/

7

Finance Approv‘au/ :

Date: - %16




North Pole Fire Departme
125 Snowman Lane - North Pole, Alaska 89705
Phone: 907.488.2232 Fax: 907.488.3747

Memo

To: Mayor Ward

——

From: Chief Lape Ty~

Date: 11/3/15

Re: Computers and Server

Mayor,

The Police Department recently purchased a new server from the Fire Department. The server was
purchased approximately a year ago. When the Fire Department contracted with our current IT
provider we no longer needed the server. Currently the Fire Department has a need for new
computers and the Police Department had a need for a server. The two Departments made a deal that
would benefit both. The Police Department would purchase the server from us and we would use the
funds to purchase our needed computers.

Attached you will find the required fiscal note to be added to the agenda for the November o" City
Council meeting.

Please let me know if there are any questions.



y North Pole Fire Department
110 Lewis Street

North Pole, AK 99705

Invoice

Date Invoice #
10/12/2015 68
Bill To
North Pole Police Department
125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, Ak 99705
P.O. No. Terms
Quantity Description Rate Amount
1|Dell Server Power Edge 320 4,000.00 4,000.00

Total

=4

$4,000.00




CITY OfF BJORTH POLE

125 Snowman Lane * North Pole, Alaska 99705-7708
(907) 488-2281  Fax (907) 488-3002
www.northpolealaska.com
TAX ID #92-6001585

DATE DATE NEEDED BY — 1 RNER
[0 19- /5
SHIP VIA TERMS ” y
19741
m = N A =
VENDOR NAME . 4 |CONTACT NAME
r1h e Ff?eTé;fﬂ

ADDRESS E\" \I'.l-’._ e W= ‘-]1‘,"\

l\l';'ll“"‘ BT \ t!.lll-_\\
CITY /STATE / ZIP \"\ a\ Dm 1% (AN \,J'

WL
DEPzaAyE {[VENDOR 1Gr_ NUMBER

¢ [ice \ ?_%,f-ﬂ:f” 200067000

QUAN

DESCRIPTION 'UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
Seryer  Juibhase &), 060,00
l .

clqe 320

Above Purchase Order Number must appear on all correspondence,
invoices, packages and shipping papers. Notify us immediately if you

are unable to ship complete order by date specified. Your acceptance
of this order is your warrant to us that you are complying with the
U.S Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended, and we reserve the
right to refuse merchandise not in strict accordance with this order.

TOTAL 4//”04 00

"gfi’ﬁ!ﬁ :

.

DISTRIBUTION: White - Original  Yellow - Copy with Invoice  Pirk - Master File Copy




CITY OF NORTH POLE 1002
VENDOR: 385 CITY OF NORTH POLE 11/02/2015
1002
DATE INVOICE # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT GL ACCOUNT #
10/12/2015 68 #19741 SERVER PURCHASE EDGE 320 4,000.00 21-00-00-7000
Total Amount: $4,000.00
8YoELuxE core 1+800-328-0304 www.deluxeforms.com o0

12 DE291D SLXRX1 06/19/2015 14:41 :



North Pole Police Dept. Chief Steve Dutra
125 Snowman Ln. Phone: 907-488-8459

North Pole, AK 99705 Fax: 907-488-5299

November 13, 2015

North Pole City Council,

This letter is an official request urging you accept a grant from the
Department of Public Safety for the amount of $35,000.00. This grant is a
continuation of the Byrne JAG funding for the SEDU Investigator. This grant
funding pays a portion of the costs associated with one full time police
investigator position for the time period December 8, 2015 through June 30,
2016.

This grant is important to the City of North Pole because it assists us with
expenses incurred in support of the overall fight against drugs. The effects of
the drug trade on our community and schools are enormous.

Our participation in the Multi-Jurisdictional Task Force allows us to increase
the effectiveness of our overall crime reduction plans. This participation
allows us to join forces with State and Federal agencies to combat illegal drug
use and importation that invades and destroys our community.

I encourage you to approve this funding.

Sincerely,

7
A /

Chief‘Steve Dutra



STATE OF ALASKA
Department of Public Safety
Division of Administrative Services

Grants Section

GRANT AWARD
GRANTEE DEPARTMENT
NAME: City of North Pole NAME: Department of Public Safety
ADDRESS: 125 Snowman Lane ADDRESS: 5700 E. Tudor Road
CITY: North Pole, Alaska 99705 CITY: Anchorag&AK 99502
CONTACT: Chad Rathbun CONTACT: Aprif Carlson @ 218
TITLE: Lieutenant TITLE: Grants Manager \-'
PHONE: 907-488-6902 PHONE: 907-269-5082
EMAIL: crathbun@northgolegolice.or_g EMAIL: april.carlson@alaska.gov
AWARD INFORMATION
PROJECT: Statewide Multi-Jurisdictional Task Force GRANT: 16-205
PROGRAM: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) CFDA: 16.738
PROJECT DATES: November 16, 2015 - June 30, 2016 DUNS: 015680010
AWARD AMOUNT: $35 000 EN:
APPROVED BUDGET
Cost Budget
Category Amount
Personal Services 35,000.00
Travel 0.00
Contractual 0.00
Supplies 0.00
Equipment 0.00
TOTAL 35,000.00

Funding Source

Funding Allocation

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 2015-DJ-BX-0560

$35,000.00

AWARD AGREEMENT

I. The work to be performed under this a
than June 30, 2016.

The Alaska Department of Public Safety, hereinafter called the
called the "Grantee," agree as set forth herein.

"Department,” and City of North Pole, hereinafter

greement shall begin November 16, 2015, and shall be completed no later

Il. The grant agreement consists of this award page and the attached "Grant Agreement.”

GRANTEE AUTHORIZATION

DEPARTMENT AUTHORIZATION

NAME/TITLE:
Bryce Ward, Mayor

NAME/TITLE:
Colonel James E. Cockrell, AST Director

SIGNATURE:

SIGNATURE:

DATE:

DATE:

SFY16 JAG North Pole Grant Award.xlsx
Rev: 09/2014




GRANT AGREEMENT

ARTICLE | - GOVERNING LAW

The authorizing legislation for the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant
program is the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2005, Public Law 108-447.

ARTICLE Il - SCOPE OF WORK

A

The Grantee agrees that it will implement in all respects the Project Description
submitted with the application and is considered a part of this Grant Agreement.

The Grantee agrees to make no change in the project described in the attachment and
final approved application without first submitting a written request to the Department
and obtaining the Department's written approval of the requested change.

The Grantee shall provide all the necessary qualified personnel, material, and facilities
to implement the program described herein.

ARTICLE lll - PROJECT PERIOD

A. The term of this Grant Agreement shall be for the period of time described on the Grant

Award page of this agreement and SHALL NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL THE
AGREEMENT IS FULLY SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED SIGNER AND RECEIVED
BY THE DEPARTMENT.

In the event that, due to unusual circumstances, it becomes apparent that this Grant
Agreement cannot be brought to full completion within the time period set forth in the
Grant Award, the Grantee shall so notify the Department in writing at least thirty (30)
days prior to the termination date of this Grant Agreement. Such notice shall contain a
description of the unusual circumstances causing the project to be incomplete.

ARTICLE IV - REPORTS

A

Reports

In order that the Department may adequately determine the progress of the Grant
Project, the Grantee shall make Progress Reports to the Department per the schedule
herein. The said Reports shall be on the form provided by the Department and contain
the following:

1. Program Report: A description of the work accomplished to date, the methods and

procedures used, and the impact of the project. Quarterly project reports shall be
submitted to the Department no later than fifteen days following each calendar.

2. Reimbursement Requests: The Grantee shall submit a Quarterly Reimbursement
Request to the Department in the format prescribed by the Department. The
Grantee will provide a Department approved documentation supporting the
expenses on the reimbursement. This may be from the Grantee’s accounting
system. A quarterly Reimbursement Request shall be submitted to the Department
no later than fifteen days following each calendar quarter.

3. Employee Program Certification & Activity Report: This report is to be completed
for each employee who is in a position supported in total or in part with Federal

Grant Agreement — updated: 11/2015 Page 1 of 8



4.

Funds and shall be submitted no later than fifteen days following each calendar
quarter.

Other information specified by the Department or as may be of assistance to the
Department in its evaluation, such as Project Equipment Reports.

B. Other Reports

1. The Grantee shall report any changes to key personnel to the Department within 30

days of the change.

2. The Grantee shall report all arrests to the State’s Central Records Repository

located with the Department of Public Safety’s APSIN Program. Such reports shall
include information regarding the individual’s country of birth.

ARTICLE V - FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION

A. The Grantee must establish and maintain separate accounting for the use of grant
funds. The use of funds in any manner contrary to allowable grant activities shall result
in the subsequent termination of the grant and any balance of funds. It shall also
result in the Grantee being required to return to the State any funds determined not
allowed.

B. The Grantee shall submit Reimbursement Requests quarterly. At a minimum, the
Grantee must submit a Reimbursement Request no later than 15 calendar days after
the end of a calendar month. A Final Reimbursement Request must be submitted no
later than 15 calendar days following the end of the grant.

Reimbursement Requests must be:

1.

2.

For expenses incurred within the period covered by the grant agreement;

For expenses incurred and paid by the Grantee within the request period specified
on the Reimbursement Request;

Submitted in a format provided or approved by the Department, and must be
certified by original signatures true and correct by a responsible signatory of the
Grantee;

Based upon the Grantee’s accounting system, a financial report generated from
the accounting system must be attached to the Reimbursement Request.

Supported by appropriate source documentation including, but not limited to:
vendor billings, time sheets, travel authorizations, cancelled checks, tickets, payroll
records, or other applicable information necessary to substantiate expenditures.
Department staff may request copies of source documentation prior to or after
payment for any Reimbursement Requests.

The Grantee must use direct charging on timesheets for all time spent on grant
related activity or must use a methodology for the allocation of personal services
costs approved by the Department. The Grantee must use a cost allocation
methodology approved by the Department for any other shared costs charged to
the grant and must provide the Department with appropriate documentation
supporting the methodology used. The Grantee shall contact the Department for
additional guidance or technical assistance.

Grant Agreement —

updated: 11/2015 Page 2 of 8



7. No advance payments are authorized under this Agreement, unless approved by
the Department.

ARTICLE VI - BUDGET

A. The Department is not liable for Grantee incurred costs or services that exceed the
grant agreement budget. The Department will not honor requests for excessive
payments. It is the responsibility of the Grantee to secure a properly executed grant
budget revision to this grant agreement when the circumstances require changes to
the budget. The Grantee will in no case exceed in expenditure or in commitment the
total dollar amount agreed upon in the grant agreement. The Grantee is responsible
for any and all over-expenditures and for any disallowed costs that it may incur.

B. Any change to the terms and conditions of this grant agreement must be made through
a written amendment. Amendments do not take effect until signed by the Department.

ARTICLE VII - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

A. The Grantee and any sub-recipient shall adhere to generally accepted accounting
principles. The Grantee’s financial management system shall: Provide Accurate,
current, and complete accounting of financial activities under this grant;

B. Adequately identify the source and application of funds for cost reimbursable
activities;

C. Provide effective control over and accountability for all grant funds and real and
personal property acquired with grant funds;

D. Maintain separate financial records for the accounting of funds related to this grant
agreement;

E. Maintain systematic methods to for timely and appropriate resolution of audit findings
or recommendations;

F. Retain source documentation that adequately identifies the nature and use of grant
funds; Allow for comparison of actual and budgeted amounts; and,

G. The Grantee shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws regarding the
collection, deposit, payment and reporting of taxes, including obtaining an employer
identification number and providing W-2 forms to employees.

ARTICLE VIII - AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

A. A non-Federal entity that expended $750,000 or more in Federal Funds (from all
sources including pass-through subawards) in your organization’s fiscal year (12
month turnaround reporting period), then you are required to arrange for a single
organization-wide audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Title 2 C.F.R.

Subpart F.

B. Unless additional audit requirements are imposed by state or federal law, a recipient
of state financial assistance that expends a cumulative total equal to or greater than
$500,000 during the entity’s fiscal year is required to submit an annual single audit in
accordance with the provisions of the State of Alaska Single Audit Regulation 2 AAC
45.010-45.090. http://doa.alaska.gov/dof/ssa/resource/2015/2015 SAG.pdf

Grant Agreement — updated: 11/2015 Page 3 of 8



ARTICLE IX - TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION

A. The Department, by written notice to the Grantee, shall have the right to terminate this
Grant Agreement if, at any time, in the judgment of the Department the provisions of
this Agreement have been violated or the activities described in the Project Description
have not progressed satisfactorily. In this regard, the Department may demand refund
of all or part of the funds disbursed to the Grantee.

B. The Parties may modify any and all terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement by
mutual agreement between the Grantee and the Department.

ARTICLE X - CONDITIONS OF AWARD AND ACCEPTANCE

A. Acceptance within 45 days. Within 45 days from the issuance date of these
documents to the Grantee, if the Grantee does not confirm acceptance that it will
utilize the grant by signing and returning the award agreement to the Department,
obligation to set aside these federal funds for use by the Grantee shall be terminated
without further cause.

B. Commencement within 60 days. If a project is not operational within 60 days of the
original starting date of the grant period, the Grantee must report, by letter, to the
Department the steps taken to initiate the project, the reasons for delay, and the
expected starting date.

C. Operational within 90 days. If a project is not operational within 90 days of the original
starting date of the grant period, the Grantee must submit a second statement to the
Department explaining the implementation delay. Upon receipt of the 90-day letter,
the Department may cancel the project and request Grantor Agency approval to
distribute the funds to other project areas.

ARTICLE XI - CERTIFICATION

The Grantee hereby assures and certifies that it will comply to all applicable uniform
(grants) administrative requirements, cost principles, and audit requirements set forth in 2
C.F.R. 200 and to all applicable state and federal program and grant requirements, laws,
and regulations with respect to the acceptance and use of funds for this program. Also,
the Grantee hereby assures and certifies with respect to this Grant that:

A. The Grantee agrees to comply with the financial and administrative requirements set
forth in the current edition of the Department of Justice Programs, Office of Justice
Programs (OJP) Financial Guide, available online at:
http://ojp.qov/financialguide/DOJ/pdfs/2015 DOJ FinancialGuide.pdf

B. Funds made available under this Grant will not be used to supplant state or local
funds, but will be used to increase the amounts of such funds that would, in the
absence of federal funds, be made available for the same purpose.

C. The Grantee will submit all project-related contracts, subcontracts, agreements, and
subsequent amendments to the Department for review and approval prior to
execution.

D. No member, officer, or employee of the Grantee, or its designees or agents, no
member of the governing body of the locality in which the program is situated, and no
other public official of such locality or localites who exercises any functions or

Grant Agreement — updated: 11/2015 Page 4 of 8




responsibilities with respect to the program during his or her tenure or for one year
thereafter, will have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or
the process thereof, for work to be performed in connection with the program assisted
under the grant, and the Grantee shall incorporate, in all such contracts or
subcontracts, a provision prohibiting such interest pursuant to the purposes of this
certification.

E. Prior to the expenditure of funds allocated for confidential expenditures under this
Grant Award, the project director will sign a certification indicating that said director
has read, understands, and agrees to abide by all the conditions pertaining to
confidential funds as set forth in the current edition of the Office of Justice Programs
(OJP) Financial Guide.

F. The Grantee certifies that the programs contained in its application and Project
Description meet all the requirements of the 1988 Anti-Drug Abuse Act, that all
information is correct, that the applicant will comply with all provisions of the Act and all
other applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and guidelines.

G. The Grantee will complete and keep on file, as appropriate, the Immigration and
Naturalization Service Employment Eligibility Form (1-9).

H. Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text
Messaging While Driving,” 74 Federal Regulation 51225 (October 1, 2009), the
Department encourages grantees to adopt and enforce policies banning employees
from test messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work
funded by this grant, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education,
awareness, and other outreach to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers.

I. The Grantee assures they shall provide training at least once per grant cycle to staff
regarding obligations to comply with the federal civil rights laws. The training will
include an overview of complaint policies and procedures, including an employee’s
responsibility to refer discrimination complaints from clients, customers, program
participants, employees, and applicants to the Civil Rights Office.

J. The Grantee will, if required, formulate an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan
(EEOP) in accordance with 28 CFR 42.301, et. seq., and submit their EEOP or EEOP
Short Form directly to the Office for Civil Rights within 60 days of the date of this
agreement. If the Grantee is claiming a full or partial exemption from the EEOP
requirement, the Grantee must submit an EEOP Certification Form to the Office for
Civil Rights.

K. The Grantee agrees to the following: to forward to the Alaska Department of Public
Safety for submission to the Department for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs,
U.S. Department of Justice any finding of discrimination against the Grantee by a
federal or state court or federal or state administrative agency on the grounds of race,
color, religion, national origin, or sex and to provide meaningful access to their
programs and activities to individuals who are Limited English Proficient.

L. The Grantee assures that it will comply (and will require any subgrantees or
contractors to comply) with any applicable statutorily-imposed nondiscrimination
requirements, which may include the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of
1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3789d(c)(1)); the Victims of Crime Act (42 U.S.C. § 10604(e)); the
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. § 5672(b)); the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C.
§ 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132); the Education

Grant Agreement — updated: 11/2015 Page 5 of 8



Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42
U.S.C. § 6102); and the Department of Justice regulations on the Equal Treatment
for Faith-Based Organizations (28 CFR part 38).

M. The Grantee assures that in accordance with federal civil rights laws, the Grantee shall
not retaliate against individuals for taking action or participating in action to secure
rights protected by the laws referenced in Article XI — O. above.

N. The Grantee agrees that within 120 days of award acceptance, each current member
of a law enforcement task force funded with these funds who is a task force
commander, agency executive, task force officer, or other task force member of
equivalent rank, will complete required online (internet-based) task force training.
Additionally, all task force members are required to complete this training once during
the life of this award, or once every four years if multiple awards include this
requirement. The training is provided free of charge online through BJA’'s Center for
Task Force Integrity and Leadership (www.ctfli.org). This training addresses task force
effectiveness as well as other key issues including privacy and civil liberties/rights, task
force performance, personnel selection, and task force oversight and accountability.
When BJA funding supports a task force, a task force personnel roster should be
compiled and maintained, along with course completion certificates, by the Grantee.
Additional information regarding this required training and access methods via BJA's
web site and the Center for Task Force Integrity and Leadership (www.ctfli.org).

ARTICLE XIl - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

A. Management

The Grantee's procedures for managing equipment (including replacement), whether
acquired in whole or in part with funds made available through this Grant, will, at a
minimum, meet the following requirements:

1. Property records must be maintained which include:

i. Description of the property;

ii. Serial number or other identification number;

iii. Source of the property;

iv. Identification of title holder;

v. Acquisition date;

vi. Cost of property;
vii. Percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the property;
viii. Location of the property;

ix. Use and condition of the property; and

x. Disposition data, including the date of disposal and sale price.

2. A physical inventory of the property must be taken and the results reconciled with
the property records at least once every two years.

3. A control system must exist to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss,
damage, or theft of the property. Any loss, damage, or theft shall be investigated
by the Grantee and the Department, as appropriate.

4. Adequate maintenance procedures must exist to keep the property in good
condition.

Grant Agreement — updated: 11/2015 Page 6 of 8



5. If authorized or required by the Department to sell the property, proper sales
procedures must be established to ensure the highest possible return.

B. Disposition

The Grantee shall dispose of equipment when original or replacement acquired with
grant funds is no longer needed for the original project or program, or for other
activities currently or previously supported by a Federal agency. Disposition of
equipment will be made as follows:

1. ltems with a current per unit fair market value of less than $5,000 may be retained,
sold, or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the Department.

2. ltems with a current per unit fair market value in excess of $5,000 may be retained
or sold, and the Department shall have a right to an amount calculated by
multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the Department's
share of the equipment. Seller is also eligible for sale costs.

3. In cases where the Grantee fails to take appropriate disposition actions, the
Department may direct the Grantee to take other disposition actions.

ARTICLE Xlll - PROJECT RECORD MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AND ACCESS

A. The Grantee shall maintain Grant records that disclose the amount and disposition of
the total funds from all sources budgeted for the Grant Agreement period, the purpose
of undertaking for which such funds were used, the amount and nature of all
contributions from other sources, and such other records as the Department shall
prescribe. Such records shall be preserved for a period of not less than three (3)
years following completion of the project.

B. The following shall have access to any books, documents, ledgers, papers and records
of the Grantee determined to be pertinent to the purpose of making audit, examination,
excerpts, and transcripts:

1. The U. S. Department of Justice;
2. The Comptroller General of the United States;
3. The Department, its agents, or assigns or successors in function; and
4. Duly authorized representatives of any of the above.
ARTICLE XIV - MONITORING AND EVALUATION

Monitoring shall be accomplished by the Department at times deemed reasonable and

proper by the Department. The Department shall make every effort not to disturb or

disrupt any program or activity beyond that necessary to secure relevant data and make a

reasonable assessment of the Grantee's performance.

A. Monitoring by the Department may be performed on a continuing basis throughout the

grant period and may involve telephone contact, written communication, analysis of
submitted reports, and on-site visits.

Grant Agreement — updated: 11/2015 Page 7 of 8



B. It shall be the purpose of monitoring by the Department to reinforce, improve, and
augment the Grantee's capacity to administer this grant by identifying potential
problem areas and recommending corrective action to prevent deficiencies.

C. The Department shall provide a Monitoring Report in writing to the Grantee which
outlines review findings, specifies recommendations which reflect corrective action
required, if any, and a due date for the corrective action to be in place.

D. When the Department has confirmed that the appropriate corrective action has been
taken, a letter shall be sent to the Grantee stating that the finding(s) has been closed.

ARTICLE XV - PUBLICATION OF PROJECT ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS

When publicizing project activities and results, the Grantee shall include the following
statements:

A. “The opinions, findings and conclusions or recommendations expressed in this
publication/program/exhibition are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily
reflect the views of the Department of Public Safety, Alaska State Troopers, or the
Department of Justice.”

B. “This project was supported by a grant awarded by the Department of Public Safety,
Alaska State Troopers through funding from the Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office
of Justice Programs.”

ARTICLE XVI - WRITTEN DESCRIPTIONS OF PROGRAMS

When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations, and
other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or part with Federal
funds, the Grantee shall clearly state the following:

A. The percentage of the total cost of the program or project which is or will be financed
with Federal money; and

B. The dollar amount of Federal funds for the project or program.

However, if disclosing this information would in any way imperil the project, the Grantee is
exempt from this requirement.

ARTICLE XVII - SPECIAL TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND WAIVERS

A. Any funds not properly obligated by the end of the Grant Award will lapse and revert to
the Department. The obligation deadline is the last day of the Grant Award period as
specified in Section Il of the Grant Award page of this agreement.

B. If the Grantee is a Native Village, Native tribe or another Native tribal entity, the
Grantee hereby irrevocably waives any sovereign immunity that it may possess, and
consents to suit against itself and its officers, employees and agents, in the courts of
the State of Alaska or any other state or federal court of competent jurisdiction, as to
all claims or causes of action by the State of Alaska, or the United States or any other
person arising out of or in connection with this grant award.

Grant Agreement — updated: 11/2015 Page 8 of 8



11
12

13
14
15
16
17

18
19

20
21

22
23

24
25

26
27
28
29
30

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward
Introduced and Adopted: December 7, 2015

CITY OF NORTH POLE
RESOLUTION 15-20

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE ADOPTING A SOCIAL MEDIA
POLICY

WHEREAS, the use of social media is prevalent in today’s society in; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole would benefit from enhanced communication with the
public through social media; and

WHEREAS, many Alaskan municipalities use social media to disseminate information about
the City to the public, increase transparency of City operations, provide channels for the public
to communicate with City government and expand public involvement in City government; and

WHEREAS, a social media policy governs the creation, administration, and use of social media
by the City in conducting the business of City government; and

WHERAS, the purpose of this policy is to promote and support the effective and constructive
use of social media in City government without compromising the integrity or effectiveness of
the City government, its officials and employees. To serve this purpose, this policy will provide
guidelines ensuring proper use and administration of all City-created and/or operated social
media sites; and

WHEREAS, social media is used worldwide and will help with strategic planning and
encouraging the public to visit, shop, and experience all that the City has to offer.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Pole City Council hereby adopts the
City of North Pole Social Media Policy.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this
7th day of December, 2015.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC

North Pole City Clerk PASSED/FAILED
YES:
NO:
ABSENT:
City of North Pole. Alaska RESOLUTION 15-20

Page 1 of 1



CITY OF NORTH POLE SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY

Section 1. Purpose

Section 2. Establishment of Social Media Sites and General Administration
Procedures

Section 3. Use and Maintenance of City Social Media Sites

Section 4. City Creation, Maintenance, and Use of Social Media Sites
Section 5. Social Media Use by City Officials and Employees

Section 6. Definition

Section 1. Introduction and Purpose

The City of North Pole (“City”) will seek opportunities to use social media to serve the
interests of the City and its residents. The City will use social media as means to efficiently
disseminate information about the City to the public, increase transparency of City
operations, provide channels for the public to communicate with City government and
expand public involvement in City government

This social media policy governs the creation, administration, and use of social media
by the City in conducting the business of City government. The purpose of this policy is to
promote and support the effective and constructive use of social media in City government
without compromising the integrity or effectiveness of the City government, its officials and
employees. To serve this purpose, this policy will provide guidelines ensuring proper use and
administration of all City-created and/or operated social media sites.

Definitions of terms used in this social media policy appear in Section 6.

Section 2. Establishment of Social Media Sites and General Administration Procedures

1. A City department may establish and use a social media site only with the prior
written approval of the Mayor or designee. The City information technology (“IT”) staff shall

be responsible for account credentials for City social media sites. The department that
establishes a social media site shall be responsible for the design, content, and updating and
other administration of the site in accordance with this policy.

2. City social media sites shall expressly state that that they are maintained by
the City and that any use or maintenance of the site is subject to this policy and to other City

Social Media Policy Page 1 of 7



rules and policies such as the ethics code, personnel rules, computer use policy and equipment
use policy. This policy shall be available at the City Clerk’s office and, wherever practicable,
a link to this policy shall be included on the social media site.

3. Wherever practicable, City social media sites should contain the official City
logo, and a link to the City’s official website for forms, documents, online services, and other
information necessary to conduct business with the City. The City’s official website, http://
www.northpolealaska.com/, is the City’s primary internet presence, and in general, information
disseminated through social media also should be made available on the official website.

4. The Mayor shall designate a City employee as Public Information
Coordinator. The Public Information Coordinator will monitor content on City social media
sites to ensure adherence to this policy, other applicable City rules and policies, and the
interests and goals of'the City.

5. The City reserves the right to remove or restrict access to any content on a City
social media site that violates this policy or any applicable law. Refer to Section 4 for further
details regarding the removal of content from City social media sites.

6. The City shall make every effort to maintain and govern use of City social media
sites in a consistent manner.

7. All City social media sites and the administration, use, and maintenance of
these sites shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws as well as City laws,
policies, and procedures. Such laws, policies and procedures include without limitation
those concerning the unauthorized use of copyrighted material, protection of individual
privacy, publication of defamatory statements and the prohibition of threatening or harassing
communications.

8. City social media sites are subject to the State of Alaska Public Records Act (AS
40.25.100 — 40.25.295). As a result, any information posted on City social media sites,
including but not limited to subscriber’s lists, posted communications, correspondence
between posters and City staff, and communications submitted for posting, may be a public
record subject to public disclosure.

Social Media Policy Page 2 of 7



9. Information posted on a City social media site is subject to management and
retention in the same manner as other City records. The City Clerk shall cause information
posted on a City social media site to be inventoried, stored and destroyed in the same
manner and at the same time as if the information was maintained in written, printed or
photographic form.

10. The following constitutes the policies and procedures for official City of North Pole
social media sites as currently approved by the Mayor or his designee. The City of North Pole
reserves the right to change these policies and procedures at any time without prior notice.

Section3.Use and Maintenance of City Social Media Sites

General Use of Social Media Sites

1. Identification of Social Media Site Content and Disclaimer
A. Each City social media site shall identify itself clearly as a site operated,
maintained and controlled by the City of North Pole.
B. Each City social media site shall clearly identify content on the site as

being supplied either by the City or by a non-City source (such as a
comment posted by a member of the public).

C. Each City social media site shall contain a disclaimer to the effect that
content identified as non-City content states only the opinion of its
source, does not state the opinion or policy of the City, and is not
approved or endorsed by the City.

D. Each City social media site shall state that all content on the site is
subject to the requirements of this policy, and that the City may remove
from the site - content which violates the requirements of this policy.
Each City social media site shall prominently display a hyperlink to this
policy.

E. Each City social media site shall state that any photograph posted on
the site that includes the identifiable picture of a person may be
removed by the City at the request of that person (of if the person is a
minor, the person’s parent or guardian).

Do Information containing any of the following inappropriate forms of content
shall not be permitted on City social media sites and is subject to removal and/or restriction
without notice by the Public Information Coordinator:

Social Media Policy Page 3 of 7



Social Media Policy

Information not related to the functions of the department that maintains
the site, or to the original topic of a posting on the site, including random
or unintelligible comments;

Information, including photographs and other images, containing ethnic
slurs or profanity; material or comments that are harassing, violent,
threatening to any person, entity or property, defamatory, fraudulent,
discriminatory or sexually explicit;

Information that infringes on copyright, trademark, intellectual or any
other property right or violates any other legal ownership interest in

property;

Information in support of, or in opposition to, the candidacy of any person
for public office, and information in support of, or in opposition to, any
ballot measure (except as authorized by the City Council in accordance
with AS 15.13.145);

Solicitation of commerce, including but not limited to advertising of any
business or product for sale, but this does not restrict information regarding
the rendering of services for the City by City contractors;

Information promoting the violation or directly violating any federal,
state or local law;

Information from children under 13 years old in accordance with the
Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act. Users acknowledge and attest
that they are at least 13 years old by posting on a City social media site;

Information that may tend to compromise the safety or security of the
public or public systems; and

Information subject to a legal privilege of confidentiality that is posted
without the consent of all persons who may assert the privilege.

Page 4 of 7



3. All information posted to any City social media site must comply with and is
bound by the laws and statements of rights and responsibilities imposed by the entity
operating the social medium. The City reserves the right to report any violation of the social
medium entity’s policies, rules of use, or statements of rights and responsibilities to that
entity.

4. Any information posted by a member of the public on any City social media site
reflects the opinion of the commentator or poster only and publication of information does not
imply endorsement of, or agreement by, the City, nor does such information necessarily reflect
the opinions or policies of the City.

5. The City reserves the right to deny or limit access to City social media sites for
any individual who violates this policy. Ifthe City finds that this policy has been violated, the
City may deny or limit the violating user’s access at any time and without prior notice.

6. The City may discontinue the operation of a City social media site, or public
access to a City social media site, at any time when the Mayor or his designee determines
that continued operation of, or public access to, the site is not in the best interest of the City.
When The City discontinues operation of a City social media site the City shall terminate
internet access to the site, and archive its content as required by the City’s records retention
policy.

Section4. City Creation, Maintenance,and Use of Social Media Sites

In addition to the general terms of use in Section 4 of this policy,

1. Commencing upon the adoption of this policy, no City department may establish
or use or terminate a social media site, identity, profile, page or account without the prior written
approval of the Mayor or his designee.

2. All information posted on a City social media site by a City officer or employee
shall comply with this policy. No City officer or employee may post information on a City
social media site before signing a statement that the officer or employee has read and will
comply with this policy. A copy of each such statement shall be maintained on file by the
Personnel Director.

3. City employees, representatives, agents, and all individuals acting on the City’s
behalf shall not use City social media sites for any communications or postings that are not
directly related to a City business purpose.

Social Media Policy Page 5 of 7



4. Employees of the City must adhere to the City’s Personnel Policies when
responding to or posting content on the City’s social media site(s), including policies related
to discrimination or harassment, media relations, and computer use. In addition to complying
with this Social Media Policy, including its terms regarding inappropriate forms of content,
City employees must not post non-public or confidential information such as information
related to co-workers, personnel data, medical information, or claims or lawsuits against the
City. If there are questions about what is considered confidential, employees should check
with the Human Resources Department.

Section 3. Social Media Use by City Officials and Employees

1. In using social media as an individual, a City official or employee shall use
reasonable care to avoid the appearance that the official or employee is representing the
official position or policy of the City.

2. No City official or employee may use a City email address, web page or social
media site to conduct the official’s or employee’s personal business or to promote the official’s
or employee’s personal interests.

3. In all communications on social media regarding City business, City officers
and employees shall comply with rules restricting the dissemination of information in City
records that is privileged or confidential.

4. City officers and employees may not use a City email address to register for
social media sites, other than for use in City business, without the prior approval of the Public
Information Coordinator.

Section 6. Definitions

In this policy:

“Blog” means a web-based forum with regular entries of commentary, descriptions of events, or
other materials where the blog host posts material on the website, and others may provide
comments.

“Mayor” means the Mayor or designee.

“City Social Media Sites” means all social media sites as defined in this policy that are
created, maintained, or operated by or on behalf of a City department, City social media sites do
not include sites created and operated by individuals in their private capacity.

“Cloud Computing” means the use of applications hosted across the internet by an
independent service provider. An example of cloud computing is a Google Doc, in which the

Social Media Policy Page 6 of 7



word processing program is accessible through a web browser and the content in the
documentresidesin Google’s servers.

“Department” means a unit of City government under the supervision of the Mayor.

“Mashup” means a web-based presentation of information that combines date and/or
functionality from multiple sources. For example, a mashup would be a Google map showing
average housing prices drawn from a City assessor’s online database.

“Photo Sharing Sites” means websites which allow users to post and share digital
photographs. These sites typically allow commenting and meta-data to be attached to
photographs.

“Public Information Coordinator” means a member of City staff designated to monitor the
content of all City social media sites, or that person’s authorized designee.

“RSS Feed” means a web content format which, when used with an RSS aggregator, alerts
users to new or exciting content on a website. They enable users to avoid the conventional
methods of browsing or searching for information on websites. Once users subscribe to an
RSS feed, they can gather material from websites of their choosing.

“Social Media” or “Web 2.0” means the collection of web tools that facilitate collaboration
and data sharing. Web-based communities and hosted services include social-networking
sites (e.g., Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn), video and photo sharing sites (i.e. Instagram), wikis,
blogs, virtual worlds, and all other emerging technologies that are used to communicate or
share information with others electronically.

“Video Sharing Sites” means websites where users post video they have taken and others
may view or comment on these videos once posted. Video sharing sites generally allow users to
post and share digital photographs. These sites also permit viewers to integrate or display
others’ videos on their own sites.

“Wiki” means a collection of web pages that encourages users to contribute or modify the
content. By using a simple web interface, a community can collaborate on developing a
document or web page, no matter where they are located.

Social Media Policy Page 7 of 7



10
11

12
13

14
15

16
17

18

19

20

21

22
23

24
25

26
27

28
29
30
31
32

33

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward
Introduced and Adopted: December 7, 2015

CITY OF NORTH POLE
RESOLUTION 15-21

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 2016 CITY OF NORTH POLE BED TAX GRANT
DISTRIBUTION

WHEREAS, the North Pole City Council through Ordinance 14-14 changed how bed tax is distributed,
and

WHEREAS, the North Pole City Council through Ordinance 14-19 has appropriated funding for
distribution; and

WHEREAS, the 2015 allocation for disbursement is $61,781; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor appointed a committee to review grant applications from organizations to
determine how and to whom these funds should be distributed; and

WHEREAS, all organizations presented to the North Pole City Bed Tax Committee on November 23"
2015; and

WHEREAS, all individual allocations were averaged against the whole to derive the 2016 Bed Tax
award; and

WHEREAS, the Bed Tax Committee has recommended the following disbursement amounts for the
2016 Bed Tax Grant based on calculations determined by North Pole Municipal Code.

North Pole Economic Development: $8,649.34

North Pole Chamber of Commerce  $21,314.45
Explore Fairbanks $12,819.56
North Pole Christmas in Ice $18,997.65

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Pole City Council allocates 2016 bed tax
funding as recommended by the Bed Tax Committee.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 7th day
of December, 2015.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:
PASSED/FAILED
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC Yes:
North Pole City Clerk No:
Absent:
City of North Pole, Alaska RESOLUTION 15-21

Page 1 of 1



00

10
11

12
13

14
15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22

23

24

25

26

27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward
Introduced and Adopted: December 7, 2015

CITY OF NORTH POLE
RESOLUTION 15-22

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 2016 CAPITAL PROJECT PRIORITY
FOR THE CITY OF NORTH POLE

WHEREAS, changes in the flow of the Tanana River have resulted in a periodic loss of river flow where
the City of North Pole discharges treated wastewater causing the City to be in violation of its wastewater
discharge permit; and,

WHEREAS, in November of 2014 the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation City issued
the City of North Pole a Notice of Violation (NOV) for its discharge permit; and,

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole is seeking funding from the State of Alaska and the Federal
Government for a wastewater discharge sewer main extension; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole operates its Utility as an enterprise fund to provide water and sewer
services to City residents; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole seeks to provide its utility customers with a quality level of service
and charges a per gallon rate to cover the cost of operations; and

WHEREAS, utility customers pay a Facility Repair and Replacement fee (FRR) to repair and replace the
utility infrastructure when in need; and

WHEREAS, utility customers pay a base charge for water and sewer services that also is dedicated to
facility repair and replacement; and

WHEREAS, the City Utility will be able to contribute up to $1,000,000 raised through FRR and base
charge fees by the end of 2018; and,

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole’s capital project priority for 2016 is as follows:

TITLE: Wastewater discharge main design and construction

Project Cost: $4,120,300
City Contribution: $1,000,000
Total Legislative Request: $3,120,300

Description and Justification: Changes in flow of the Tanana River have resulted in periodic loss of
river flow where the City of North Pole Utility discharges treated wastewater. The Alaska Department of
Environmental Conservation (ADEC) permits the Utility to discharge treated wastewater to the Tanana
River. Part of the permit requires a mixing zone to disperse the treated wastewater. The periodic loss of
river flow, an act of nature, has caused the Utility to be in violation of its discharge permit resulting the
ADEC issuing the City a Notice of Violation (NOV) in November 2014. The NOV requires the Utility
resolve the situation. The Utility used a $500,000 legislative award to assess solutions to the NOV. In
conjunction with its consulting engineer, the Utility determined that the most reasonable and cost

City of North Pole, Alaska RESOLUTION 13-21

Page 1 of 2



35
36
37
38
39
40
41

42
43

44
45

46
47

48
49
50
51
52
53

54

55
56
57
58

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward
Introduced and Adopted: December 7, 2015

effective approach is to extend the treated wastewater discharge main to a more active channel of the
Tanana River. The estimated cost to resolve the NOV if it were built in 2015 is $3.77 million, escalating
to $4.5 million if it were built in 2020. The estimated cost includes engineering, construction
management, permitting, wetlands mitigation and construction. The Utility will use the balance of its
legislative award to complete the engineering of the project, but it will need additional funding to
construct the extension of the sewer main. The sooner the project is constructed, the lower the estimated
cost.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Pole City Council endorses and requests
consideration by the Governor and the Alaska State Legislature for the project herein.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 7th day
of December, 2015.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk

PASSED/FAILED
Yes:

No:

Absent

City of North Pole, Alaska RESOLUTION 13-21

Page 2 of 2



00

10
11

12
13

14
15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22

23

24

25

26

27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward
Introduced and Adopted: December 7, 2015

CITY OF NORTH POLE
RESOLUTION 15-22

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 2016 CAPITAL PROJECT PRIORITY
FOR THE CITY OF NORTH POLE

WHEREAS, changes in the flow of the Tanana River have resulted in a periodic loss of river flow where
the City of North Pole discharges treated wastewater causing the City to be in violation of its wastewater
discharge permit; and,

WHEREAS, in November of 2014 the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation City issued
the City of North Pole a Notice of Violation (NOV) for its discharge permit; and,

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole is seeking funding from the State of Alaska and the Federal
Government for a wastewater discharge sewer main extension; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole operates its Utility as an enterprise fund to provide water and sewer
services to City residents; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole seeks to provide its utility customers with a quality level of service
and charges a per gallon rate to cover the cost of operations; and

WHEREAS, utility customers pay a Facility Repair and Replacement fee (FRR) to repair and replace the
utility infrastructure when in need; and

WHEREAS, utility customers pay a base charge for water and sewer services that also is dedicated to
facility repair and replacement; and

WHEREAS, the City Utility will be able to contribute up to $1,000,000 raised through FRR and base
charge fees by the end of 2018; and,

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole’s capital project priority for 2016 is as follows:

TITLE: Wastewater discharge main design and construction

Project Cost: $4,120,300
City Contribution: $1,000,000
Total Legislative Request: $3,120,300

Description and Justification: Changes in flow of the Tanana River have resulted in periodic loss of
river flow where the City of North Pole Utility discharges treated wastewater. The Alaska Department of
Environmental Conservation (ADEC) permits the Utility to discharge treated wastewater to the Tanana
River. Part of the permit requires a mixing zone to disperse the treated wastewater. The periodic loss of
river flow, an act of nature, has caused the Utility to be in violation of its discharge permit resulting the
ADEC issuing the City a Notice of Violation (NOV) in November 2014. The NOV requires the Utility
resolve the situation. The Utility used a $500,000 legislative award to assess solutions to the NOV. In
conjunction with its consulting engineer, the Utility determined that the most reasonable and cost

City of North Pole, Alaska RESOLUTION 15-22

Page 1 of 2



35
36
37
38
39
40
41

42
43

44
45

46
47

48
49
50
51
52

Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward
Introduced and Adopted: December 7, 2015

effective approach is to extend the treated wastewater discharge main to a more active channel of the
Tanana River. The estimated cost to resolve the NOV if it were built in 2015 is $3.77 million, escalating
to $4.5 million if it were built in 2020. The estimated cost includes engineering, construction
management, permitting, wetlands mitigation and construction. The Utility will use the balance of its
legislative award to complete the engineering of the project, but it will need additional funding to
construct the extension of the sewer main. The sooner the project is constructed, the lower the estimated
cost.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Pole City Council endorses and requests
consideration by the Governor and the Alaska State Legislature for the project herein.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 7th day
of December, 2015.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC

North Pole City Clerk PASSED/FAILED
Yes:
No:
Absent:
City of North Pole, Alaska RESOLUTION 15-22

Page 2 of 2



	AG-12-07-15
	Min-11-09-15
	Ord 15-19 2016 Annual Proposed Budget-
	2016 Proposed Budget Cover Page
	Table of Contents
	Mayor's Letter
	Ordinance 15-19 Establishing the 2016 Operating & Capital Budget & Levying the Mill Rate
	Organizational Chart
	City Map
	Department Directors
	Mayor & Council Members
	2016 Regular Schedule Council Meetings
	Political Geography
	North Pole History
	History of Sales Tax & Mill Rate
	Investments
	Long Term Debt
	2016 Alaska PERS Relief Summary Statement
	Overview of all funds
	Expenses (variance)
	General Fund Description
	General Fund Revenue

	Administration
	City Clerk's Office
	Finance Department
	Administration Expenditures

	Professional Services
	Professional Services Expense

	Police Department
	Police Dept Expenses

	North Pole Fire Department
	Fire Dept Expenses

	Public Works Department
	Public Works Dept Expenses

	Utility Department
	Water/Sewer Enterprise Fund
	Utility Department Water Revenue
	Utility Dept Water Expenses
	Utility Dept Water Reserve (Fund 25)
	Utility Dept Sewer Revenue
	Sewer Expenses
	Utility Fund Sewer Reserves (Fund 27)
	Capital Projects (Fund 3)

	Debt Service Funds
	Assessments (Fund 04)

	Building Department
	Building (Fund 05)

	Non-Major Funds
	Fire Dept Fund (Fund 16)
	ABADE (Fund 21)
	AHSO Traffic Officer (Fund 22)
	Byrne/Jag Officer (Fund 23)
	State Forfeitures Fund (Fund 24)
	Capital Projects (Fund 31)
	IRS Forfeitures (Fund 33)
	Impound Lot (Fund 36)

	Community Purpose Funds
	North Pole Community Ice Rink (Fund 18)
	North Pole Fesival (Fund 20)
	Sister City (Fund 32)
	Bed Tax (Fund 37)
	Reserve Funds
	Vehicle Fleet Fund - Fire (Fund 50)
	Vehicle Fleet Fund - Police (Fund 51)
	Vehicle Fleet Fund - Admin (Fund 52)
	Vehicle Fleet Fund - Public Works (Fund 53)
	Captial Projects - General Govt Reserves (Fund 54)
	Vehicle Fleet Fund - Utility (Fund 55)
	Health Insurance Reserves (Fund 56)


	Ord 15-22 Amend Title 13 - Public Services
	Ord 15-23  Bed Tax Amendment
	Ord 15-24 Requesting purchase of computer equip for the NPFD
	Request to accept Byrne JAG Grant for $35,000
	Res 15-20 Social Media Policy
	Res 15-21 Bed tax Dist 2016
	Res 15-22 Cap Proj
	Res 15-22 Cap Project



